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ncho 


City of Vision 
Department of Financia l Services 

August 10, 2012 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council 
And Citizens of the City of Rio Rancho 

The Audit Act, NMSA 1978, Section 12-6-12, requires cities to undergo an annual single audit 
and produce a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Audit Act also requires that 
these financial statements be audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America by a certified public accounting firm licensed in the State of New 
Mexico. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial 
report of the City of Rio Rancho for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

This report consists of management representations concerning the finances of the City. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibi lity for the completeness and rel iabil ity of all 
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management of the City has establi shed a comprehensive internal control 
framework that is designed both to protect the City 's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
compile sufficient reliable inforrnation for the preparation of tht: City ' s financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City'S 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is 
complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introduction, financial, 
stati stical, and single audit. The introduction section includes this transmittal letter, the City 'S 
organization chart and a li st of City officials and administrative staff. The financial section 
includes the financial statements and the combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements and schedules. The 
statistical section includes se lected financial and demographic information, generally presented 
on a multiyear basis . The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with 
the provisions of the Single Audit Act and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A­
133, Audits of Siales, Local Governmenls and Non-Profit Organizations. The schedule of 
expenditures of Federal awards required by the Single Audit Act is included in the single audit 
section along with the auditors ' report on the internal control and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. 

CliftonLarsonA llen LLP, a certified public accounting firm, has audited the City'S financial 
statements . The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material 
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misstatement. The independent audit invo lved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and di sclosures in the financial statements; assessing the overall financial statement 
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the 
fi scal year ended June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles 
generall y accepted in the United States of America. The independent auditors' report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of thi s report. 

The independent audit of the finan cial statements of the City was part of a broader, federall y 
mandated "S ingle Audit" des igned to meet the spec ial needs of federa l grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited City' s internal 
controls and compliance wi th legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in 
the Single Audit Section. 

Accounting principles genera ll y accepted in the United States of America require that 
management provide a narrat ive introduction, overview and analys is to accompany the basic 
fi nancial statements in the form of Management' s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter 
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and shou ld be read in conjunction with it. 
The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

PROFILE OF THE CITY 

The City of Rio Rancho is the third largest city in New Mexico with an estimated population of 
87,52 1 according to the 20 10 U.S. Census. The City is located in central New Mexico, 
northwest and adjacent to Albuquerque, New Mexico's largest city. The metropolitan area is 
serviced by east-west Interstate 1-40 and north-south Interstate 1-25. The Santa Fe railroad has a 
major rail line through Albuquerque. The Rail Runner rail provides commuter service between 
the nearby communities of Bernalillo, Albuquerque, Los Lunas, and Santa Fe. There are two 
general aviation fac ilities, including the Albuquerque International Airport, that provide service 
to the metropol itan area. 

The City was incorporated in 198 1 and adopted a municipal charter as a home rule city in 199 1. 
The City has a hybrid Council/Manager form of government in which the Mayor is a member of 
the Governing Body. The City Manager is the Chief Administrative Officer , appointed by the 
Mayor subject to approval of the Governing Body. The Basic Financial Statements of the City 
include all govenunent activities, organizations and functions for which the City is fi nanciall y 
accountabl e as defi ned by the Govenunental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Based on 
these criteri a no other governmental organizations are included in thi s report. 

The City provides to its citizens those services that have proven to be necessary and meaningful 
and has done so with less City employees per capita than similarl y sized New Mexico cities. 
Major services provided under the general government and enterprise functions are: police and 
fire protection, emergency ambulance service, roads, water and wastewater services, parks and 
recreational activities, libraries, senior services, and general administrati ve services. In 2008, the 
City created a strategic plan to establi sh priorities for city government. This plan represents the 
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consensus that emerged from the co llaborative effort of the City leadership , City employees, and 
the community. This plan along with a status update can be found in the City's Fiscal Year 20 13 
Budget Document posted on the City's website. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The City's financial condition refl ects a local economy that is c limbing out of an economic 
recession that has plagued our country over the last tlu·ee years. Various signs suggest that the 
recovery is ga ining momentum, including a declining unemployment rate, stabil izing City 
revenues, and a trend of lower forec losures in the area compared to recent years. However, the 
recovery has been much slower than most economists expected. Concerns remain over the 
somewhat slow pace of hiring and the risk that financial distress in various European countries 
could signi fi cantly impact economic growth in other parts of the world . 

In Rio Rancho, specificall y, there is reason to be cautiously optimistic about the outlook for the 
community and City government. Jobs have continued to be added in our region and housing 
markets appear to be stabilizing. Two new hospitals opened their doors and with those openings 
the City has added about 850 jobs since October of 20 II. The Governing Body has worked 
hard to shore up the General Fund ending fund balance and conti nues to focus on increasing the 
recurring revenue base thro ugh the attraction of needed retai l businesses and economic base jobs 
into our community. 

The City of Rio Rancho is the fastest growing city in the State of New Mexico. The City's 
population has increased 69 percent from 51,765 in 2000 to 87,521 in 20 10. Rapid population 
growth coupled with the increased availability of cred it during the housing boom led to a surge 
in the number of single-family housing permits issued in the City of Rio Rancho beginning in 
2003 and end ing in 2007. During th is time, alUlUal permits issued rose stead il y, peaking at an 
all-time high of 3,084 permits in 2007. As economic growth slowed in 2008 and the economy 
entered a recession in 2009, Rio Rancho housing market activity dec lined sharply. Since the 
peak in 2007, the number of housing permits issued declined 90 percent to 30 I in 20 II. From 
January to June of20 12, the number of housing permits has increased 18 percent above the 20 11 
level, though still well below pre-housing boom levels. This weakness in housing construction 
translated into a significant dec line in the City's gross receipts tax revenues from Fiscal Year 
2007 to Fiscal Year 2010 and significantly slowed the growth rate of City property tax revenues. 
Revenues started to stabilize in Fiscal Year 20 II and 20 12 as the construction of two hospitals 
helped to offset some of the weakness in construction Gross Receipts Tax revenues. Combined, 
gross receipts and property tax revenues make up approx imately seventy five percent of City 
General Fund revenues. 

In 2006 and 2007 the City of Rio Rancho establi shed a Central Business District anchored by a 
6,500 seat Multi-Purpose Event Center and construction of a new City Hall building. Since then, 
various inst itutions have opened in the Central Business District, including Hewlett Packard, 
which employs approximately 950 employees currently (though news of nationwide layoffs at 
various HP sites have been reported in the media recently); Central New Mexico Community 
College opened its doors in the Fa ll of 20 1 0 with an emollment of approximately 1,400 students; 
and the University of New Mexico also opened the first bui lding of a planned 12,000 student 
campus with a current enrollment of over 500 students. 
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Add itional details on major projects that opened in the last year are included be low: 

• 	 A new Uni versity of New Mexico 72- inpatient bed Sandoval County Regional Medical 
Center (Teaching Hospita l) located near City Hall. 

• 	 Presbyterian Health Care 92-inpatient bed Rust Medical Center and corresponding office 
complex at Unser and Westside Boulevards. 

• 	 Premiere Cinemas opened an all-digital 14-screen (2,750-seat), 46,595 square-foot movie 
theater facility near the southwest corner of Southern and Unser. 

• 	 Adjacent to Presbyterian, developers have begun constructing public infrastructure for 
the Village at Rio Rancho, a 400,000 square foot mi xed use development expected to 
begin construction in 20 12. 

• 	 Petroglyph Medical Plaza, located across from the new Presbyterian Hospital , is expected 
to be competed in the first half of 2013 and will contain 60,000 square feet of Class A 
medical office space. 

Long-Term Economic and Financial Planning. As noted above, with the assistance of a 
professional firm, the City adopted an in-depth Strategic Plan . Surveys were used and meetings 
were held with citizens to gather the community' s views on the City' s strengths and weaknesses 
and on the proposed strategic plan. A process has been implemented to accomplish the goa ls of 
the strategic plan, which is reported annually. This plan is also used to inform the long-term 
budget planning, including a service prioritization project, which helps to ensure that the City is 
using its resources in the most effi cient and strategic manner. 

The Development Services Department has completed the Ci ty'S Comprehensive Plan. Specific 
area plans which are a part of the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan are being 
developed to identify specific land uses throughout the City. The purpose of the Comprehensive 
Plan is to guide community development. It serves as a broad-based policy document used by the 
development community and staff to make recommendations on land use applications as well as 
to support the decisions the City Council makes on land use applications. 

To fac ilitate and encourage retail and commercial growth and economic base jobs, Rio Rancho 
implemented an Economic Development Policy and Retail Strategy Plan. The City conti nues to 
utili ze economic development incentives, such as the Gross Receipts Investment Policy or 
"G RIP" to attract new retail businesses. The most recent use of thi s tool was used to attract Rio 
Rancho Premiere Cinemas, the only movie theatre in Rio Rancho. 

Rio Rancho is located in an arid region and water avail ability is of utmost importance to the City. 
[n 20 10 and 20 11 , the Governing Body approved a $3 and $2 surcharge, respective ly, for a total 
of $5 for each water customer in order to assist with the cost of water ri ghts acquisition . This 
surcharge wi ll be used so lely to assist the City in meeting the State requirements to acquire 
sufficient water rights to offset the impacts of groundwater pumping now and into the future. 

Accountin!!: System and Budgetarv Control. Written financial policies were instituted in 
fi scal year 2006 as a basic framework fo r the financ ial management of the City of Rio Rancho. 
These policies are intended to ass ist members of the City of Rio Rancho Governing Body and 
City staff to eva luate current financial activities. These policies are to be reviewed on an arulUal 
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basis in conjunct ion with annual budget. During the Fiscal Year 20 12, the Financial Services 
staff provided comprehensive training to Ci ty of Rio Rancho employees on various financial 
activities, such as budgeting, contracts, procurement, and grant app lications and management. 
The purpose of this training was to train employees on Financial Services Department policies 
and procedures, enhance controls over these areas, and increase operating efficiencies. 

The City's account ing reco rds for genera l goverrunent operations are maintained on a modified 
accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures 
being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are incurred. 
Accounting records for the City's utilities and other proprietary activities are maintained on an 
accrual basis. 

In developing and mainta1l11ng the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the 
adequacy of the internal control structure. We believe that the City's internal accounting 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of 
financial transactions. 

The City charter provides that the Govern ing Body shall adopt the annual budget prepared by the 
City Manager. The budget is reviewed by the Governing Body and is formall y adopted by the 
passage of a budget resolution. The Ci ty Manager has limited authority to transfer budgeted 
amo unts between line items within divi sions of any fund; however the Governing Body must 
approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund. 

Budgetary control has been established at the individual fund level. Financial reports are 
produced showing budget and actual expenditures by line item, and are di stributed monthly to 
City department management and to others upon request. Individual line items are reviewed and 
analyzed for budgetary compliance. Personnel expenditures are monitored and controlled at a 
position level and capital expenditures are monitored and controlled item by item. Revenue 
budgets are reviewed monthly. Lastly, quarterly budget updates are approved by the Governing 
body and subm itted to the State Department of Finance and Admi nistration Local GovenU11ent 
Division, pursuant to state law. 

Emplovee Health Care and Pension Plans. The City 's medical plan is a self-funded medical 
plan and the City offers a choice of medical plans and a choice of either the Presbyterian or 
Love lace provider network. The City also provides dental insurance through a self-funded dental 
plan. The City offers a fl ex ible spending account program which provides employees with the 
opportunity to set aside dollars on a pre-tax basis in either a Healthcare Reimbursement Account 
or a Dependent Care Reimbursement Account. In addition, the City also offers life and di sability 
insurance on a voluntary basis. The C ity purchases life insurance in the amount of the 
employees' salary. 

Substantially all fu ll-time employees of the City participate in a public employee retirement 
system authori zed under the Public Employees' Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article II NMSA 
1978). The defined benefit plan provides for retirement, di sability benefits, and survivor 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
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The City became a member of the New Mexico Reti ree Health Care Authority on July 1, 2007 to 
provide retirement health care fo r employees. 

Budget and Accounting Awards. The Govern ment Finance Officers Association of the United 
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement fo r Excellence in Financial 
reporting to the City of Rio Rancho fo r its comprehensive annual financial report for the fisca l 
year ended June 30, 20 II . This is the seventh consecuti ve year that the government has achieved 
thi s prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must 
publish an eas il y readable and effi ciently organized comprehensive annual financi al report. This 
report must sati sfy generall y accepted accounting principles and appl icable legal requirements. 
We believe that our current comprehensive annual financia l report continues to meet the 
Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibili ty fo r another certificate. 

The Gove nUllent Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada 
presented an Award for Distingui shed Budget Presentation to the City of Rio Rancho fo r its 
Annual Operating Budget fo r Fiscal Year ending June 30, 20 12, which was the sixth consecutive 
year that the City received thi s award. The Distingu ished Budget Presentation award is presented 
to those govenUllent units whose budgets are judged and adhere to strict program standards . In 
order to receive thi s award, a government must pub lish a budget document that meets program 
criteria as a po li cy document, as an operations guide, as a fi nancia l plan and as a 
communications medium. The award represents signi ficant achievement and refl ects the 
commitment of the Governing Body and staff to meeting the highest principles of government 
budgeting. We believe our current budget continues to conform to program requirements. 

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a ti mely 
basis was made poss ible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Financial Services 
Department. We express our sincere appreciation to Marta Ortiz and Accounting Staff for the 
contributions made in the preparation of this report. 

Respectfull y submitted, 

James C. Babin 
Acting City Manager 

Oli via Pad ill a-Jackson 
Director of Financial Services 
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CliftonLarsonAlien LLP 
500 Marquetle NW, Suite 800 
Albuquerque, NM 87t 02 

505-842-8290 Ifax 505-842-1568 

WWrN.cliftonlarsonalien .comClifton•LarsonAlien 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
and Citizens of the City of Rio Rancho 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 
and Mr. Hector H. Balderas 
New Mexico State Auditor 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the 
budgetary comparisons for the general fund of the City of Rio Rancho (the City) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the 
City's non major governmental funds, fiduciary funds, internal service funds, and the budgetary 
comparisons for all nonmajor funds presented as supplementary information in the 
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2012, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the agency's internal control over financial reporting . Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion , the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of 
June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present 
fairly, in all material respects , the respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental, 
fiduciary and internal service fund of the City as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparisons for all nonmajor funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 28, 2012 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts , and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 19 through 33 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information , although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational , economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, 
the combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits 
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. The additional schedules listed as "other supplemental information" in the 
table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America . In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

~~LL? 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
November 28, 2012 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


As management of the City ofRio Rancho (City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements 
thi s narrative overview and analysis of the financial activi ties of the City for the fi scal year ended 
June 30, 201 2. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financi al statements, which follow the Management's Discussion and Analysis, provide those 
significant key financial highlights for 2012 as follows: 

• 	 In the Statement ofNet Assets the City' s total net assets ofgovernmental activities increased 
$6.4 million to $270.7 million and business-type activities increased $5 .0 million to $ 177. 1 
million representing 60.4 percent and 39.6 percent respectively, of the total net assets of 
$447.8 million. 

• 	 In the Statement of Activities the total governmental activities revenues amounted to $75.5 
million, of which general revenues from governmental activities accounted for $5 1.3 million 
in revenue or 68.0 percent of a ll revenues from governmental activities. Program specific 
revenues in the fonn ofcharges for services and grants and contributions accounted for $24.1 
million or 32.0 percent of total governmental activities revenues. 

• 	 In the Statement of Activities the total business-type activities revenues amounted to $40.3 
million, ofwhich general revenues from business-type activities accounted for $3 .0 million 
or 7.4 percent ofall revenues from business-type activities. Program specific revenues in the 
form of charges for services and capital contributions accounted for $37.3 million or 92.6 
percent of business-type activities. 

• 	 In the Statement ofActivities the City had $72.4 million in expenses related to govel11mental 
activities, of which $24. 1 million of these expenditures were offset by program specific 
charges for services or grants and contributions. General revenues of $5 1.2 million were 
adequate to provide for the remaining costs of these programs. The City had $38.2 million in 
expenses related to business-type activities. These expenses were offset by program specific 
revenues in the form of charges for services and capital grants and contributions of $37.3 
million. 

• 	 The General Fund had $52.5 million in revenues, which primarily cons isted of taxes and 
charges for services. The total expenditures of the General Fund were $51.1 million. The 
General Fund ' s fund balance increased $1.4 million to $14.7 million, partially due to an 
increase in property tax revenue, charges for services, and gross recei pts tax revenues. 

• 	 Net assets of the Enterpri se Funds increased $2 .1 million. Operating revenues of $36.3 
million exceeded operating expenses of $30.9 million. Non-operating expenses of $7.5 
million exceeded non-operating revenues of($ 107,095). 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This di scussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the tinancial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances , in a manner similar to a private­
sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all ofthe City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during 
the most recent 1iscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences). 

In the government-wide financial statements, the City's activities are presented in the following 
categories. 

• 	 Governmental activities - Governmental activities include most ofthe City' s basic services 
such as general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, and 
economic development. Gross receipt taxes, municipal and State shared taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services finance most of these activities. 

• 	 Busilless-type activities - Business-type activities include water utility, wastewater utility, 
and event center activities provided by the City. These services are typically financed 
through user fees and charges. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the 
funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the goverrunent-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) 

spendable resources avai lable at the end of the fi scal year. Such information may be useful 
in eva luating the City's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide "financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmenta l acti vities in the government-wide "financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term "financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate thi s 
compari son between governmental funds and governmental activities. The reconciliations are on 
pages 43 and 45, respectively. 

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund as this 
fund is considered to be a major fund . Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
fund s is provided in the form of combining statements and schedules on pages 96-1 2 1. 

ProprietarY/III/lis. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterpri se 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide "financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for water 
and wastewater utility services, and the event center activities. Internal service funds are an 
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internall y to the City' s various 
funct ions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its self-insured health plan and 
self-insured dental plan. Because both of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within goverrunental activities 
in the government-wide "financial statements. 

Proprietary fund "financial statements provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements, on ly in more detail. The proprietary fund financial 
statements provide additional information for the Utilities Fund and the Multi-Purpose Event 
Center Fund, which are considered to be major funds ofthe City. Both internal service funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements on page 48. 

Fidllciary/lIl1ds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own 
programs. The accounting used for fi duciary funds is much like that used for proprietary 
fu nds. 

Page 2 1 



CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial statements. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report al so presents certain required supplementary infonnation. Under New Mexico Administrative 
Code Section 2.2.2 goverrunents in New Mexico must include the budgetary comparison statement 
for the General and major Special Revenue Funds as a component of the fund financial statements 
within the basic financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator ofa government's financial position. In the case 
of the City' s governmental activities, assets exceeded liabi lities by $270.6 million as of June 30, 
2012. 

A major portion of the City' s net assets (82.4 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land and improvements, infrastructure, buildings and improvements, improvements other than 
buildings, vehicles, furniture and equipment and construction in progress), less any related debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services 
to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City'S 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. In addition, a portion of the City'S net assets (3.9 
percent) is restricted for the specified purposes of debt service repayment and capital outlay 
investment. 

The City'S financial position is the product ofseveral financial transactions including the net results 
of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and di sposal of capital assets, and 
the depreciation of capital assets. 

The following table presents a summary of the City's net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2012 and June 30, 2011. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont'd) 

Government-wide Statement of Net Assets 

Governmental Activities Business-t:YQe Activities Tolal 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
Current and other assets $ 42, 159,296 $ 44,870,654 $ 28,959,425 $ 4 1,24 1,886 $ 7 1, 11 8,72 1 $ 86, 11 2,540 

Capital assets, net 297,960,784 295,467.84 1 32 1, 143, 19 1 299,662.488 6 19, 103,975 595,130,329 
Total assets, net 340, 120,080 340,338,495 350, 102,6 16 340,904,374 690,222,696 68 1,242,869 

Current liabilities 10,402,535 17,760, 189 12,572,529 10,705,258 22,975,064 28,465,447 
Long-term obligations 

outstanding 	 58.996,508 58.295,709 160,400,758 158,101 ,794 2 19.397,266 2 16,397,503 
Tolalliabililies 69,399,043 76,055,898 172,973,287 168,807,052 242,372,330 244,862,950 

Net assets: 
Invested in capita l assets, 
net of re lated debt 239,763,654 233,9 18,334 123,725,543 137,363,850 363,489, 197 37 1,282, 184 
Restricted 7, 128,889 10, 158,631 10,276,537 9,623,009 17,405,426 19,78 1,640 
Unrestricted 23,828,494 20.205,632 43, 127,249 25, 11 0,463 66.955.743 45,3 16,095 

Total net assels $ 2Z0 121031 $ 261282 m $ m 122322 $ 112 021 m $ H18~0 366 $136312212 

. T olal assets . Tolal UabUitles OT 0(11 Dl't anttJMillions 
~-----------------------------S800 

S600 

S400 

$200 

$-

Goveomental 

Activities 


The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of 
Net Assets. 

• 	 The City received $9.3 million in loan proceeds for the purpose of water rights acquisition. 

• 	 The City received $2.6 million in loan proceeds for the purpose of construction of 
wastewater collection lines and water distribution lines. 

• 	 The City received $3 ,2 million in contributed capital for various City infrastructure projects 
which were constructed by developers. 

• 	 The City received $1.2 million in contributed capital for water and wastewater improvements 
which were constructed by developers and various contractors. 

Bustoe5s-type 

Activities 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YS[S (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 


GOV ERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont'd) 

Changes in net assets. The City's total revenues fo r the fi scal year ended Ju ne 30, 201 2, were 
$ 11 5.8 million wi th an increase in net assets of $5 .2 million, thereby accounting for 4.4 percent 
increase in the net assets of the City. The fo llowing table presents a summary of the changes in net 
assets for fi scal years ended June 30, 201 2 and June 30, 2011. 

Government-wide Statement of Activities 

Governmental Activities Bus il1ess-ty~e Activities Total 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for serv ices $11 ,833,5 16 $ 11 ,326,4 19 $36,3 19,609 $33, 150,775 $48, 153, 125 $44,477,194 
Operating grants and 

contri butions 2,699,763 10,059.893 2,699,763 10,059,893 

Capita l gran ts and 
contribut ions 9,6 14,534 22,786,582 988,436 12,546,387 10,602,970 35,332,969 

Ge neral revenues: 
Property taxes 15,650,672 16,349, 11 7 15,650,672 16,349, 117 
Gross receipts taxes 19, 132,26 1 17,20 1,8 11 19, 132,26 t 17,20 1,8 11 
Franch ise taxes 3,552,46 1 3,2 19,655 3,552,46 1 3,219,655 
Unn::!)l riclt::J gnmts, a id 

and state shared 
reve nues 12,69 1,07 1 13,534,932 2,67 1,184 4,972,974 15,362,255 18,507,906 

Miscell aneous 306,977 77,709 272,95 1 323 ,934 579,928 40 1,643 
In vestment income (2.9 13) 23,408 37 164 42 183 34,25 1 65,59 1 

Total revenues $75478342 $94579526 $40,289.344 $51,036.253 $ 11 5.767.686 $ 145.6 15,779 

Expenses: 
General governm ent 10,366,776 13,287,694 10,366,776 13,287,694 

Pub li c safety 29,556,69 1 35,822,606 29,556,69 1 35,822,606 
Publ ic works 17,987,939 25, 118,97 t 17,987,939 25, 11 8,97 1 
eu lture and recreation 9,797,929 9,882,400 9,797,929 9,882,400 
Economic development 2,434, 122 2,296, 117 2,434, 122 2,296, 11 7 
In terest on long-term 

debt 2,265,490 2,484,088 2,265 ,490 2,484,088 
Water 17,76 1,03 1 11 ,384,029 17,76 1,03 1 11,384,029 
Wastewater 17,867, 174 17,624,272 17,867, 174 17,624,272 
Event center 2,574,952 2.639,138 2,574,952 2639 138 

Total expenses 72,40R,947 88,89 1,876 38,203, 157 3 1.647439 11 06 12 104 120539,3 15 
Increase in net assets UQ62325 $ 5 6B165Q $2086,ill $123888 11 $5155582 $15 016161 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CoRt'd) 

Government-wide Statement of Activities (Cont'd) 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Net(Expense)! Net (Expense)! 
Total Ex~enses Program Revenue Total Ex~enses Program Revenue 

Governmental ,activities: 
General government 10,366,776 $(7,613,496) $ 13,287,694 $(10,50 I ,454) 

Pub li c safety 29,556,691 (21 ,667,835) 35,822,606 (19, 167,602) 
Public works 17,987,939 (7,743,962) 25, 118,97 1 (3,060,857) 
Cu lture and recreation 9,797,929 (7,076,366) 9,882,400 (7,590,794) 
Economic development 2,434, 122 (1 ,893 ,985) 2,296, 11 7 (1 ,9 14, 187) 
Interest on long-term debt 2,265,490 (2,265,490) 2,484,088 (2,484,088) 

Total expenses J>72 408 241 $(48 261 134) $88,82 1,816 $~4 118 282) 
Business-type activities: 

Water 17,76 1,031 4,358,540 11 ,3 84,029 19,801 ,227 
Wastewater 17,867,174 (3,172,234) 17,624,272 (3,863,8 13) 
Event center 2,574,952 (2,081,4 18) 2,639,138 (1,887,691) 

Tota l expenses $38203 151 ($895, 11 2) $3 1,647432 $ 14049,123 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Unr.stricted &rlnts, aid 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont'd) 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 

C.pltlillflints 
contributions 

0.10'1(, 

Chare_. for services 

incom. 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental & Business type Activities 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT' S DI SCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR E ND E D JUNE 30, 2012 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Concl'd) 

Governmental-type activities: Net assets of the governmental-type acti vities at the end of the year 
amount to $270.7 million. The following are significant current year transactions that have had an 
impact on the Statement of Activities . 

• 	 Program revenues including federal and state grants and contributions, charges for services, 
and local revenues subsidized certain programs totaling $24.1 million. 

• 	 The cost of all goverrunental activities in fi scal year 201 2 was $72 .4 million, 18 .5 percent 
lower than fi scal year 2011 due primaril y to the decrease in grant and loan funded projects. 

• 	 The net cost of governmental acti vities ($48.3 million) was financed by general revenues 
($51.3 million) that primarily consist of municipal gross receipt taxes ($ 19. 1 million), 
property taxes ($ 15.7 million), and umestricted grants, aid and state shared revenues ($ 12.7 
million). 

• 	 Gross receipt taxes and unrestri cted grants, aid and state shared revenues increased $1.1 
million from fi scal year 2011 , partia ll y due to the increase in construction activity 
specificall y for the Presbyteri an and Sandoval County Regional Medica l Center hospitals. 

• 	 Investment income decreased $26,32 1 primarily due to the recognition of a loss on an 
investment from the reserve contingency fund being held at the New Mex ico Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 

• 	 Property tax revenues declined from those received in fi scal year 20 II by $698,445, or 4.3 
percent, primarily due to slight decreases in both residential construction and non-residential 
development and the inflation rate. 

Business-type activities. Net assets of the business-type activi ties at the end of the year amount to 
$ 177. 1 million. The increase of $5.0 million over fiscal year 20 II was primarily due to a rate 
increase in the charges for water and wastewater services, water ri ghts fees and developer capital 
contributions. 

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of 
Net Acti vities . 

• 	 The City's water and wastewater utility increase in net assets is partially attributed to a 3.3 
percent increase in water and wastewater rates plus a monthly $5 water ri ghts acq uis ition 
surcharge. An increase in the number of customers also contributed to thi s growth. 

• 	 The cost of a ll business-type acti vities in fi scal year 201 2 was $38.2 million, 20.7 percent 
higher than fi scal year 20 I I due primaril y to increase in operational and maintenance and/or 
repairs to the City infrastructure and a $5 .1 million expense fo r the recognition of 
unco llectible receivable related to the Department of Army federal grant. 

• 	 Program revenues, speci fi call y capital grants and contributions fo r the Santa Ana Star Center 
decreased $242,25 1 due to a decrease in improvements needed to the building. 

Page 27 



CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earli er, the Ci ty uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related lega l requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's govenm1ental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assess ing the City's financing requirements . In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a 
useful measure of the City'S net resources availab le for spending at the end of the fi sca l year. 

The financial performance of the City as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the City 
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $34.8 million; a 
decrease of $1.8 million primaril y due to the use of bond funds on capital projects. 

The Genera l Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. The increase in fund balance of$ 1.4 
million in the General Fund to $14.7 million as of .June 30, 20 12 was due primarily to revenue 
increases in GRT revenue from strong construction acti vity from the two new hospitals, propelty tax 
revenue with s light increases in both residential construction and non-residential development, and 
franchi se fee revenue. 

Proprietary funds. Ne t assets of the business-type activities at the end of the year amount to $1 77 .1 
million. The increase of $5.0 million over fi scal year 20 11 was primarily due to a 3.3 percent rate 
increase in the charges for water and wastewater services plus the implementation of a monthl y $5 
water rights acquisition surcharge, and $4.0 million in capital contributions. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The budget theme for fiscal year 20 12 was sustainability, which is critical to our effolts to implement 
the City's adopted Strategic Plan. The Governing Body took decisive measures that provided a 
ba lanced and long-telm approach to addressing the budget shortfa ll. Because of these measures as 
we ll as what appears to be a local economy that is stabili zing, the overall fi scal health of the City is 
showing improvement. 

• 	 At initial adoption ofthe FY 12 budget the reserve fund balances were forecasted to be at 8.3 
percent ofexpenditures, which is the minimum required by the State ofNew Mexico, and an 
estimated unreserved ending fund ba lance of$2.6 million for the General Fund, bringing the 
total reserves to 13.5 percent of expenditures. 

• 	 The City continued to require Departments hold the line by maintaining 83 frozen positions. 
Expenditure levels refl ect the City's high priority service areas, including providing 
add itiona l funding for two public safety positions, EMS system upgrades, and law 
enforcement protective equipment. 

• 	 The Ci ty revised the overall budget during the year. The City conducts a mid-year budget 
review, which provides the City with an opportunity to adjust the fi scal year budget for 
changes in projected revenue and expenditure leve ls. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (ConeI'd) 

The changes made to the fiscal year 20 12 budget at midyear can be briefly summarized as follows: 

• 	 The FY 12 midyear budget has relatively insignificant adjustments, reflecting an economy 
that is experiencing a slow, but steady recovery, and reflective of recent efforts to achieve a 
sustainable long-term budget. The more stable budget situation can be attributed to various 
measures taken by the Governing Body to attain financial sustainability. These include 
multi-year budget planning, setting aside into General Fund reserves non-recurring revenues, 
such as construction revenues from the two hospitals, allocating resources strategically 
through service prioritization, shop local initiatives, and enhancing revenue collections. 

• 	 While there was an increase in GRT revenue of$300,000, there were decreases in licenses 
and permit fees due to a reduced number of projects needing pelmits. 

• 	 There were multiple positions held vacant during the fiscal year. The value of the vacant 
positions was approximately $1.2 million. 

The variances between the budget and actual revenues and expenditures for the General fund can be 
briefly sununarized as follows: 

• 	 $1.0 million positive variance for charges for services primarily due to enhanced billing and 
collection efforts for ambulance services and increase activity for recreational activities. 

• 	 $2.1 million in expenditure savings due to depmtment's aggressively reducing materials and 
services budgets and multiple positions that were held vacant. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets. The City' s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of .Tune 30, 2012 amounts to $619.lmillion (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes buildings, facilities, vehicles, equipment, and infrastructure 
assets. This amount represents a net increase of $24.0 million over last year, primarily due to 
additions of general goverrunental road network assets, and various arsenic water projects. Total 
depreciation expense for the year was $18.0 million. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Cont'd) 

The following schedule presents capital asset balances net ofdepreciation for the fi scal years ended 
June 30, 20 12 and June 30, 201 1. 

Governmental and Business-type Capital Assets 

Governmental activities BusincsS-IYQC activi ties Total 
20 12 201 1 20 12 20 11 2012 2011 

Lund $61.695. 142 $61 ,6 18.023 $40.753.8 10 $28.354.925 $102.448.952 $89,972.948 

Land improvements 9,088.923 9. 165.459 7.878.554 7,400.089 16.967.477 16.565,548 
Buildings and 

improvements 46.367.350 46.020.414 74,056,5 11 75.784,687 120.423.86 1 12 1.805. 10 1 
Vehicles. rurnilUre and 

equipment 6.927.673 7.889.648 19.206.530 2 1.091.467 26.134.203 28.981.1 15 

System infrastructure 130.533.522 122.370.688 125.004,082 111.887.95 1 255.537.604 234.258.639 

Construction in progress 43.348. 175 48.403.609 54.243.705 55.1 43.369 97.59 1.880 103.546.978 

Total $22126Q 181 $225161 SAl $.2 1 11.121 $222 662 488. $,6 12 1!13 211 $525 IJO .22 

Additional information on the City's capi tal assets can be found in Note 4. 

Debt Administration. At the end of the current fisca l year, the City had $223.0 million in long-telm 
debt outstanding, with $15.1 million due within one year. The following tab le presents a summary 
of the City'S outstanding bonded debt for the fisca l years ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 20 11. 

Governmental and Business-type Outstanding Debt 

Governmental activ ities Busincss-tYQc activities Total 

2012 2011 2012 20 11 2012 20 11 
General ob ligation 

bonds $25.875,000 $29.575,000 $25.875.000 $29.575.000 

Revenue bonds 16.075,000 16.660,000 138,370.000 145.205.000 154.445,000 16 1.865.000 

Notes payable 15. 115.44 1 15.9 18.080 15. 115.441 15.9 18.080 

Loans payable 27.558.858 16.513.872 27.558.858 16.5 13.872 

Total 551 Q65 441 $Ji2 153 Q8Q ~65.228 858 -1lJil.1J 8..lill ~22,22.4.222 5223±811 252 

State statutes currently limit the amount of general obligation debt a City may issue to 4 percent of 
its total assessed valuation for general purposes. The current debt limitation for the City is 
$79,685,637. State statute also currently does not limit the amount ofgeneral obligation debt a City 
may issue for the water and wastewater system. The City has no outstanding general obligation debt 
for the water and wastewater system. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


CA PITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Concl'd) 

The City' s general obligation bond debt is graded at AA by Fitch Ratings and A I by Moody' s. In 
July of 20 II , Fitch Ratings reviewed the City's GO credit rating as part of their surveillance 
program. Fitch Ratings has affirmed its AA rating. One of the key rating factors was the Ci ty 
maintaining its financial reserves in light of the City' s heavy reliance on economically sensitive GRT 
revenue. The gross receipts tax revenue bond debt is graded an AI by Moody's and A+ by Standard 
& POOl's. 

The City's water and wastewater revenue bonds were also reviewed by Fitch in July of20 11 and 
downgraded to AA- although the Outlook is stab le. One ofthe key rating factors was the downward 
decline in liquidity and debt service coverage, coupled with increasing operating expenses and lack 
of comparable offsetting rate increases. Standard & Poors rating of A+ was unchanged. 

Add itional information on the City' s long-term debt can be found in Note 5. 

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on capital assets. 

• 	 The addition of $5.1 million in governmental activities primarily due to capital 
contributions from developers. 

• 	 The addition ofapproximately $ 17.0 million in business-type activities primarily due to the 
federal mandate of water well arsen ic removal systems and various other water and 
wastewater system upgrades. 

• 	 The addition of $4.3 million in business-type activities, specificall y the utility fund , 
primarily due to capital contributions from developers. 

The following are sign ificant current year transactions that have had an impact on long-term debt. 

• 	 The City received $9.3 million in loan proceeds for the purpose ofwater rights acquisition. 
• 	 The City received $2.6 million in loan proceeds for the purpose of construction of 

wastewater collection lines and water distribution lines. 

NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS 

Many factors were considered by the City's adm inistration during the process of developing the 
fiscal year 2012-20 13 budget. The objectives set for the 2013 fi scal year budget include the 
following: 

• 	 The City has been focused on building a sustainable budget over the past couple ofyears, as 
achieving sustainability is an ongoing effort. For the first time in at least three years the City 
is projecting a balanced General Fund five year financial plan and the City's ending fund 
balance as a percent of total expenditures is approximately 13 .6 percent, approaching our 
target balance of IS percent. These are two major steps to achieving a sustainable budget. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS (Cont'd) 

• 	 The FY 13 budget refl ects a local economy that is climbing out ofan economic recession that 
has plagued our country over that last three years. Various signs suggest that the recovery is 
gaining momentum, including a steadily declining unemployment rate, stabili zing City 
revenues, and a trend of lower foreclosures in the area compared to recent years. Hard 
budget choices made by the Governing Body have set the City on a path and a way of 
thinking that establi shes a solid foundation from which to flllther the City'S Strategic Goals. 
In addition to long-term planning, prioritization plays a big role in achieving sustainability. 
The City must continue to evaluate all City services and to focus resources on the City' s 
highest priority areas. 

• 	 City Departments were instructed to keep their budgets at the Fiscal Year 2012 levels, except 
as necessary to address the highest priority needs. Using additional expenditure savings and 
non-recurring revenue, the Budget includes add itional funding for critical areas that have 
been under funded in recent years. This includes 14 new police vehicles, additional police 
officer training, a new animal control truck, a rescue ambulance, a cardiac defibrillator, 
funding fo r the City's graphical information system (GIS), and other small capital needs. 

• 	 The Budget also incorporates a modest pay increase to the City'S number one asset, our 
employees. City employees have sustained pay cuts (through furloughs) and have foregone 
raises over recent years at a time when the cost ofliving continues to increase. The Budget 
includes a two percent recurring salary increase. 

• 	 The Ci ty's most important revenue source is the Gross Receipts Tax (GRT). The GRT 
revenue estimate of$24.3 million (including recurring and non-recurring estimates) accounts 
for approximately 48 percent of the total FY 13 General Fund operating revenues. The GRT 
distribution to the General Fund is projected to decrease $1.17 million or 4.6 percent from 
FYI2 leve ls. Growth in most GRT sectors is offset by the significant decline in one-time 
construction activity associated with the two new hospitals built in the City. 

• 	 Property tax revenue, the second-largest revenue source, is estimated to increase 4.5 percent 
from FY 12 levels, with an estimated increase of$557,094. The propelty tax revenue forecast 
util izes a Yield Control Formula, as established by State Statute. The FYI3 revenue estimate 
incorporates housing permits and known non-residential construction activity to estab li sh the 
construct ion growth factor. The estimate assumes an inflation factor offour percent (based 
on Bureau of Economic Analysis data) for a total growth factor of just under five percent. 
This total growth factor is applied to the previous year tax effort (current taxes imposed). 

• 	 Water and wastewater utility operation revenue has a scheduled rate increase of3.3 percent 
that will help to offset increasing operation and capital costs. This increase is based on the 
Global Insight cpr estimate for water and wastewater maintenance. 

• 	 The Utility Fund unreserved ending net asset balance is $6.8 million. The Utility meets the 
required debt service coverage ratio of 1.15 time coverage for parity bonds. In FY I3, the 
debt coverage ratio for parity bonds is projected to be 1.34 times and the debt coverage ratio 
for bonds and loans is 1.13 times. A rate study has been finali zed to increase liquidi ty, 
reserves and debt ratios. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS (Conel'd) 

When looking at the local economy, the number one factor to consider isjobs. Employment growth 
in the Albuquerque Metro Areas is expected to exceed one percent during the first halfofFY 13 and 
to average 1.3 percent for the full fi scal year. Job growth is anticipated in healthcare, manufacturing, 
wholesale trade, retail and utilities. Construction and government employment is expected to decline 
modestly. Over the five-year outlook, annual employment growth in this region is expected to range 
from 1.3 to 2.1 percent, according to the Bureau of Business and Economic Research May Forecast. 

Since its inception thirty years ago, our City has been a leader in single fami ly housing construction. 
While housing construction has allowed us to grow to the third largest City in New Mexico in that 
time, it has not come without a cost, which we have felt these past tive years. If nothing else, the 
recession has taught the City that reliance on housing construction for budget sustainability is not a 
so lid strategy. Given the risks inherent in housing construction, which can fluctuate dramatically, it is 
more important than ever to continue our push for more economic diversification. Diversification 
will not occur overnight but our efforts to attract retail and service businesses is now beginning to be 
rewarded. 

Rio Rancho continues to be one of the best places to relocate a business, offering a portfolio of 
incentives, tax benefits and other programs that stand behind the City commitment to attract 
economic base jobs ami increase the quality of life thought the attraction of targeted retail and 
entertainment companies. In July 20 12, Money magazine ranked Rio Rancho 581h in its li st of the 
" 100 Best Places to Live." The magazine took into consideration criteria such as job opportunities, 
schools, low crime, and health care. In profiling Rio Rancho, Money noted the community has 
added jobs and features many recreational amenities. Rio Rancho is the only New Mexico city to 
appear on the 20 12 list. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City' s accountabi lity for the resources 
it receives. Ifyou have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City of 
Rio Rancho Financial Services Department located at 3200 Civic Center Circle N.E. Rio Rancho , 
New Mexico 87144. 
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ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and inveshnents 
Property taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Lnrerest receivable 
lntemal balances 

Due from federal govemment 

Due from state govemment 

Due from county govemment 


Tota l current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted investments 
Deferred bond issuance costs 
Goodwill (net of amortization) 

Land 

Land improvements 

Infrastructure 

Buildings and improvements 

Vehicles , funliture and equipment 

Construction in progress 

Accumulated depreciation 


Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll 

Accrued interest payable 

Compensated absences payable 
Note payable 
Unearned revenue 
General obligation bonds payable 

Revenue bonds payable 

Deposits held for others 


Total current liabil it ies 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences payable 

Li tigation clain]s payable 

Note payable 

Genera l obligation bonds payable 

Revenue bonds payable 


Total non-current liabilities 
Total liabili ties 

NET ASSETS 
Inves ted in capi tal asse ts, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 

Capita l proj ects 


Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

CITY OF RIO RANC HO, NEW MEXICO 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2012 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 27,403,578 
1,173,625 
1,737, 199 

23,53 1 
(26,964) 

4,96 1,83 6 
5,925 ,09 1 

250,3 05 
41 ,448,20 1 

491 ,121 
219,974 

61,695,142 
13,475,934 

263,894,226 
53,175,999 
24,237,463 
43,348,175 

( 161 ,866, 155) 
298,67 1,879 
340,120,080 

2,867,748 
1,419,8 11 

476,772 
211 ,684 

1,142,283 
714,237 

2,650,000 
920,000 

10,402,535 

5, 156,454 
355,207 

\3 ,973 ,158 
23,724,440 
15,787,249 
58,996,508 
69,399,043 

239,763,654 

4,002,889 
3, 126,000 

23,828,494 
$ 270,72 1,037 

Busin ess-type 
Acti vities Total 

$ 8, 195 ,482 

3,940,320 

26,964 
5,441 

534,530 

12,702,737 

$ 35 ,599,060 
1, 173,625 
5,677,5 19 

23,53 1 

4 ,967,277 
6,459,621 

250,3 05 
54,150,938 

10,767,658 
2,093,010 
4,107, 11 5 

102,448,952 
22,721,3 62 

407,204,651 
140,32 1,509 
62,523 ,894 
97,59 1,880 

(2 13,708,273) 
636,07 1,758 
690,222,696 

1,377,262 4,245,0 10 
54,703 1,474,514 

930,502 1,407,274 
86,127 297,8 11 

2,188,610 3,330,893 
7 14,237 

2,650,000 
7,050,000 7,970,000 

885,325 885,325 
12,572,529 22,975,064 

5, 156,454 
355,207 

25,370,248 39,343,406 
23,724,440 

135,030,510 150,8 17,759 
160,400,758 219,397,266 
172,973,287 242,372,330 

123 ,725,543 363,489,197 

$ 

10,276,537 

43, 127,249 
177,129,329 $ 

14,279,426 
3, 126,000 

66,955,743 
447,850,366 

The notes to the financia l statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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C ITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXI CO 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Program Revenues Assets 
Operating Grants Cap ita l Grants 

Charges fo r and and Governmenta l 
Fu nct ions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Act ivities 
Primary Covernment 

Gove rnmenta l activi ties: 

General government $ 10,366,776 $ 2,4 18,576 $ 334,704 $ $ (7,6 13,496) 
Public safety 29,556,69 1 5,737,263 1,359,049 792,544 (2 1,667,835) 
Pu bl ic works 17,987,939 1,3 46,006 408,582 8,489,389 (7,743,962) 
Cul ture and recreation 9,600,763 1,80 1,534 587,428 332,60 1 (6,879,200) 
Economic deve lopment 2,63 1,288 530, 137 10,000 (2,09 1, 15 1) 
Interest on long-term debt 2,265,490 (2,265,490) 

TOlal governmental activities 72,408,947 11 ,833,5 16 2,699,763 9,6 14,534 (48,26 1, 134) 

Business-type ac tivit ies: 

Water 17,76 1,031 21,748,781 370,790 
Wastewater 17,867, 174 14,122,874 572,066 
Event center 2 ,574,952 447,954 45,580 

Tota l bus iness-type activi ties 38,203, 157 36,3 19,609 988,436 
Total primary government $ 11 0,6 12, 104 $ 48,153 , 125 $ 2,699,763 $ 10,602,970 $ (48,26 1, 134) 

Genera l revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, lev ied fo r genera l purposes 12,306,005 
Property taxes, levied for debt serv ice 3,344,667 
Gross receipts taxes 19, 132,26 1 
Franchi se taxes 3,552,46 1 

UnresLricted grants, aid and state shared revenues 12,69 1,07 1 
Investment inco me (loss) (2,9 13) 
Miscellaneous 306,977 

Total general revenues 5 1,330,529 

C hanges in net assets 3,069,395 

Net assets, beginnin g of year 264,282,597 

Restatement 3,369,045 

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 267,65 1,642 

Net assets, end of year $ 270,721,037 

Th e notes to the fin a ncial statements are 3n integral part of this statement. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes 
in Net Assets 

Business-ty pe 
Act ivities Totals 

$ $ (7,6 13,496) 
(21 ,667,835) 

(7,743,962) 
(6,879,200) 
(2,09 1, I 5 1) 
(2,265,490) 

(48,26 1, 134) 

$ 

4,358,540 
(3,172,234) 
(2,08 1,4 18) 

(895 , 11 2) 
(895, 11 2) $ 

4,358,540 
(3, 172,234) 
(2,08 1,418) 

(895, 112) 
(49, 156,246) 

2,671, 184 
37, 164 

272,951 
2,98 1,299 

12,306,005 
3,344,667 

19, 132,26 1 
3,552,46 1 

15,362,255 

34,251 
579,928 

54,3 11 ,828 

2,086,187 5, 155,582 

172,097,3 22 436,379,9 19 

2,945 ,820 6,3 14,865 

175 ,043 , 142 442,694,784 

$ 177, 129,329 $ 447,850,366 
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C ITY O F RIO RA NCHO, NEW MEXI CO 

BALA NCE SH EET- G OVERNM ENT A L FUN DS 


J UNE 30, 2012 


Non-Major Total 
Governm ental Governm ental 

General Fund Funds Funds 

ASS ETS 
Cash and in vestm ents $ 9,982,247 $ 15,9 15,630 $ 25,897,877 
Propelt y taxes receivable 827,254 346,37 1 1, 173 ,625 
Accoun ts receivab le 1,709,447 27,752 1,737, 199 
Interest receivable 23,53 1 23 ,531 
Du e fro m federal go vernment 58,279 4 ,903,55 7 4,96 1,836 
Due fro 111 state govern ment 4,290,494 1,634,597 5,925 ,09 1 
Due fr om county government 25 0,305 250,305 
Due from oth er fun ds 655,4 19 3,985 ,605 4,64 1,024 
Restri cted in vestments 491 , 12 1 49 1, 12 1 

Total assets $ 17,546,67 1 $ 27,554,938 $ 45, 10 1,609 

LI ABILITI ES AND FUN D BALANCES 
Li abil iti es : 

Accounts payable $ 54 1,759 $ 1,494,400 $ 2,036, 159 
Accrued payro ll 1,38 1,438 38,373 1,4 19,8 11 
Accrued in terest payab le 476,772 476,772 

Due to oth er funds 4,64 1,024 4,64 1,024 
Deferred revenue 954,069 740,262 1,694,3 3 1 

Totalli . bilities 2,877,266 7,390,83 1 10,268,097 

Fund balances (defi cits): 
Non-Spendabl e $ $ $ 

Restricted 58,279 20,486,62 1 20,544,900 
Comm itted 87,381 87,38 1 
Ass igned 2 2 
Unass igned 14,61 1,124 (409,895) 14,201 ,229 
Total fund ba lances 14,669,405 20, 164, I 07 34,833,5 12 

Total li a bilities and fund balan ces $ 17,546,67 1 $ 27,554 ,938 $ 45,10 1,609 

The notes to the fin ancial sta tem ents are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITV OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

RECONCILIATION OFTI-IE BALANCE SI-I £ET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUN~: 30, 20 12 

Total Govern menta l Fund balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement orNe! Assets arc 

different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activi ti es are not fina ncial 
resources and therefore are not repo rted in the funds. 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accum ulated deprecimion 

459,826,939 

( 161,866, 15 5) 

ProperlY tax revenues that are not avai lable to pay for current period 

cxpcndilUres are deferred in th e fund s. 

Deferred charges, issuance costs and premiums related to issuance of bonds 
are amortized over the life oflhe associated issue in the government-wide statements. 

Issuance premium ( 1,273 ,559) 

Issuance discounts 14 1,870 

Deferred bond issuance costs 219,974 


Internal serv ice funds are used by management to charge the costs of health and dental 

self-insurance. The assets and liabilit ies of the in ternal service funds are included in 
governmental ac ti vities in th e statement of net assets. 

Total internal service funds Net Assets 674, 112 


Internal servi ce funds Net Assets attrbutable to Enterprise Funds (26,964) 


Litigation liability re lated to a lawsuit that has ru led against the City. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore 
are not reported in the funds. 

Compensated absences payable (5,368,138) 

Noles payable (15, 11 5,44 1) 
General obligat ion bonds payable (25,875,000) 
Revenue bonds payable ( 16,075,000) 

Net Assets of Governm ental Activities 

$ 34,833,512 

297,960,784 

980,094 

(9 11 ,7 15) 

647, 148 

(355,207) 

(62,433,579) 

S 270,721 ,037 
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CITY OF RIO RANCH O, NEW M EXI CO 

STAT E M ENT or R EV EN UES, EX PENDITURES AND C HA NG ES IN FUND BALANCES ­


GOV ERNM ENTA L FUN DS 

YEA R ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 


Reve nues: 

Property taxes 
Municipal and slate shared taxes 
License and permi ts 
Intergovernmen tal federal 
Intergovernmental stale 
Intergovernmental county 
Impact fees 
Charges fo r services 
Fines and forfe its 
Franchise fees 
Contribut ions and donations 
Investment income 

Other revenues 

Tol:1I revenues 

Ex penditures: 
Current ­

Gene ral government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Culture and recreat ion 

Economic development 


Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 

In terest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 


Excess (deficiency) of re"enues over ex penditurcs 

Olher fin a ncing so urccs (uses): 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

T otal other fin a ncing sou rccs (uses) 

C hllnges in fund ba la nces 

Fund ba lances (deficit s), beg inning of ycar 

Res tatcment 

Fund balances (defi cit s) , beg inning of ycar, as resta ted 

Fund ba lanccs (deficits), end of year 

Non-Major Total 
Governmenta l Governmental 

General Fund Funds Funds 

$ 12,4 16,276 $ 3,480,946 $ 15,897,222 
25,84 1,2 12 5,982, 120 3 1,823,332 

470,789 470,789 
96,856 6,596.1 45 6,693,001 

1,568, 11 0 1,568, 11 0 
1,000 262,274 263,274 

447,02 1 447,02 1 
5,47 1,228 644,855 6, 11 6,083 
1,337,074 80,872 1,4 17,946 
3,437, 11 2 115,349 3,552,461 

144,000 38,263 182,263 
( 13,074) 10, 16 1 (2 ,9 13) 

3,276, I07 839,235 4, 11 5,342 
52,478,580 20,065,351 72,543,93 1 

8,859, 186 2, 157,204 11 ,0 16,390 
25,884,502 2, 164,090 28,048,592 

6,438,082 2,727,948 9,166,030 
7,342,090 1,288, 11 7 8,630,207 
2,046,699 350,709 2,397,408 

193,666 8,9 19, 136 9, 11 2,802 

5,087,639 5,087,639 
2,344,979 2,344,979 

50,764,225 25,039,822 75,804,047 

1,7 14,355 (4,974,471 ) (3,260, 116) 

84,180 
(443,886) 
(359,706) 

837,832 
(478 , 126) 
359.706 

922,0 12 
(922,0 12) 

1,354,649 (4,614,765) (3,260, 116) 

13,3 14,756 23 ,304,756 36,6 19,5 12 

1,474, 116 1,474, 11 6 

13,3 14 ,756 24,778,872 38,093,628 

$ 14,669,405 $ 20, 164, 107 $ 34,833,5 12 

T he notes to the finan cial statcm ents a re a n integral part of thi s sta tem ent. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NDV MEX ICO 

RECONCILIATION OF T H E STAT EMENT OF IUVENUES, EXPENDITUIUS 


AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 


YEAIl. ENDED JUNE 30. 2012 


Nct C hanges in Fund Balu ll ccs - Tota l GovcrnlUcnt:11 Funds $ (3,260,116) 

Amounts reported forgovernmenlaJ activit ies in the Statement of Activities arc differe nt because: 

Governmental funds repon capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement of activ ities, 

the cost of those assc ts is allocated over thcir estimated t1 sefu lli vcs as depreciation expensc. 

Expenditures for cap ital assets 

Less current year depreciation 
9, 11 2,802 

(11 ,695 ,749) (2,582,947) 

Capital assets contributed by developers to the City are not recorded in the governmemal 

funds as they do not provide currcnt fi nan cial resources but arc recognized in the 
Statemcnt of Activities as program revenucs, 3,180,961 

Somc expenses rcported in the Statement of Activi ties do not require the usc of current 

fi nancial resources and therefore arc not rcponed as expenditures in governmental funds . 

Amonization ofbond issuance costs 

Amortization of bond discoun t 
Arbit rage costs 

Compensated absences 

( 19,090) 
( 14, 187) 
65 ,9 11 

(2 71 ,0 17) (238,383) 

Revenue [IUlt are deferred in the governmental Ilmds bceause they do not provide cu rrent 
finan cial reso urces are included in the Statement of Acti vities. 

Property taxes 
Amortization o rbond premium 

(246,550) 

11 2,766 ( 133,784) 

Repayment orJong-term debt principal are expenditures in the governmental runds, 
but the payment reduces long-terrn liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets 

Genera l obligation bonds reti rement 
Revenuc bonds reti rement 

Notcs payable retireme nt 

3,700,000 

585,000 
802,639 5,087,639 

Internal service runds arc used by management to charge the costs of health and denial 

sel f-insurancc. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported 
wi th governmental acti vities. 

62 1,232 

Litigation liability related to a lawsuit that has ruled against the City. 394,793 

C hilngc in Nl't Asse ts in Gove rnmental Activities $ 3,069,395 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXlCO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Bud eted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 12,010,565 $ 12,249,062 $ 12,416,276 $ 167,2 14 

Municipal and state shared taxes 25 ,472,40 1 25,787,433 25 ,841,212 53 ,779 

License and penllits 519,3 62 404,3 62 470,789 66,427 

lntergovernmental federal 103,400 141 ,400 96,856 (44,544) 

Intergovernmental county 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Charges for services 4,707,372 4,374,248 5,47 1,228 1,096,980 

Fines and forfei ts 1,068,750 1,134,250 1,33 7,074 202,824 

Franchise fees 3,138,828 3,277,638 3,437, 112 159,474 
Contributions and donations 14,000 144,000 144,000 

Investment income 10,000 10,000 (13,074) 

Other revenues 3,003,889 3,366,515 3,276, 107 

Total revenues 50,049,567 50,889,908 52,478,580 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General govenUllent 7,739,009 8,8 18,588 8,859,186 (40,598) 

Public safety 26,156,203 26,529,667 25,884,502 645 ,165 
Public works 6,683,938 6,835,876 6,43 8,082 397,794 
Culture and recreation 7,947,64 1 8,093,000 7,342,090 750,9 10 
Economic development 2,265,269 2,292,607 2,046,699 245,908 

Capital outlay 292,763 405,458 193,666 2 11 ,792 

Total expenditures 51,084,823 52,975,196 50,764,225 2,2 10,97 1 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (1 ,035 ,256) (2,085,288) 1,714,355 3,799,643 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

12 1,182 
(363,000) 
(241 ,8 18) 

100,663 
(447,925) 
(347,262) 

( 16,483) 
4,039 

(12,444) 

Change in fund balances (1 ,277,074) (2,432,550) 1,354,649 3,787,199 

Fund balances, July I , 2011 8,164,947 8,7 13,003 13,3 14,756 4,601 ,753 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 6,887,873 $ 6,280,453 $ 14,669,405 $ 8,388,952 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCfIO, NEW MEXICO 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

I'ROI' RIETARY FUNI)S 
JUNE 30, 2012 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash <lnd investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from federal governmen t 

Due from stale governmen t 
Total cu rrent assets 

Util ities Fund 

$ 7,740,543 
3,908,536 

5,44 I 
103 ,400 

11 ,757,920 

Entetprise Funds 

Multi-Purpose 
Event Ce nter Fund 

$ 454,939 
3 1,784 

43 1, 130 
9 17,853 

$ 

Tota l 

8, I 95,482 
3,940,320 

5,44 1 
534,530 

12,675,773 

Governmental 
Activi ti es: 

Internal Service 
Fu nds 

$ 1,505,70 1 

1,505,70 1 

Noncurrent assels: 
Restricted investments 
Deferred bond issuance costs 
Goodwill (net ofamortization) 
Land 
Land improvements 
Infrastructure 

Bui ldings and improvements 
Vehic les, furnilllrc and equipment 
Construction in progress 
Accumulated depreciation 

Totainoncurrcill assels 
Tot:11 assel's 

7,398.565 
1,493,287 
4, 107, 11 5 

40,421 ,3 10 
9,239,43 I 

143 ,3 10,425 
46, 159,703 
37, 119,768 
54,243,705 

(48, 162,837) 
295,330,472 
307,088,392 

2,877,972 
379,749 

332,500 
5,997 

40,985,807 
1,166,663 

(3 ,679,28 I ) 
42,069,407 
42,987,260 

10,276,537 
1,873,036 
4, 107, 115 

40,753,8 10 
9,245,428 

143 ,3 I0,425 
87, 145 ,510 
38,286,43 I 
54,243,705 

(5 I ,842, I 18) 
337,399,879 
350,075,652 1,505,70 1 

LIA BILITI ES 

Cu rrent liabi lit ies: 
Accounts payable 1,37 1,654 5,608 1,377,262 
Accru ed payroll 
Accru ed interest payable 

54,703 
812,040 11 8,462 

54,703 
930,502 

Claims payable 83 1,589 
Compensatcd absences payable 
Note payable 

86, 127 
2, 188,610 

86, 127 
2,188,6 10 

Revenue bonds payable 5,665,000 1,385,000 7,050,000 
Deposits held lor others 885,325 885,3 25 

Total cu rrent liabilities 11 ,063,459 1.509,070 12,572,529 83 1,589 

Noncurren t liabilit ies : 
Note payablc 
Revenuc bonds payable 

Towl nOll·currenl liabilities 

25 ,370,248 
106 ,969,006 
132,339,254 

28,061,504 
28,06 1,504 

25 ,3 70,248 
135,030,5 I 0 
160,400,758 

Totlilliabilitics 143 ,402,7 13 29,570,57 4 172,973,287 83 1,589 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in cap ital assets, net of related debt I 13,980,6 I 2 9,744 ,93 I 123,725,543 
Restricted fo r: 

Debl service 7,3 98,565 2,877,972 10,276,537 
Un restr icted 42,306,502 793,783 43, 100,285 674, 112 

Totaln ct asse ts $ 163,685,679 $ 13,4 I 6,686 $ 177, 102,365 $ 674, 11 2 

Adjustment to re flect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterpri se funds. 26,964 

Net assets ofbus incss ·typc activ ities $ 177, I29,329 

The notes 10 the fin ancil.l l s tlliements are an integral pal't of Ihis statcmcnt. 
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C ITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND C ll ANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 


Enteq~rise Funds Governmenta l 

Operat in g revellues: 

Charges for services - watcr 
Charges for services - wastewater 
Charges for services - event cen ter 
Charges for services - ot her se rvices 

Tota l operat ing rc\'cn ucs 

Utilities Fund 

$ 2 1,748,78 1 
14, 122,874 

35,87 1,655 

Mult i-Purpose 
Event Center 

Fund 

$ 

447,954 

447,954 

$ 

Total 

2 1,748,78 1 
14, 122,874 

447,954 

36,3 19,609 

Activities ­
Internal Service 

Funds 

5,648,1 12 
5,648, 112 

OpcnHing expenses: 

Adm inistration 
Production costs 
Other se rvices 
Depreciation 

Total operat ing ex penses 

8,985,563 
15,487,382 

5,412,426 
29,885,37 1 

105,557 

884,30 1 
989,858 

9,09 1, 120 
15,487,382 

6,296,727 
30,875,229 

5,065,036 

5,065,036 

O pcn tling income (loss) 5,986,284 (54 1,904) 5,444,380 583,076 

No noperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest expense 
Intergovernmental federal 
I ntergovcrnmcntal federal - bad debt expense 

Intergovernmental state 
Amortization of deferred bond items 
Impact fees 
Amortization of goodwi ll 
I nvcstment income 
Other revenues 

Totlll nonoperatin g revenues (ex penses) 

(5 ,832,272) 
254,283 

(5, 120,270) 
1,386,436 

242,449 
39 1,157 

(178,895) 
37,064 

272,95 1 
(8,547,097) 

( 1,545,877) 

2,67 1, 184 
(39,2 17) 

100 

1,086, 190 

(7,378, 149) 
254,283 

(5 , 120,270) 
4,057,620 

203 ,232 
39 1,157 

( 178,895) 
37, 164 

272,95 1 
(7,460,907) 

3,667 
60,373 
64,040 

Income before capital contributions and transfe rs (2,560,813) 544,286 (2,016,527) 647, 116 

Capital contributions 4,03 1,250 45,580 4,076,830 

Chan ges in net assets 1,470,437 589,866 2,060,303 647, 11 6 

Tota l net assets, beginning of yea I' 159,269,422 12,826,820 172,096,242 26,996 

Restatement 2,945,820 2,945,820 

Tota l net assets , beginning of yea r, l) S restated 162,215,242 12,826,820 175,042,062 26,996 

Tota l net assels , end of yea r $ 163,685,679 $ 13,4 16,686 $ 177,102,365 $ 674, 112 

Adjustment to reflectlhe consol idation of internal se rvice fund activities rel ated to enterprise funds. 

Change in net assets of business-type activ ities $ 

25,884 

2,086,187 

T he notes to the fin a ncial statem ents arc a n integ ral pa.-t of this statement. 
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C ITY OF RIO RANC HO, NEW MEXICO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 


PROPRI ETARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Enterprise Funds 

Utilities Fund 
Multi-Purpose 

Event Center Fund Total 

Governmenta l 
Activ ities ­

Intern al Service 
Funds 

Incre~Jse (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash fl ows from operating activ ities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to employees 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

$ 38,940,222 
(1,599,797) 

(22,862,838) 
14,477,587 

$ 454,978 

( 11 4,606) 
340,372 

$ 39,395,200 
(1,599,797) 

(22,977,444) 
14,817,959 

$ 5,648,11 2 

(5, 199,736) 
448,376 

Cash fl ows from noncapital financing activities: 
Intergovernmental revenues 

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital 
and related financing activities 

2,410,308 

2,41 0,308 

2,68 8,065 

2,688,065 

5,098,3 73 

5,098,373 

60,3 73 

60,373 

Cash flows from capital and related fin ancing acti v ities: 
Net acquis ition of capital assets 
Payment of principal on long-term debt 
Issuance of debt 
Interest pa id on bonds 
Development impact fees 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital 
and related financing activities 

(9,603,890) 
(7,860,647) 
1,624,585 

(5,62 1,480) 
39 1, 157 

(21 ,070,275) 

( 1,325,000) 

(1,550,6 16) 

(2,875 ,6 16) 

(9,603,890) 
(9, 185,647) 
1,624,585 

(7, 172,096) 
39 1, 157 

(23 ,945,89 1 ) 

Cash flows from investing acti vities: 
Investment income 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 
37,064 

~064 

100 
100 

37, 164 
~164 

3,667 
3,667 

Net increase (decrease) in casb and cash equivalents (4, 145,3 16) 152,92 1 (3,992,395) 512,41 6 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11 ,885 ,859 302,0 18 12, 187,877 993,284 
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Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 7,740,543 $ 454,939 $ 8, 195,482 $ 1,505,700 

Recon cilbltiou of Operating In come (Loss) to Net Cash Provided bv (Used for) Opcrilting Activities 

Operating income/(Ioss) $ 5,986,284 $ (541,904) $ 5,444,380 $ 583 ,076 

Adj ustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabiliti es: 

(I ncrease) decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
Increase (decrease) in depos its held for others 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 

Total adjustments 

5,4 12,426 

3,0 16,365 
26,995 
(5,239) 

(1 1,446) 
52,202 

8,491,303 

884,30 1 

7,024 
(9,049) 

882,276 

6,296,727 

3,023,389 
17,946 
(5,239) 

( 11 ,446) 
52,202 

9,373,579 

( 134,700) 

(134,700) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operilting activities $ 14,477,587 $ 340,372 $ 14,817,959 $ 448,376 

Non-cash investing capital and financing activities: 
Capital assets acquired through contributions from 

developers $ 1, 184,330 $ $ 1, 184,330 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits held for others 

Total Uabilities 

CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 


JUNE 30, 2012 

$ 
$ 

Agenc~ 

3,051 ,545 
3,051 ,545 

$ 
3,051 ,545 
3,051 ,545 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


The City of Rio Rancho (City) was incorporated in 1981 and the voters approved a home rule 
amendment to the charter in 1992. The City operates under a manager-council form of 
govenm1ent wi th six council members. 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformi ty with accounting principles 
generall y accepted in the United States of Ameri ca as applied to goverrunent units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) is the accepted standard-setting body fo r 
establishing goverrunental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The City's signifi cant accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting E ntity 

The City's major operations include po lice and fire protection, library, parks and recreation, 
certain communi ty and social services and general administrati ve services. In addition, the City 
owns and operates two enterprise flmds, which includes a Utilities Fund for water and wastewater 
operations and the Multi-purpose Event Center. 

The financial reporting entity consists of a primary goverrunent. The City is a primary 
goverrunent that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fi scall y 
independent of other state or local govenm1ents . Furthermore, there are no component units 
combined with the City for financial statement presentation purposes, and the City is not included 
in any other governmental reporting entity. Consequently, the City's financial statements include 
only the financial activity of those organizational entities for which its e lected governing body is 
financially accountable. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The goverrunent-wide financial statements (i.e. , the statement of net assets and the statement of 
acti vities) present financial information about the City as a whole. The reported information 
includes all of the nonfiduciary acti vities of the Ci ty. For the most part, the effect of internal 
acti vity has been removed from these statements. These statements di stinguish between 
goverru11ental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and are reported separately from business­
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of acti vities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segments are offset by progran1 revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiab le with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include I ) charges to 
customers or appl icants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital req uirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes, 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

investment income and other items not included among program revenues, but are rep0l1ed 
instead as general revenues. 

Individual financi al statements are provided for governmental funds , proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual govermnental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statements - The govermnent-wide financia l statements are 
repol1ed using the economic resources measurement foc us and the accrual basis ofaccounting, as 
are the proprietary fund financial statements. [n addition, the fiduciary fund financial statements 
are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Reven ues are recorded when eamed and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recogn ized as revenues in the year for which they are lev ied. Grants and similar items 
are recogni zed as revenue as soon as all el igibility requirements imposed by the grantor or 
provider have been met. As a general rule the effect of internal acti vity has been eliminated from 
the government-wide financial statements, however the effect of interfund services provided and 
used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at amounts approximating 
their exchange value. The City does not allocate ind irect expense to functions in the statement of 
activities. 

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible wi thin the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay li abili ties of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to 
be avai lab le if they are co llected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. In 
addition, derived tax revenues, such as gross receipts and gaso line taxes, are recognized as 
revenues when the underlying exchange transaction has occurred. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, 
are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, gross receipts taxes, state shared taxes, franchi se fees, charges for services, and 
investment income associated with the current fi scal period are a ll considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fi sca l period. Miscellaneous 
revenue is not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received. 
Grants and similar awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. Deferred revenue also arise when resources 
are received by the City before it has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are recei ved prior 
to meeting al l eligibi li ty requirements imposed by the provider. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

Property taxes recognized are net of estimated refunds and unco llectible amounts. Delinquent 
property taxes have been recorded as deferred revenue. Receivables that will not be co llected 
within the available period have also been reported as defelTed revenue on the governmental fund 
financial statements. 

The City reports the fol lowing major governmental funds. 

General Fund - This fund accounts for all financial resources of the City, except those 
required to be accounted for in other funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds. 

Utilities Fund - This enterpri se fund is used to account fo r all operations of the water and 
wastewater systems. 

Multi-Purpose Event Center Fund - This enterprise fund is used to account for all 
construction and operations of the multi-purpose event center. 

Additionally, the City reports the foll owing fund type: 

Fiduciary Fund - The Fiduciary Fund consists of agency fund s which account for assets held 
by the City on behalf of others and includes the Special Assessment District Operations 
Fund, District V, VI , VII , and VIII Bond Funds, the Municipal Court Fund, the Motor 
Vehicle Division Fund, the Gross Receipts Incentive ProgTam (GRIP) Fund, Rio Metro Fund, 
and the Rio Rancho Economic Development Fund. These funds account for monies 
temporari ly held by the City as an agent. 

Internal Service Fund - The Internal service funds account fo r health and dental services 
provided by all employees of the government on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Private-sector standards ofaccounting and financia l reporting issued prior to December I, 1989, 
are generall y fo llowed by the proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Governments also have the option of fo llowing subsequent private-sector guidance for 
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to thi s same limitation. The City has 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
de livering goods in connection with a proprietary fund ' s principal ongoing operations. 

The principal operating revenues of the City ' s enterprise funds are charges to customers for water 
and wastewater services and the event center. Operating expenses for thi s fund include 
production costs, admini strat ive expenses and depreciation . All revenues and expenses not 
meeting thi s definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are ava il able for use, it is the City's po licy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestri cted resources in order ofcommitted, and then assigned as 
they are needed. 

The focus ofgovernmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds 
by ty pe. Each major fund is presented in a separate co lumn. Non-major funds are aggregated and 
presented in a single co lumn . 

D. Investments 

New Mexico Statutes Annotated (NMSA) authorizes the City to invest public monies in the State 
Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool , interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of 
deposit, and repurchase agreements in el igible depositories; bonds or other obligations ofthe u.S. 
govelTUllent that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. government; and bonds of 
the State ofNew Mexico, counties, cities, towns, school districts, and special districts as specified 
by statute. 

The State of New Mexico local government investment pool is a pool that is not registered with 
the United States Securities Exchange Commiss ion. Section 6-1 0-1 01 , NMSA 1978, empowers 
the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the State Board of F inance, to invest money 
held in the short-term investment in securities that are issued by the United States government or 
by its departments or agencies and are either direct obligations of the United States or are backed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States government or are agencies sponsored by the 
United States goverr1l11ent. The Local Government Investment Pool investments are monitored by 
the same investment committee and the same policies and procedmes that apply to all other state 
investments. The pool does not have unit shares. Per section 6-1 0-1 0. 1F, NMSA 1978, at the 
end of each month all interest earned is di stributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing 
entiti es in amounts directly proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the 
length of time the fund amounts were invested. Participation in the local government investment 
pool is vo luntary. The investment in the State ofNew Mexico local government investment pool 
approximates the value of the participant' s pool share. 

A portion of the cash and investments offunds of the City is pooled for investment purposes. The 
ba lance reported fo r each participating fund as "Cash and Investments" represents the equity of 
that fund in the pooled cash and investments. Interest earnings on pooled investments are 
allocated to the participating funds based on average dai ly balances. 

Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost. Money market 
investments and participating interest investment contracts with a remaining maturity ofone year 
or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair 
value. 

E. I nvestment Income 

Investment income is composed of interest and net changes In the fair value of applicable 
investments. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Activi ty between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fi scal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. , the non-current portion of 
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are repolied as "due to/from other 
fund s." 

All trade receivables are shown net ofallowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable in 
excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance fo r uncollectibles. 

Property taxes attach as a li en on property as of January 1. Taxes are lev ied each year on July 1 
on the taxable valuation of property located within the City as of the preceding January I . The 
taxable va luation for the various classes of property are determined by the Sandoval County 
Assessor and the State ofNew Mexico Depatiment of Finance and Administration (DFA), Local 
Government Division at one-third of assessed va luation. Property in the City for the fi scal year 
2012 tax levy had a taxable value of$ 1 ,992, 140,934. The rate of taxes for operating purposes for 
all taxing jurisdictions is limited by the State Constitution to 20 mils ($20 per $1 ,000 assessed 
valuation) , ofwhich the City's portion, by state regulation, is limited to 5.151 mils. The 2012 rate 
for residential and non-residential City rate for operations and debt service was 6.990 and 1.6 17 
mils, respectively. Property taxes are payable in two equal installments due on November lOth of 
the current year atld April 10'h of the following year and become delinquent after 30 days. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land and improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, 
furniture, equipment, construction in progress, atld infrastructure assets (e .g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the govemment-wide financial statements. The City defines capital assets as 
assets wi th an ini tial, ind ividual cost of$5 ,000 or more and an estimated useful li fe of more than 
two years. Such assets are recorded at hi storical cost or estimated hi storical cost if actual 
historica l cost is not available. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over 
fair value of the City'S share of the net identifiab le assets of the controlled entity/associate at the 
date of the acquisition of the Uti lity. Software is capitalized when acquired while library books 
are not capitalized because the aggregated cost of books is cons idered immateri al. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at actual cost at the date of donation. 

General government infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002 consist of the road 
network assets that were acquired or that received substatltial improvements subsequent to July I , 
1981. These infrastructure assets are reported at estimated hi stori cal cost using deflated 
replacement cost. The costs ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materiall y extend assets' li ves are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capital ized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

Certain capital assets ofthe City are deprec iated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful li ves: 

Assets Years 
Buildings 50 
Building improvements 20 
Improvements other than buildings 20 
Public domain infrastructure 15-65 
System infrastructure 30 
Vehicles 8 
Furniture and equipment 5 

H. Compensated Absences 

The City's employee vacation and sick leave policies generally provide for granting vacation and 
sick leave with pay. Vacation benefits vest immediately at the employee ' s current rate of pay. 
Sick leave benefits may be converted to vacation leave at specified rates upon retirement after 10 
or more years of service; however, the sick leave benefits do not vest. The current and long-term 
li abilities for accumulated vacation leave are reported on the govenUllent-wide financial 
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have 
matured, for example, as a result of employee leave, resignations and retirements. Resources 
from the General Fund are used to pay for compensated absences. 

I. Long-term Obligations 

[n the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as li abi lities on the statement of net assets . Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, and the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of 
the old debt, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method 
over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 

Issuance costs, whether or not witWle ld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
debt service expenditu res. 

J. Net Assets Restriction 

In the government-wide financial statements only restrictions imposed by external sources or 
enabling legislation are identified as restricted net assets. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

K. lntcrfund Activity 

Flows of cash fro m one fund to another wi thout a requirement for repayment are reported as 
interfund transfers. Interfund transfers between governmental flmds are eliminated in the 
Statement o f Activities. Interfund transfers in the fund statements are reported as other financing 
sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary 
fu nds. 

L. Budgets 

The General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Proprietary Fund budgets are 
subj ect to approval by the New Mexico Department ofFinance and Administration (OF A), Local 
Govenunent Division. 

During the month of May, public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to 
June 1, the City submits to the OF A a proposed operating budget for the fi scal year conun encing 
the following July 1. The budget is prepared by fund and function and includes proposed 
expenditures, which include carryover encumbrances and accounts payable, and the means of 
financing them. Prior to July 1, OF A grants interim approval for the City to operate on the 
proposed budget subject to adjustments and/or revisions prior to final subsequent approval before 
the first Monday in September. Such approval is contingent upon the Ci ty Council adopting the 
proposed budget in accordance with applicable state statutes, and sufficient funds being available 
for anticipated fi scal year expenditures. Prior to July 3 1, the City Council adopts by reso lution a 
formal budget and such budget is presented to DFA for final approval. 

Section 6-6-6, NMSA, 1978 Compilation prohibits municipalities from making expenditures in 
excess of the approved budget. For these purposes the budget referred to is the fund 's total 
budget. 

The adopted budget of the City is prepared on a basis consistent with acco unting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

M. Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting princples generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results may differ fro m those estimates. 

N. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all high ly liquid investments 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents . Cash and cash 
equivalents at June 30, 20 12 were cash in bank, investments held by the State Treasurer, and 
investments held by City. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concl'd) 

O. Encumbrances 

The City utilizes encumbrance accounting as part of budgetary controls. Encumbrances 
outstanding at year end may be reported as part of restricted, committed, or assigned 
classifications of fund balance. At year end, the City commitments for encumbrances in the 
governmental funds were as follows. 

Year· End 
Fund Encumbrances 
General Fund $ 50 1,583 
Other governmental 8,885 ,488 

Tota l $ 9,387,07 1 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $38,013 ,853 and the bank was 
$39,069,144. The difference represents outstanding checks, deposits, and other reconciling items. 
In add ition, the City has $5,715 of cash on hand at June 30, 20 12. 

Cllstodial credit risk - deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, 
the City's deposits may not be returned. The City does not have a specific deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk; however, under New Mexico law, all deposits with financia l institutions 
must be collaterali zed in an amount not less than 50% of the uninsured balance. The City' s 
agreement with its sole depository requires pledged collateral of 102% of the public money in 
each account. No security is required for the deposit of public money that is insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of June 30, 2012, $38,9 I 6,348 of the City's 
bank balance was exposed to custodial credit ri sk as insured and collateralized with securities held 
by the pledging financial institution 's tTuSt department. 
Effective 1213 1110 through 12/31112, a temporary change in Federal Deposi t Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) insurance coverage will be full y insured regardless of the amount in the 
account. The temporary unlimited coverage is in addition to, and separate from, the coverage ofat 
least $250,000 available to depositors under the FDIC 's general deposit insurance rules. 

The pledged collateral by bank at June 30, 2012, consists of the following. 

Restricted Operating Savings 
Total amount on deposit $1,66 1,25 8 $34,400,987 $3,006,899 
Less FDIC coverage 0" (34,400,987) (250,000) 
Total uninsured publi c fund s 1,661 ,258 o 2,756,899 
50% collateral requirement 830,629 o 1,378,450 
Pledged securities, fair value 830,629 o 2,920,189 
Pledged in excess of requirement $0 $0 $ I ,541 ,739 

"Bank of New York Mellon pledges internal cash reserves of 100% of deposit amounts. 
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont'd) 

As of June 30, 20 12, the City had the following investments and maturities. 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Investment Type 
State Treasurer's Investment Pool 
Mun icipa l Bond, University ofNM 
County Branch 
Celtificates of Depos it 
Federa l Home Loan Mortgage Cou p

Tota l 

- Valencia 

on (FHLMC) 

Fair Value 
$ 11 ,066 

1,657,298 
3,500,000 
6,230,33 1 

$ 11 ,3 98,696 

Less Than 1 
$1 1,066 

700,826 
3,500,000 

______ 

__=",$,,=4~,2,,=11"", 8;,;9~2 

1-5 

956,472 

6,230,33 I 

$7, 186,804 

Credit Risk 
A primary stated objective of the City of Rio Rancho's adopted Investment Policy is the safety of 
principal and avo idance of principal loss . Risk is controlled by investment in the highest credit 
quality investments as defined by its adopted Policy and state law. The investments primary 
objective is to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from security defaults or erosion of 
market value. 

Credit ri sk within the City 's portfolio among the authori zed investments approved by the City's 
adopted Investment Policy includes only: 

- repurchase agreements with depository institutions, 
- time and demand deposits ofNew Mexico banks, 
- savings and loan association deposits, 
- investment grade obligations of state and local governments, 
- commercial paper, 
- money market mutual funds, and 
- State Treasurer's local government investment pool. 

All other investments are rated AAA, or equivalent, by at least one nationally recognized rating 
agency. Investments are made primarily in ob ligations of the US Government, its agencies or 
instrumentaliti es. The City's adopted Investment Policy restricts investment in banker's acceptances 
and mortgage-backed derivative securities. 

The City's Policy and state law restrict certificates of deposit to those which are fully coll ateralized 
or insured and issued by eligible depositories in New Mexico. Such CDs are further co llaterali zed 
to 102% with pledged US obligations securities held by an independent custodian. 

State and municipal obligations from entities within the United States must have a taxable 
valuation of real property for the preceding year ofat least $ 1 million and that has not defaulted in 
bond obligations within the preceding five years. 
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Money market mutual funds must be registered under the 1940 Act and must have assets ofat least 
$100 million. The City's Po licy does not require that SEC registered money market mutual funds 
be rated as to investment quality. 

On January 9, 2009, the City was notified by the New Mexico State Treasurer' s Office (STO) that 
the Reserve Primary Fund (the nation's oldest and widely considered one of the most conservative 
"AAA" rated funds), was downgraded from "AAA" to "D" caused by the market turmoil during 
that period and the bankruptcy fi ling of Lehman Brothers. The New Mexico Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP) investment in the Primary Fund was frozen by the Fund as the resu lt of a 
drop of the net asset value below $1.00. The LG1P investment in thi s fund was then iso lated and 
placed in the Reserve Contingency Fund (RCF), a Fund created by the Treasurer to hold these 
nonperforming assets until the Primary Fund's liquidation process could occur. At that time, the 
City of Rio Rancho had over $540,000 with the New Mexico LGIP that was impacted by thi s 
investment. During the liqu idation process over the last few years, approxi mately $0.8777 (87 
percent) of the total City holdings has been returned. According to the Trustee for the Primary 
Fund, it is not known at thi s time whether there wi ll be any further distributions from the Primary 
Fund. 

On June 30, 20 12, the LGIP participants were notified by the State Treasurer's Office that based on 
the recommendation by their auditor, that approximately 83 percent ofthe remaining amount held 
in the Reserve Contingency Fund was being recognized as a loss and reduced as ofJune 30, 201 2. 
For the City, thi s translates to $54,996 reduction in value, $26,789 ofwhich is held by the General 
Fund. The City has consulted with the City auditor on the appropriate accounting treatment and 
di sclosure of the reduced value of thi s investment. The changes in values are reflected in the June 
30,2012 investment holdings. The remaining $ 11 ,066 will be held in the RCF until the State 
Treasurer's Office fina li zes its audit and recommends final action regarding the remaining funds. 

The State of New Mexico's local govenunent investment pool (LGlP) is managed by the State 
Treasurer, rated AAAm by Standard & POOl's. The pool is authorized by State statute. 

As of June 30, 20 12, 
- commercial paper represented 0% of the total portfolio, 
- certificates of deposit represented 6.96% of the total portfolio, 
- munici pal bonds represented 3.29% of the total portfolio, 
- investment in the State Treasurer's local government investment pool represented 0.02% of 

the total portfo lio, 
- investment in a money market mutual fund operating as a bank sweep vehicle represented 

0% of the total portfolio, 
- collateralized hold ings in depos itory demand accounts represented 77.35% of the portfolio, 

and 
- the remainder of the portfolio (12.38%) was in US Government securities rated AAA. 
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont'd) 

Concentration o/Credit Risk 
The City of Rio Rancho's adopted Investment Policy stresses di versification on all investments. 
With the exception of US Treasuries and cash on deposit at the City's depository bank, the City's 
Policy allows no more than 50% of the total portfolio to be invested in any single investment type, 
any single financial institution, or single maturity. 

As of June 30, 20 12, 
- holdings in the State Treasurer's local government investment fund represented 0.02% of 

the total portfolio, 
- holdings in insured/collateralized bank deposits at the Depository bank represented 77.35% 

of the total portfolio, 
- holding in a money market mutual fund used as a bank sweep represented 0% of the total 

portfolio, and 
- the remainder of the portfo lio was in municipal bonds (3.29%) and agencies of the US 

Govenmlent (FHLMC 12.6%). 

Illterest Rate Risk 
In order to limit interest and market rate ri sk from changes in interest rates, the City's adopted 
Investment Policy sets a maximum maturity on any investment of three (3) years with the 
exception of bond or trust funds which should be matched to the planned expenditures of the 
funds. 

As of June 30, 201 2, the portfo lio contained two holdings wi th a stated maturity beyond one year. 
The portfolio contained one structured note which could have interest rate ri sk. 

As of June 30, 201 2, the portfolio contained : 

- no investment matured beyo nd 24 months, and 

- the doll ar weighted average maturity of the total portfolio was 142 days. 


Custodial Credit Risk 
To control custody risk State law and the City of Rio Rancho's adopted Investment Policy requires 
all securi ties and all coll ateral fo r time and demand deposits as well as repurchase agreement 
collateral be transferred de li very versus payment and held by an independent party approved by the 
City. All securiti es and co llateral are held in the City'S name. The custodian is required to provide 
original safekeeping rece ipts. Repurchase agreements and deposits must be collateralized at 102%. 

Portfolio disclosure as of June 30, 2012 : 

- the port fo lio conta ined certifi cates of deposit 

- the portfolio conta ined no repurchase agreements 
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- all bank demand deposits were fu lly insured and collateralized. All pledged bank co llateral 
for demand deposits was held by an independent institution outside the bank 's holding 
company. 

The City's investment in the New Mexico State Treasurer's Investment Pool represents a 
proportionate interest in the Pool ' s portfolio. The Ci ty's portion is not identified wi th specific 
investments and is not subject to custodial risk; however, separately issued financial statements of 
the Office of the State Treasurer disclose the collateral pledged to secure the State Treasurer's cash 
and investments. The most recent rep0l1may be obtained by contacting the Office of the State 
Treasurer, P.O. Box 608, Santa Fe, NM 8754-0608. 

NOTE 3 - DEFERRED REVENUE/ACCOUNTS RECEVABLE 

A. Deferred revenues 

Governmental funds rep0l1 deferred revenue in cormection with receivables for revenues that are 
not considered to be avai lable to liquidate liabili ties of the current period. Governmenta l and 
Proprietary funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been 
received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fi scal year, the various components of 
deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows. 

Unavailable Unearned 
Governmental Funds: 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 683,369 $ 
Customer deposits (Genera l Fund) 166,32 1 
Confiscations (General Fund) 48,988 
Red-light program (General Fund) 54,098 
Federal and state revenues (General Fund) 1,293 
Impact fees (Non-major Funds) 49,11 5 
Federal and state revenues (Non-major Funds) 394,422 
Delinquent property taxes receivable (Non-major 
Funds) 296,725 

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds $ 980,094 $ 7 14,237 

B. Accounts Receivable 

Tn October 2007, the City ente red into a grant agreement with the U.S. Army Corps ofEngineers to 
fund an arsenic removal faci lity. The estimated cost of thi s facility was $9 million, of which 75 
percent or $6.75 million was to be funded with a grant from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 
The City has been partially reimbursed for construction expenses; however, because Congress has 
not appropri ated additional funds, the Army Corps ofEngineers cannot yet full y reimburse the City 
for the entire grant amount. Therefore, the due fro m the federal govenU11ent balance for the 
Util ities Fund is net an allowance for revenue that is not considered available. 
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Beginning in fi scal year 20 13, the City will accrue $200,000 per year to fund a $5. 1 million 
allowance or unti l the revenue becomes available. 

In addition, the accounts receivable balances for the General Fund and the Utilities Fund are net an 
allowance of approximately $417,000 and $1,103,000, respectively. 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of capital asset activity for the fi scal year ended June 30, 201 2 fo llows. 

Beg inning 
Ba lance Ending 

Governmental Activities (As restated) In crea se Decrease Balance 

Cap ital assets, not be ing deprec iated: 

Land $61 ,618,023 $ 77, 119 $6 1,695, 142 
Construct ion in progress 48,403,6 10 11 ,649,877 ( 16,705,314) 43,348, 173 

Tota l capita l assets, not being deprec iated 110,021 ,633 11,726,996 (16,705 ,314) 105,043,3 15 
Capita l assets, be in g deprec iated: 

[n fras tructure 249, 165,666 14,728,560 263,894,226 
Build ings and im provemelts 5 1,79 1,6 13 1,384,386 53, 175,999 
Land improvements 13,003 ,565 472,369 13,475,934 
Vehi cles, furniture and equipm ent 23,637,745 686,766 (87,046) 24,237,465 

Tota l capital assets be ing deprec iated 337,598,589 17,272,08 1 (87,046) 354,783,624 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

In frastructure ( 124,900,049) (8,460,656) (133,360,705) 

Buildings and improvements (5,771 , 199) (1,037,450) (6,808,649) 
Land improvements (3,838, I06) (548,905) (4,387,011) 

Ve hi c les, furni ture and eq uipment ( 15,748,097) (1,648,739) 87,046 (17,309,790) 
Tota l accumu lated depreciation (150,257,45 1) (11 ,695,750) 87,046 (161 ,866,155) 

Total cap ital assets, bei ng deprec iated, net 187,34 1,138 5,576,33 1 192,9 17,469 

Governmental activ ities capital assets, net $297,362,77 1 $17,303 ,327 $ 16,705,3 14 $297,960,784 
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Busines,,"Tn~e Activities 

Beginning 
Balance 

(As restated) Increase Decrease 
Ending 
Balance 

Cap ita l assets, not being depreciated: 

La nd $28,354,925 $ 12,398,885 $40,753,810 
Construct ion in progress 55, I 43 ,369 9,008,97 I (9,908,635) 54,243 ,705 

Total capita l assets, notbe ing deprec iated 83 ,498,294 21 ,407,856 (9,908,635) 94,997,5 I 5 
Cap ital assets, being depreciated : 

Building and Improvements 87,130,9 10 14,600 87, I 45 ,5 I 0 
System infra structure 13 1,098,708 12,21 1,717 143,3 10,425 
Veh ic les, furniture and equipment 
Land Improvements 

38,004,099 
8,44 I ,698 

325,637 
803,730 

(43,305) 38,286,431 
9,245 ,428 

Total cap ita l assets being depreciated 264,675,4 I 5 13,355,684 (43,305) 277,987,794 

Less accumu lated deprec iation for : 
Building and Improvements 

System infrastructure 
Vehicles, furniture and eq uipm ent 

Land [mprovements 

Total accumulated depreciation 

(11 ,346,223) 

( 16,264,936) 
( 16,912,632) 

( 1,04 I ,609) 

(45 ,565,400) 

( 1,742,774) 

(2,041 ,4 I 0) 
(2, 187,279) 

(325,265) 

( 6,296, 728) 

20,010 

20,010 

( 13,088 ,997) 

( 18,306,346) 

(19,079,901) 

(1,366,874 ) 

(5 1,842, I 18) 

Total capi ta l assets, being depreciated, net 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 

219, 110,015 

$302,608,309 

7,058 ,956 

$28,466,8 I 2 
(23 ,295) 

$ 9,93 1,930 

226, I 45 ,676 

$32 1,143, 19 1 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows. 

Governmenta l Activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Cu Iture and recreation 
Econom ic deve lopment 

Total depreciation expense- governmenta l activities 

$ 38 1,356 
1,346,728 
8,799,738 
1,139,081 

28,847 
$ I 1,695,750 

Business-Type Activities: 
Event center 
Water 
Wa stewater 

Total depreciation expense- business-type activities 

$ 884,30 I 
3,064,227 
2,348,200 

$ 6,296,728 

Construction Com mitments - As ofJune 30, 20 I2, the City was involved in several construction 

projects. The estimated cost to complete the construction projects is $ 11 5,454,057. 
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A. General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities. General ob ligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith 
and credit of the City. These bonds are generally issued as 10 to 15 year serial bonds with varying 
amounts of principal maturing each year. Genera l Obligation bonds outstanding as reported in 
governmenta l activities at June 30, 20 12 were as follows. 

Outstanding 
Governmental Activities General Obligation Bonds: June 30, 2012 
$5,000,000 General Obligation, Series 2002, due in annual installments of 

$250,000 to $600,000 through 08/0112014; interest at 3.6 percent to 5.0 
percent $ 450,000 

$5,500,000 General Obligation, Series 2004, due in annual installments of 
$75,000 to 725,000 through 08/01 120 16; interest at 3.15 percent to 4.0 
percent 2,550,000 

$7,000,000 General Obligation, Series 2006, due in armual installments of 
$300,000 to $1,150,000 through 08/0112018 ; interest at 4.0 percent to 5.0 
percent 4,550,000 

$25,000,000 General Obligation, Series 2009, due in annual installments of 
$1,500,000 to $2,175,000 through 08/01 /202 1; interest at 2.5 percent to 4.0 
percent 18,325,000 

Total Governmental Activities General Obligation Bonds $25,875,000 

B. Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds 

Gross receipts tax revenue bonds are issued spec ifically for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital faci lities. These bonds are secured by a pledge of gross receipts tax revenue. Gross 
receipts tax revenue bonds outstanding as reported in governmental activities at June 30, 20 12 
were as follows. 

Outstanding 
Governmental Activities Revenue Bonds: JWle 30, 2012 
$18,130,000 Gross Receipts Tax Bonds, Series 2005, due in annual 

installments of $21 0,000 to $1,625,000, tlU'ough 06/0112025; interest 
at 3.0 percent to 5.0 percent $16,075,000 

Total Governmental Activities Revenue Bonds $16,075,000 

Page 69 



CITY OF ruo RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


J UNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont'd) 

C. Water and Wastewater' Revenue Bonds 

Water and Wastewater revenue bonds are issued and authorized by the governing body to provide 
fu nds to acqui re and construct certain improvements to the water and wastewater systems of the 
City and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. These bonds are 
secured by a pledge of revenues of the systems, and do not constitute a general ob ligation of the 
City backed by the general taxing authority. Water and Wastewater system revenue bonds 
outstanding as reported in business-type activities at June 30, 20 12 were as follows. 

Outstanding 
Business-Type Activities Revenue Bonds: June 30, 20 12 
$4,395,000 Water & Wastewater System Bonds, Series 2004, due in 

alUlua l installments of $ 170,000 to $3 10,000 through 05115/2024; 
interest at 2.375 percent to 4.5 percent $ 3,000,000 

$21 ,225,000 Water & Wastewater System Bonds, Series 2005 , due in 
ann ual installments of $7 15,000 to $1,5 80,000 through 05115/2025; 
interest at 3.25 percent to 5.0 percent 15,670,000 

$32,930,000 Water & Wastewater System Bonds, Series 2007, due in 
annual installments of $3 10,000 to $3,235,000 tlu'ough 05115/2032; 
interest at 4.0 percent to 4.5 percent 31,260,000 

$13,240,000 Water & Wastewater System Bonds, Series 2008, due in 
alUlUal installments of $255,000 to $830,000 through 05115/2034; 
interest at 3.0 percent to 4.5 percent 12,010,000 

$57,990,000 Water & Wastewater System Refunding Bonds, Series 2009, 
due in alUlual installments of $3 ,790,000 to $5,710,000 through 
05115/2022; interest at 4.4 percent to 5.3 percent 46,775 ,000 

Total Business-Type Acti vities Revenue Bonds $108,715,000 

D. Event Center Revenue Bonds 

The Event Center revenue bonds are issued to provide for acquiring land for, and designing, 
purchasing, constructing, remodeling, rehabilitation, renovation, improving, equipping and 
furn ishing, a municipal event center. These bonds are secured by a pledge of revenues from 
rentals, receipts, fees or other charges imposed from the event center. Event center revenue bonds 
outstandi ng as reported in business-type activities at June 30, 2012 were as follows. 

Outstanding 
Business-Type Activi ti es Revenue Bonds: June 30, 2012 
$35,750,000 Taxable Event Center Reven ue Bonds, Series 2005, due in 

annual instal lments of $1, 120,000 to $2,735,000 through 05115/2027; 
interest at 4.20 percent to 5. 15 percent $29,655,000 

Total Business-Type Activities Revenue Bonds $29,655,000 
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E. Note Payable 

The City has entered into intercept agreements with the State ofNew Mexico Finance Authority 
(NMFA) for the purchase of capital equipment and facilities. Notes payables outstanding as 
reported in governmental activities at June 30, 20 12 were as follows. 

Outstanding 
Governmental Activities Revenue Bonds: June 30, 20 12 
$1 ,649,286 Note Payable, Fire Equipment, due in annual installments of 

$35,000 to $146,0 15 through 05/01 /2022 ; interest at 3.32 percent to 
3.91 percent $ 1,235,849 

$337,259 Note Payable, Fire Pumper & Equip, due in annual installments 
of $29, 113 to $37,73 1 through 05/01 /2020; interest at .98 percent to 
3.22 percent 276,5 11 

$S,217, I 00 Note Payable, HP Project, due in annual installments of 
$157,100 to $400,000 through 06/0112028; interest at 4.0 percent to 5.2 
percent 4,520,000 

$4,669,000 Note Payable, HS Road Project, due in annual installments of 
$205,000 to $365,000 tlu'ough 06/0112028; interest at 1.6 percent to 5.3 
percent 4,464,000 

$269,990 Note Payable, Public Safety, due in arumal installments of 
$S3,069 to $5S,333 through OS/01l2015 ; interest at 1.497 percent 163 ,6 10 

$967,515 Note Payable, GRT Refunding, due in annual installments of 
$317,724 to $327,682 through 06/0 1I2015;interest at 1.65 percent 967,5 15 

$3,942,260 Note Payable, Infrastructure Improvements, due in annua l 
installments of $226,382 to $325,754 through 05/0112025; interest at 
3.46 percent 3,487,957 

Total Notes Payable $IS, 115,441 

F. Loan Payable 

A loan was issued by the New Mexico Envirollment Department under the Clean Water State 
Revolving Loan Fund, which is also known as the Wastewater Facility Construction Loan 
Program. The loan proceeds were used for wastewater treatment system upgrades to increase 
capacity, biological nutrient removal and other approved wastewater treatment improvements. 
Loan payables outstanding as reported in the business-type activities at June 30, 2012 were as 
follows. 
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Outstanding 
Business-Type Activities Loan Payable: June 30, 20 12 
$ 10,486,627 Note Payable, Wastewater Facility Construction, due in 
annual installments of $426,456 to $684,336 through 12/02/2023; 
interest at 3.0 percent. $ 6,52 1,861 

$ 1,0 I 0,000 Note Payable, Water Project Fund Loan, due in arumal 
installments of $45,856 to $55,428 through 0511512031 ; interest at 1.0 
percent 964, 131 

$7,000,000 Note Payable, Water Rights, due in annual installments of 
$274,22 1 to $488,849 through 05/01 /2030; interest at 4.028 percent 6,449,775 

$25,000,000 Note Payable, Wastewater Treatment System Improvements, 
due in annual installments of $930,393 to $1,631,449 through 
12/0112031; interest 2.56 percent 4,08 1,22 1 

$390,000 Note Payable, Water Reuse Project, due in annual installments 
of $19,041 to 19,966 through 06/01 /2030; interest 0.250 percent 351 ,870 

$9,335,000 Note Payable, Water Rights Acquisition, due in annual 
installments 0[$ 145,000 to $625,000 through 05/01/2031; interest 3.197 
percent 9,190,000 

Total Loans Payablc $ 27,558,858 

G. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabili ty activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows. 

Begin ning Ending Due Wi thin 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmenta l Activi ties: 
Bonds payable: 

General obligation bonds $29,575,000 $(3,700,000) $25,875 ,000 $ 2,650,000 
Revenue bonds 16,660,000 (585,000) 16,075 ,000 920,000 

Less deferred amounts: 
For issuance discounts ( 156,057) 14,187 (14 1,870) 
For issuance premium 1,386,325 ( 11 2,766) 1,273,559 

Total bonds payable 47,465,268 (4,383,579) 43,08 1,689 3,570,000 

Notes payable 

Compensated absences 
15,9 18,080 
5,097, 121 3,452,742 

(802,639) 
(3, 181,725) 

15, 11 5,44 1 
5,368, 138 

1, 142,283 
2 11 ,684 

Governmental activity 
Long-te rm liab il it ies $68,480,469 $3 ,452,742 $(8 ,367,943) $63,565 ,268 $4,923 ,967 
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Bus iness-type Activities: 
Bonds payable: 

Revenue bonds 
Less deferred amounts: 

For iss uance discounts 
For iss uance premium 

Total bonds payable 

Beginning 
Balance 

$145 ,205 ,000 

(648 ,80 I) 
4,695 ,949 

149,252, 148 

Additions Reductions 

$(6,835 ,000) 

40,807 
(377,446) 

(7, 171 ,639) 

End ing 
Balance 

$138,370,000 

(607,994) 
4,3 18,504 

142,080,5 10 

Due Within 
One Year 

$7,050,000 

7,050,000 

Notes payable 16,513,872 12,360,081 (1,315,095) 27,558,858 2,188,610 
Compensated absences 74,68 1 96,620 (85,175) 86, 127 86,127 

Business-type ac ti vi ty 
Long-term Iiabi l ities $165,840,70 I $12,456,70 I $(8,571 ,908) $ 169,725 ,495 $9,3 24,73 7 

H. Special Assessment Bonds 

Special Assessment Bonds are used to construct projects within special assessment districts 
created by the City after property owners within these districts agree to be assessed for the costs 
of debt service on these bonds. Payments made by the assessed property owners within the 
districts are pledged to pay the debt serv ice on the bonds. In the event of default by a property 
owner, the I ien created by the assessment is sold at public action and the proceeds are used to 
offset the defaulted assessment. 

As trustee for improvement districts, the City is solely responsible for collection ofassessments 
levied against the owners of property within the improvement di stricts and for disbursement of 
these amollnts for retirement of the respective bonds issued to finance the improvements. The 
City is not obligated in any manner to pay the debt service payments on the Special Assessment 
Bonds with any general or other funds of the City. Special assessment bonds payable at June 30, 
20 12 were $ 13,484,721. 

I. Statutory Debt Limitation 

The Constitution of the State ofNew Mexico limits the amollnt ofgeneral purpose goverrunent 
obligation bonds that may be issued by a municipality to four percent of the taxable valuation of 
property located within the City. At June 30, 2012, based on the most recent assessed taxable 
valuation of $2,056,634,824 the City may issue an additional $59,737,932 of general purpose 
general obligation bonds. The debt limit is calculated using the total outstanding debt plus any 
cash reserves held for general obligation purposes. 

J. Bond Covenants 

Pursuant to certain bond indenture agreements, the Ci ty is obligated to various limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements, maintenance and flow of monies through 
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various restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking fund s and 
minimum revenue bond coverage's. Management believes the City is in compliance wi th all 
such significant limitations and restri ctions. 

K. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

The followi ng is a sununary ofdebt service requirements to maturity, which includes interest, for 
al l bonds and loans payable as of June 30, 2012. 

Governmenta l Activities 

Years ended General Revenue Notes 
June 30, Obligation Bonds Bonds Payable Total 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

20 13 $2,650,000 $861 ,463 $920,000 $775,074 $ 1, 142,282 $6 15,746 $6,964,565 

20 14 2,550,000 780,488 955,000 738,274 1, 169,859 588,885 6,782,506 

20 15 2,n5,OOO 693,081 1,005 ,000 690,524 1, 199,987 564,108 7,077,700 

20 16 3, 100,000 591,713 1,055 ,000 640,274 846,883 52 1,880 6,755,750 

2017 3,275,000 48 1,000 1,110,000 587,524 873, 172 490,355 6,8 17,05 1 

2018-2022 11 ,375,000 997,124 6,3 85,000 2,089,148 4,844,987 1,888,157 27,5 79,4 16 

2023-2027 4,645 ,000 44 1,53 1 4,334,27 1 794,975 10,2 15,777 

2028 704,000 35,990 739,990 

Total $25,875,000 $4,404,869 $ 16,075 ,000 $5,962,349 $ 15, 11 5,44 1 $5,550,096 $72,932,755 
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Business-Type Activities 

Years ended Revenue Notes 
June 30, Bonds Payab le Total 

20 13 

2014 

2015 

20 16 

2017 

2018-2022 

2023-2027 

2028-2032 

2033-2034 

Principal 

$7,050,000 

7,345,000 

7,680,000 

7,950,000 

8,305,000 

47,900,000 

32,210,000 

18,305,000 

1,625 ,000 

Interest 

$6,408,848 

6,121,880 

5,820,430 

5,533,170 

5,166,664 

19,482,077 

9,0 14,364 

2,927,225 

110,475 

Principal 

$2, 188,610 

2,240,791 

2,290,247 

2,347,058 

1,548,101 

7,340,857 

5,55 1,748 

4,051 ,446 

Interest 

$ 1,7 11 ,365 

1,383,859 

1,331,902 

1,276, 196 

1,2 16,771 

2,381,620 

1,342,831 

37 1,2 13 

$ 17,358,823 

17,091,530 

17,122,579 

17, I 06,424 

16,236,536 

77, 104,554 

48,118,943 

25 ,654,884 

1,735 ,475 

Tota l $138,370,000 $60,585,133 $27,558,858 $ 11,015,757 $237,529,748 

L. Arbitrage on Tax Exempt Bonds 

Prior to the Tax Reform Act (TRA) of 1986, State and Local governments had up to three years 
to use the proceeds from tax exempt bonds issued by them before arbitrage on such proceeds had 
to be paid to the Treasury Department. Arbitrage, as defined , is the excess interest earned by a 
State or Local goverrU11ent on proceeds from the sale of its bonds over interest paid to bond 
ho lders. 

TRA 1986 required rebate of such arbitrage to the Treasury Department on governmental bonds 
issued after August 31, 1986, and on private activity bonds issued after December 31 , 1984, 
when the proceeds were held for six months or longer. These rebates must be calculated 
annual ly and paid at the end of every fifth year until the bonds are retired. 

The Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1989 amended the six-month ru le. For bonds issued after 
December 19, 1989, the rebate requirement does not apply if: 1) all of the gross proceeds of the 
issue, other than the reserve fund , are spent within the six month period. The term gross 
proceeds for the purposes of the rule include both the sale proceeds received from the bond 
purchase on the issue date and investment earni ngs on such proceeds during the six-month 
period. Gross proceeds deposited in a reserve fund or bona fide debt service fund , however, are 
not subject to the expenditure requirement. 
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The following is a schedule of bond issues, along with the bond year ends and arbitrage rebate 
due dates. The City has had the first arbitrage computation for the bonds, completed as 
indicated: 

First Computation First Payment Due to First Computation of 
Date IRS Arbitrage Completed 

General Obligations, 
Series 2009 

6/3011 0 7/2711 4 X 

NOTE 6 - OPERA TING LEASES 

The City has entered into noncancelable operating leases for computers and office equipment. 
The operating lease expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $ I 54,368. The minimum 
lease payments are as follows. 

Year ending June 30: 
20 13 $104,524 
2014 98,454 
2015 84,456 
2016 52,051 
2017 22,968 
Total $362,453 

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAY ABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

At June 30, 2012, interfund balances were as follows. 

Due to/from other funds: 

At June 30, 2012, Governmental Funds had a $655 ,419 interfund payable with the General Fund, 
and an interfund payable of$3 ,985,605 for non-major funds. Additionally, $4,641,024 interfulld 
payables for the non-major funds. These balances resulted from negative cash balances. All 
illterfund balances are expected to be paid within one year. 
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Concl'd) 

lnterfund transfers: 

Non-Major 
Governmental 

General Fund Fund Total 
~ 

~ 
~ ­ General Fund $443,886 $443 ,886 
@ g Non-M ajo r 
~ 

f- Governmental 84, 180 393 ,946 478, 126 

Total $84, 180 $837,832 $922,012 

Interfund transfers were made by the City during the fiscal year to meet proj ect-matching 
requirements to cover expenditures in the applicable nmds. The circumstances that require budget 
transfers are many. In some cases, the responsibi li ty for implementing a program is changed from 
one department to another. Management continual ly strives to make the organization more 
efficient, and budget transfers assist in achieving efficiency. 

NOTE 8 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Federal and State grants and loans 

The City has received a number ofgrants and loans from both the Federal and State govenunents. 

Although the programs have been audited, not all audits have been approved as ofJune 30, 20 12. 

At thi s point, the City expects to receive all outstanding funds, however there is always the risk 

that cost wi ll be disallowed or programs not appropriated. 


Lawsuits 

The City has reached a settlement agreement for litigation in the amount of$725,000 related to a 

lawsuit. This settlement agreement will occur in three-installments on the following schedule: I) 

$375,000 on or before 12/3 1111; 2) $200,000 on or before 12/31112; and 3) $150,000 on or before 

1211 /20 13. An interest rate of 3% per annum from 12/3111 1 will also accrue until paid. The first 

payment of $375,000 was paid per the agreed upon settlement schedule during December 20 II . 


The City is also a defendant in a t1lunber of other lawsuits as of JLUle 30, 20 12. It is the opinion of 

management and City council that the amount oflosses resulting from these litigations atJ une 30, 

2012, would not be material to the financial position of the City. 
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NOTE 9 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNT ABI LITY 


Individual Deficit Fund Balances - At June 30, 20 12, the following individ ual major and non­

major funds reported deficits in fund balance. 

Deficit 
Non-Major Funds: 

Public Safety Grants ($ 1,227) 
Infrastructure Fund (370,824) 
State Appropriation Capital Projects (37,844) 

The deficits arose because of operations duri ng the year and prior years. Additional revenues 
received in fiscal year 20 12- 13 are expected to eliminate the deficits. 

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various ri sks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; inj uries to employees; and natural di sasters. In 1985, the City was 
unable to obtain general property, worker's compensation and li abi lity insurance at a cost it 
considered to be economically justifiable. Therefore, the City joined the New Mexico Self­
Insmers' Fund Risk Pool (Pool), together wi th other cities and towns in the State. The Pool is a 
public entity ri sk pool currently operating as a common ri sk management and insurance program 
for member cities and towns. The City paid an annual premium of$ 1 ,376,400 into the Pool for its 
general insurance coverage during the fi scal year. The agreement provides that the Pool wi ll be 
self-sustaining t1u'ough member premiums and wi ll reinsure tlu'ough commercial companies for 
claims in excess of the annual aggregate per policy for general liability, property, and workers ' 
compensation claims. 

The City carri es commercial insurance for all other ri sks of loss including employee health and 
accident insurance. Settled claims resulting fro m these ri sks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Health and Dental coverage are being provided through a self-insurance program administered by 
outside carriers (Lovelace & Presbyterian, for medical, Express Scripts for prescriptions, and 
Delta Dental for dental). The City reports its se lf-insurance programs in the Internal Service 
Funds. Amounts are transferred from the General and Utility Funds to the Internal Service Funds 
to provide suffic ient resources to cover claims incurred and to pay the insurance service agent ' s 
administrative fee. 
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NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Concl'd) 

The fo llowing schedules represent the changes in clai ms liability fo r the past two fi scal years for 
the City's Self-Insurance Programs: 

Health and Dental Self-Insurance Fund: 

Beginning of 
Fiscal-Year 

Liabi li t)' 

Current-Year 
Clai ms and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

Claims 
Pa),ments 

Ba lance at 
Fiscal Year­

End 

2010- 11 $ $5,536,677 $(4,626,392) $9 10,285 

201 1-1 2 9 10,285 $5,648, 11 2 (5,726,808) 83 1,589 

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

PI£IIl Descriptiol/. Substantially all of the City's fu ll-time employees parti cipate in a public 
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, 
Article II , NMSA 1978). The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the 
administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement 
plan. The plan provides for retirement benefit s, di sability benefits, survivo r benefits and cost-of­
li vi ng adjustments to plan members and benefi ciari es. PERA issues a separate, publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the 
plan. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA, P.O. Box 2 123 , Santa Fe, NM 87504­
2 123. The report is also available on PERA 's website at www.pera.state.nm.us. 

Fllllding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 2.29% and 4.07% (ranges from 3.83% 
to 16.65% de pending upon the plan - i.e. , state general, state hazardous duty, state police and adult 
correctional officers, municipal general , municipal police, municipal fire, municipal detention 
officer) of the ir gross salary. The City is requ ired to contribute between 6.86% and 2 1.25% 
(ranges from 7.0% to 25.72% depending upon the plan) of the gross covered sa lary. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established in State statute under 
Chapter 10, Article II , NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature. 
The City's contributions to PERA for the fi scal years ending June 30, 20 12,2011 and 20 I 0 were 
$6,564,680, $5,688,026, and $5,834,625, respecti ve ly, which equal the amount of the requi red 
contributions for each fi scal year. 

NOTE 12 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Descriptiol/. The City contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost­
sharing mul tiple-employer defi ned benefi t postemployment healthcare plan admin istered by the 
New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authori ty (RHCA). The RHCA provides hea lth care insurance 
and prescri pti on drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico govenUllent 
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NOTE 12 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont'd) 

agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board 
was established by the Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA 1978). The Board 
is responsible for establi shing and amending benefit provisions of the healthcare plan and is also 
authori zed to designate optional and/or vo luntary benefits like dental , vision, supplemental life 
insurance, and long-term care policies. 

Eligib le retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to 
retirement and whose el igible employer during that period of time made contributions as a 
participant in the RHCA plan on the person's behalf unless that person retires before the 
employer's RHCA effective date, in which event the time period req uired for employee and 
employer contributions shall become the peri od of time between the employer's effective date and 
the date of retirement ; 2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3) fo nner 
legislators who served at least two years; and 4) fonner governing authority members who served 
at least four years . 

The RHCA issues a publicly avai lable stand-alone financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the postemployment healthcare plan. That 
report and further information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 
4308 Carli sle NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107. 

FlIlldillg Policy. The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C- 13 N MSA 1978) authorizes the 
RHCA Board to establi sh the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for 
healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service 
based subsidy rate schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation fee 
offive dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer's RHCA effective date or is a 
fonner legis lato r or former govern ing authority member. Former legislators and governing 
authority members are requi red to pay 100% of the insurance premium to cover their claims and 
the administrati ve expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate schedule can be obtained from 
the RHCA or viewed on thei r website at www.nm rhca.state.nm.us. 

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section I 0-7C- IS N MSA 1978) is the statutory authority that 
estab li shes the required contri butions ofpmticipating employers and their employees. During the 
fi scal year ended June 30, 20 12, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 
1.834% ofeach participati ng employee's millual sa lary; each pmt icipating employee was required 
to contribute. 917% of their sa lary. In the fisca l yem' ending June 30, 20 13 the contribution rates 
for employees and employers wi ll rise as fo llows: 
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NOTE 12 -]>OST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (ConcI'd) 

(1) 

For employees who are not members of an enhanced retirement plan the contribution rates will 

be: 


Fiscal Year Employer Contribution Rate Employee Contribution Rate 
FY13 2.000% 1.000% 

(2) 
For employees who are members of an enhanced retirement plan (state police and adult 
correctional officer coverage plan 1; municipal police member coverage plans 3, 4 and 5; 
municipal fire member coverage plan 3, 4 and 5; municipal detention officer member coverage 
plan 1; and members pursuant to the Judicial Retirement Act [10-128-1 NMSA 1978]), during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 20 12, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 
2.292% of each participating employee' s annual salary, and each participating employee was 
required to contribute 1.1 46% of their salary. In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 the 
contribution rates for both employees and employers will rise as follows: 

Fiscal Year Employer Contribution Rate Employee Contri bution Rate 
FYI3 2.500% 1.250% 

Also, employers joining the progranl after January I , 1998, are required to make a surplus amount 
contribution to the RHCA based on one of two formulas at agreed-upon intervals. The RHCA 
plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The employer, employee and retiree contributions are 
required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis. The statutory requirements for the 
contributions can be changed by the New Mexico State Legislature. 

The Ci ty'S contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 20 10 were 
$804,072, $327,286 and $345,389, respectively, which equal the required contributions for each 
year. 
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NOTE 13-FUND BALANCE 


Fund balances are reported in class ifications comprising a hierarchy based primarily on the extent 
to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the speci fic purposes for which 
amounts in those flmds can be spent. During 20 II , the City implemented the provisions ofGASB 
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmenta l Fund Type Definitions. 
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements report the fo ll owing categori es of Fund 
Balance: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Ass igned, and Unassigned. 

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that Calmot be spent because they are either (1) 
not in spendable form or (2) legally or contractuall y required to be maintained intact. 
Nonspendable fund balance includes advances between funds, long term receivables, alld land 
held for resa le because these items are not yet spendable . 

Restricted fund balance is constrained to specific purposes external ly imposed by creditors (such 
as through debt covenants), grantor alld contributors, or laws, or regu lations ofother govenullents, 
or through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. Restricted fund balances are 
associated with various purposes, including public safety, culture and recreation, capital projects, 
alld debt service. 

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes, pursuallt 
to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision making 
authority. Funds cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government remuves ur changes 
the specified use by taking the same type ofaction employed to previous ly commit those aJIlounts. 
The govenunents highest authority, the Governing Body, has the authority to establi sh, modity or 
resc ind a fund balance commitment specifically items that have been contractually obligated by 
reso lution. 

Ass igned fund balance includes amounts in the assigned fund balance class ification that are 
intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
restricted or committed. In goverrmlental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund 
balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or conullitted. In the General Fund, 
assigned amounts represent intended uses established by policies of the Governing Body by 
reso lution, which includes giving the City Manager that authority to constrain monies for intended 
purposes. These include miscellaneo us capital projects, debt service, and general government. 

Unassigned fund balance includes amounts that represent fund balance that has not been 
ass igned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific 
purposes within the General fund. In other govenmlental funds, it may be necessary to report a 
negative res idual balance as unass igned. 

A summary of the nature and purpose of balances with reserves by fund type at June 30, 2012 are 
as fo llows : 
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Non-major Total 
General Governmenta l Governmental 

Fund Ba lance Category Fund Funds Funds 

Nonspendable: 
Long term receivab les 
Land held fo r resale 
Tota l nonspendable fund balances 

Restricted for : 
General Governm ent 58,279 4,442,346 4,500,625 
Pub lic Safety 742,705 742 ,705 
Public Works 10, 11 4,356 10, 11 4,356 
Cu lture and rec reation 1,398,074 1,398 ,074 
Economic deve lopment 82,976 82,976 

Debt service 3,706, 164 3,706, 164 

Total restricted fund balances 58 ,279 20,486,621 20,544,900 

ComlTI itted to: 
Capital Projects 
eu Iture and recreation 53,929 53 ,929 
Pub lic Safety 33 ,452 33 ,452 
Debt service 
Tota l comm irted fund ba lances 87,381 87,3 8 1 

Ass igned to : 
Capital Projects 
Genera l Government 2 2 

Total ass igned fu nd balances 2 2 
Unass igned: 14,61 1, 124 (409,895) 14,20 1,229 

Total Fund Ba lances $ 14,669,405 $ 20, 164, 107 $ 34 ,833 ,5 12 

NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT 

The July 1,20 11 , beginning net assets of the governmental activiti es on the government-wide 
financ ial statements and the Infrastructure Fund in the fund financi als do not agree with the prior 
year financial statements due to an understatement of intergovernmental federal sources; 
balances were cOITected in fi scal year 20 12. As a result of the restatement, the June 30, 20 12 
fund balance in the Infrastructure Fund was increased by $1,474, 11 6. 

The July 1, 20 11 , beginning net assets of the business-type activities on the goverrullent-wide 
financial statements and the Utiliti es Fund and in the fund financials do not agree with the prior 
year financial statements due to a correction ofan error for the additions ofcontributed water and 
wastewater infrastructure. The result of the restatement on net assets was $2,97 1,94 1 less 
accumulated depreciation of $26, 121 for a net increase of $2,945,820 in beginning net assets. 
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NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING RESTATEMENT (Concl'd) 

The July 1, 201 1, beginning net assets of the governmental activities on the govermnent-wide 
fi nancial statements do not agree with the prior year financial statements due to a correction ofan 
error fo r the additions of contributed road and drainage infrastructure. The result of the 
restatement on net assets was $ 1,950,703 less accumulated depreciation of $55,774 for a net 
increase of $1 ,894,929 in beginning net assets . 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Infrastructure 
Fund 

Uti lities 
Fund 

Fund balance, 

as previously stated 

Restatement 

beginning of year, 

$(2,469,524) 

1,474, 11 6 

Total net assets, 

as previous

Restatement 

beginning of year, 

ly stated $ 159,269,422 

2,945 ,820 

$(995,408) $162,2 15,242 

Statement of Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activit ies 

Nel assets, beg inning of year, 

as previollsly stated 

Restatement 

$ 264,282,597 

3,369,045 

Net assets, beginning of year, 

as previous ly stated 

Restatement 

$ 172,097,322 

2,945,820 

$ 267,65 1,642 $ 175,043 , 142 

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On October 1,20 12, the City installed the Arsenic Removal Facilities project, located at various 
well sites throughout the City, to the capital asset li sting in the amount of$12. 1 million. 

On October 1, 20 12, the City installed the Northern Boulevard widening project, from 
Broadmoor Boulevard to 35 th Court, to the capital asset listing in the amount of$6.7 million. 
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Tota l 

Non-Major 

Special Governmental 
Revenue Debt Service Cari ta l Projects Funds 

ASS ETS 

Cash and inves tments $ 7, 174,227 $ 3,615,625 $ 5, 125 ,778 $ 15,9 15,630 

Property taxes receivable 346,37 1 346,37 1 

Accou nts receivable 27,752 27,752 

Due from federal government 533,573 4,369,984 4,903,557 

Due fro m state government 597,3 16 489,688 547 ,593 1,634,597 

Due from county government 250,305 250,305 

Due fro 111 other funds 3,985,605 3,985,605 

Restricted investments 
Total assets $ 

491, 12 1 
9,074,294 $ 4,45 1,684 $ 14,028 ,960 

491 , 12 1 

$ 27,554,938 

LIAB ILIT IES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabili ties: 
Accounts payabl e $ 366,935 $ $ 1, 127,465 $ 1,494,400 

Accrued payroll 38,373 38,373 

Accrued interes t payable 27,977 448,795 476,772 

Due to other fund s 465,391 4, 175 ,633 4,64 1,024 

Deferred revenue 35,458 296,725 408,079 740,262 
Total liabilities 934, 134 745,520 5,7 11 , 177 7,390,83 1 

Fund balances: 

Non-Spendable 

Res tricted 8,054,006 3,706,164 8,726,45 1 20,4 86,621 

Committed 87,3 81 87,381 

Ass igned 

Unassigned (1 ,227) (408,668) (409,895) 
Tota l fund balances 8, 140, 160 3,706, 164 8,317,783 20, 164, 107 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,074,294 $ 4,45 1,684 $ 14,028,960 $ 27,554,93 8 
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Revenues: 

Property taxes 
Munic ipa l and state shared taxes 
Intergovernmental federal 


Intergovernmental state 

Intergovernmental county 


Impact fees 

Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 

Franchise fees 

Contributions and donations 

Investment income 


Oth er revenues 

Total revenu es 


Expenditures: 

Current ­
General governm ent 

Public safety 
Public works 


Cuhure ancl recreation 

Economic development 

Capi tal Ollilay 
Debt service ­

Principal 

Interest and fi scal charges 

Tota l expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other financin g sources (uses): 

Transfers in 
Transfers Qui 

Tota l oth er financing sources (uses) 

C hange in fund balances 

Fund balances. beginning of year 

Restatement 

Fund balances, beginnin g of year as restated 

Fund balances, end of year 

Special 
Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects 

Total 
Non-Major 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 
3,885,894 
1,537,94 1 
1,269,840 

262,274 

644,855 
80,872 

115,349 
38,263 

6,863 
769,89 1 

8,612,042 

$ 3, 480,946 
2,096,226 

86 1 

5,578,033 

$ 

5,058,204 
298,270 

447,02 1 

2,437 
69,3 44 

5,875,276 

$ 3,480,946 
5,982, 120 
6,596,145 
1,568,110 

262,274 
447,02 1 
644,855 

80,872 
115,349 
38,263 
10, 161 

839,235 
20,065,351 

2, 157,204 
2, 124,729 
1,953 ,584 
1,286,529 

350,709 
368,893 

39,36 1 
774,364 

1,588 

8,550,243 

2, 157,204 
2,164,090 
2,727,948 
1,288,117 

350,709 
8,919, 136 

4 12,639 
173 ,772 

8,828,059 

4,675,000 
2, 171,207 
6,8 46, 207 9,365,556 

5,087,639 
2,344,979 

25,039,822 

(2 16,0 17) ( 1,268,174) (3 ,490,280) (4,974,47 1) 

335,206 
(3 0,463) 
304,743 

368,035 

368,035 

134,59 1 
(44 7,663) 
(3 13,072) 

837,832 
(478, 126) 
359,706 

88,726 (900,139) (3 ,803 ,352) (4,6 14,765) 

8,051,434 4,606,303 10,647,019 23 ,304,756 

1,474 ,116 1,474,11 6 

8,05 1,434 4,606,303 12, 12 1,135 24,77 8,872 

$ 8, 140,160 $ 3,706, 164 $ 8,3 17,783 $ 20, 164, I 07 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 


Special Revenue FWlds are used to account for specific revenues that are legall y restricted to 
expenditures for particular purposes. 

Donations Fund - To account for funds donated to the City of Rio Rancho. Expenditures from 
thi s fund wi ll be used for the purposes specified by the donor. (Provided for by City Budget 
Resolution.) 

Recreation Activities Fund - To account for revenues received for recreation fees and vending 
machines placed in City facilities. Expenditures may be used for programs and activities, such 
as, classes and softball programs and various community projects. (Provided for by City Budget 
Resolution.) 

Recrea/ion Fund - To account for revenues col lected from taxes on cigarettes so ld within City 
boundaries pursuant to the Cigarette Tax Act, NMSA 7- 12-1 and 7-12-15. Expenditures from 
th is fund may be used for recreational faci lities and salaries of employees necessary for the 
operation of such facil ities. 

Keep Rio Rancho Beautifid Grant Fund - To account for New Mexico Clean & Beautiful Litter 
Control & Beautification grant funds. Expenditures may be used for equipment, landscaping, 
program promotion, recycling, educat ion, and anti-graffiti programs. (Pursuant to NMSA, 
Section 67-16- 1 to 67-16-14.) 

Communi/y Response Program Fund - To account for ConuTIunity Emergency Response Team 
federal grant fiJl1ds. Expenditures from this fund may be used to find , train, equip and maintain 
citizen vo lunteer teams to respond to and support emergency operations. (Pursuant to the Robert 
T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, as amended 42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq.) 

Workers Compensation Fund - To account for revenues from other funds for the purpose of self 
funding workers compensation insurance administered by the New Mexico Self Insurance Fund. 
(Provided for by City Budget Resolution) 

Senior Services Fund - To account for fund s donated to the City of Rio Rancho. Expenditures 
from thi s fu nd will be used for the purpose specified by the donor. (Provided for by City Budget 
Resolution.) 

LibrCIIY Fund - To account for grants, gifts, donations, devises or bequests made to the City, 
pursuant to NMSA 3-18-4, for the purpose of establishing, increasing or improving the library. 

Promo/ion and Marketing Fund - To account for promotional activities. Expenditures from this 
fund may be used for special events; promoting convention, exposition or entertainment 
facil ities; or advertising and marketing facilities. (Provided for by City Budget Resolution.) 

Rio Rancho Convention & Visitors Bureau Fund - To account for revenues co llected from 
occupancy taxes (3%) levied within City boundaries pursuant to NMSA 3-38-15. Expenditures 
from this fund may be used for acquiring, constructing, improving, establishing, and operating 
convention, exposition or entertailU11ent faci lities; acquiring or obtain ing an interest in such 
facilities; or advertising, publicizing, and promoting such faci lities. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Cont'd) 

Rio Vision Cable Fund - To account fo r cable franchise fees (2%) received to operate and 
promote a public access television chaJUlel. (Provided for by City Budget Resolution.) 

Local Government Corrections Fund - To account for revenues co llected from the assessment 
for correction fees and court costs, pursuant to NMSA 35-14-11. Expenditures from thi s fund 
may be used for municipal jailer or juvenile detention officer training; for planning, construction, 
operating and maintaining a municipal jail for juveniles in a detention faci lity; or for complying 
with match or contribution requirements for the receipt of Federal funds relating to jai ling or 
juvenile dete ntion facilities . 

Law Enforcement Fund - To account for State revenues received pursuant to the Law 
Enforcement Corrections Act, NMSA 29- 13-3. Expenditures from thi s fund may be used fo r the 
repair and purchase of law enforcement apparatus and equipment, expenditures associated with 
advanced law enforcement planning and training, and complying with match or contribution 
requ irements for receipt of Federal funds, and sa laries for law enforcement persOlUlel under 
certai n conditions. 

DPS Enforcement Aid Fund - To account for revenue generated from asset forfeitures obtained 
through narcotics investigations. These revenues can be utilized for officer overtime, police 
equipment, undercover vehicles, purchase of ev idence, training and other narcotic investigation 
related expenses. (Pursuant to the Attorney Genera l's Guidelines on Seized and Forfeited 
Property, July 1990.) 

Traffic Education and Enforcement Aid Fund - To account for revenues rece ived from the New 
Mexico Traffi c Bureau fo r DWI checkpoint enforcement and safety belt enforcement. (Pursuant 
to NMSA 66-7-50 1 to 5 11 ) 

NM Gang Task Force Fund - To account for revenue received from the U.S . Departm ent of 
Justice, Justice Assistance Grant (JAG), the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), 
contributions and conference revenue to provide trai ning for police agencies throughout the state. 
(Pursuant to the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and the American 
Recovery aJId Reinvestment Act of2009, Public Law 111-5, (the "Recovery Act"» 

Fire Protection Fund - To account for State revenues received pursuant to the Fire Protection 
Fund Law, NMSA 59A-53- 1-1 9. Expenditures from this fund may be used fo r the purchase, 
construction, operating, aJld maintenance of fire stations, except for the station 's water suppl y 
system; fire apparatus and equipment ; the payment of insurance premiums on the above; and for 
insurance premiums for injuries or death of firefi ghters. 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Fund - To account for State revenues received to the 
Emergency Medical Services Fund Act, 24-1 OA-I-I O. Expenditures from thi s fund may be used 
for the establishment of emergency med ical services; to acquire emergency medical services 
vehicles, equipment and supplies; and for training and licensing of local emergency management 
services persOlUlel. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Cont' d) 

DWI Program Fund - To account fo r State revenues received pursuant to NMSA 7-1-6. 1. 
Expenditures from thi s fund may be used fo r only alcohol treatment and rehabilitation se rvices 
for street inebriates. 

Summer Lunch Program Fund - To account for the US Department of Agriculture's Summer 
Food Service Program (SFSP) administered through the Children Youth and Families 
Department of the State of New Mexico. The New Mex ico SFSP is the single largest federa l 
resource availab le for local organizations that want to combine a lunch program with a summer 
activity program fo r children. The SFSP provides free, nutritious meals and snacks to help 
children in low-income areas get the nutrition throughout the summer months when they are out 
of school. (Richard B. Russe ll National School Lunch Act, Section 9, 13, and 14, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. 175 8, 176 1 and 1762a) 

Recovery ARRA EECBG Fund - To account for the U.S. Department of Energy's Energy 
Effi ciency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) under the 2009 American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) to be used to develop and implement a City Energy & Sustainabi li ty 
Plan, develop a Comprehensive Bicycle/Pedestrian Transportation Master Plan, to purchase and 
install equipment fo r Server Vil1ualization, and Consolidation, to provide bui lding inspection 
training, to do bui lding lighting retrofits and to put a cool roof on the Santa Ana Star Center. 

Public Safety Grants Fund - To account fo r the following state intergovernmental and federal 
grants: Operation DWl, Operation Buckle Down, Community D WI, Selective Tratlic 
Enforcement Project (STEP), NM Gang Task Force (NMGTF) (Pursuant to Traffic Safety Act, 
NMSA 1978 Sections 66-7-50 I to 51 1, as amended and the Anti -Drug Abuse Act 1998, PL 100­
690, Title VI, Subtitle C.), and Enhanced 9 11 Grant (Pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 63-9D-I ). 

Environmental Gross Receipts Tax Fund - To account for municipal gross receipts tax revenues 
received to be used for the acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of so lid waste 
facilities, water facilities , sewer systems, and related fac ilities. (Pursuant to NMSA, 1978 section 
7- 19D-17.) 

Higher Education Gross Receipts Tax Fund - To account for municipal gross receipts tax 
revenues received to be used for the acquisition, construction, renovation or improvement of 
fac ilities of a four-year post-secondary public education institution located in the municipality 
and acquisition of or improvements to land for those facilities or payment of municipal Il igher 
education fac il ities gross receipts tax revenue bonds issued. (Pursuant to Chapter 3, Article 31 
NMSA 1978) 

Municipal Road Fund - To account for revenues received from the levy of a tax per gallon of 
gaso li ne purchased within City boundaries, pursuant to the County and Municipal Gasoline Tax 
Act, NMSA 7- 1-6.9. Expenditures from this fund may be used fo r the construction of a street, 
all y, curb, gutter or sidewalk projects. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Concl'd) 

Recreation Development Fund - To account for revenues received for the construction of park 
facilities. This fund is also used to account for transfers from the General Fund, grants and 
donations for the development and construction of park facilities. (Provided for by City Budget 
Resolution.) 

HUD - CDBG Fund - To account for CDBG grant funds received to prepare an action plan to 
address issues of low to moderate-income residents. (Title J, Housing & Comm. Dev. Act, PL 
92-383.) 

Crime Victims Assistance Fund - To account for Federal funds used towards the advocacy for 
victims of all crimes. (Pursuant to the Victims of Crime Act of 1984.) 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: 

General Obligation Bonds Fund - To account for the debt servIce of Library Series 2004, 
Aquatics Series 2006, and Roads Series 2009. 

Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2005 Fund - To account for the debt service of the 
New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005. 

Gross Receipts Tax Refund Loan Fund - To account for the debt service resulting from Gross 
Receipts Tax Refund Loan, Series 2010. 

HP Loan Fund - To account for the debt service resulting from Gross Receipts Tax Revenue 
Loan, Series 2009. 

HS Loan Fund - To account for the debt service resulting from Gross Receipts Tax Revenue 
Loan, Series 2009. 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS: 

Capital Projects Fund - To account for City facility construction and building improvements 
from General Fund transfers and intergovernmental grants. 

HP inFastructure Fund - To account for Central Business District infrastructure improvement 
projects including water, wastewater and roads within the governmental unit. 

HS infrastructure Fund - To account for infrastructure for the completion of the extension of 
Paseo del Volcan and the completion of the infrastructure pertaining to the new Rio Rancho 
High School within the governmental unit. 

fnjiYISlructure Fund - To account for capital (primarily infrastructure) acquisition, construction 
and repair from General Fund transfers and intergovernmental grants. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


CAPIT AL PROJECT FUNDS (Concl'd) 

ARRA Stimulus Roads Fund - To account for revenues received from American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009 agreement with the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation (NMDOT) to construct Paseo del Volcan Phase 11 from Iris to US Hi ghway 550. 

State Appropriation Capital Projects Fund - To account for state appropriation capital 
expenditures approved by the State of New Mexico. 

Bond Construction 2004 Librmy Fund - To account for proceeds received for construction of 
Loma Colorado site Library. 

Bond Construction 2006 Aquatics Fund - To accowlt for proceeds received for construction of 
an Aquatic Center. 

Bond Construction 2009 Roads Fund - To account for proceeds received for construction 
various road projects. 

Road impact Fees Fund - To account for impact fees under Sections 5-8- 1 through 5-8-42 
NMSA 1978 (The Development Fees Act) for the purpose of providing new or enlarged roads, 
equipment and capital improvements which substantially benefit those developments which pay 
the impact fee s. 

Trails Impact Fees Fund - To account for impact fees under Sections 5-8-1 through 5-8-42 
NMSA 1978 (The Development Fees Act) for the purpose of providing new or enlarged 
bikeways, capital improvements, trails, and equipment which substantially benefit those 
developments which pay the impact fees. 

Parks Impact Fees Fund - To account for impact fees under Sections 5-8- 1 through 5-8-42 
NMSA 1978 (The Development Fees Act) for the purpose of providing new or enlarged parks, 
equipment and capital improvements, which substantially benefit those developments which pay 
the impact fees. 

Public Safety Impact Fees Fund - To account for impact fees under Sections 5-8-1 through 5-8­
42 NMSA 1978 (The Development Fees Act) for the purpose of providing public safety, capital 
improvements and equipment. 

Drainage impact Fees Fund - To account for impact fees under Sections 5-8-1 through 5-8-42 
NMSA 1978 (The Development Fees Act) for the pW'pose of providing a conveyance system 
adequate to accommodate the design storm from the farthest upstream property or City boundary 
to the receiving waters of the Rio Grande river. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 


COMB INING BALANCE S H EET - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL R EVENlJE FlJNDS 


JlJNE 30, 20 12 


Keep Rio 

Rancho 

Recreation Recreation Beautiful Grant 

Donations Fund Activ ities Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 37,950 $ 199,728 $ 48 ,052 $ 
Accounts receivable 

Due fro m federa l government 

Due from state government 

Due from county governm ent 

22,728 

Res tri cted investments 
Total assets $ 37,950 $ 199,728 $ 48,052 $ 22,728 

LIABILITIES AND FlJND BALANC ES 

Liabi lities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payro ll 

Accrued interest payabl e 

Due to other fund s 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

$ 364 

364 

$ 14,68 1 

2, 156 

16,837 

$ $ 

2,676 

19,978 

22,654 

Fund balances (defi cits): 

Non-spendable 

Restri cted 

Committed 
Ass igned 

Unassigned 
Tota l fund balances 

37,586 

37,586 

182,89 1 

182,89 1 

48,052 

48,052 

74 

74 

Total li ab ilities find fund balances $ 37,95 0 $ 199,728 $ 48,052 $ 22,728 
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Community 
Response 

Program Fund 

$ 

4,392 

$ 4,392 

Workers 
Compensation 

Fund 

$ 653,538 

$ 653,538 

Senior Services 
Fund 

$ 25,752 

296 

$ 26,048 

Library Fund 

$ 3 14,00 1 

250,305 

$ 564,306 

Promot ion and 
Market ing Fund 

$ 

$ 

57, 18 1 

57, 18 1 

Rio Rancho 
Convention & 

V isitors Bureau 

$ 

$ 

Fund 

3 1,65 I 

10,000 

41 ,65 1 

$ 752 

3,640 

4,392 

$ 6 1,984 

6 1,984 

$ 650 

296 
946 

$ 8,896 

8,896 

$ 5,28 1 
2, 189 

7,470 

$ 500 
7,886 

8,386 

59 1,554 25, 102 555 ,41 0 49,711 33 ,265 

59 1,554 25,102 555,4 10 49,711 33 ,265 

$ 4,392 $ 653 ,538 $ 26,048 $ 564,306 $ 57, 18 1 $ 4 1,65 1 

(Conti nued) 
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C ITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COM BI NING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUN DS 


JUNE 30, 2012 

(Co ntinued) 


Local 
Government Law DPS 

Rio Vi sion Correction s Enforcement Enforcement 
Cable Fund Fund Fund Aid Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and in ves tments $ 32,335 $ 63, 183 $ 13,323 $ 15, 10 1 
Accou nts receivable 27,752 
Du e from federal government 
Due frol11 state governm ent 
Due frol11 co unty government 

Restricted investments 
Total assets $ 60,087 $ 63, 183 $ 13,323 $ 15, 10 I 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilit ies: 

Acco unt s payable $ 10,292 $ 37,252 $ 4,714 $ 275 
Accrued payroll 

Acc ru ed interest payable 429 
Due to other fu nds 
Deferred revenue 2,580 

Total liabilities 10.292 37,252 5, 143 2,855 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Non-spend able 
Res tri cted 25,931 8, 180 12,246 
Committed 49,795 
Ass igned 
Unass igned 
Total fund balances 49,795 25,931 8, 180 12,246 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 60,087 $ 63 ,183 $ 13,323 $ 15, 10 I 
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Traffi c 
Education and 
Enforcement 

Aid Fund 

$ 33 ,850 

NM Gang Task 
Force Grant 

Fund 

$ 

130,904 

Fire Protecti on 
Fund 

$ 42,092 

Emergency 

Medical 
Serv ices Fund 

$ 4,416 

OWl Program 

Fund 

$ 228,374 

Summer Lunch 
Program Fund 

$ 89,357 

$ 33,850 $ 130,904 $ 
152, 12 1 
194,2 13 $ 4,416 $ 228,374 $ 89,3 57 

$ $ 5,377 
3,166 

91,214 

99.757 

$ 

9,556 

9.556 

$ $ $ 53,016 
3,72 1 

32,582 
89,3 19 

33,850 31 , 147 184,657 4,416 228,374 38 

33,850 3 1,147 184,657 4,4 16 228,374 38 

$ 33 ,850 $ 130,904 $ 194,2 13 $ 4,416 $ 228,374 $ 89,357 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

CO MBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2012 

(Concluded) 

Higher 

Environmental Education 

ARRA EEC BG Public Safety Gross Receipts G ross Receipts 

Fund Grants Fund Tax Fund Tax Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and in vestments $ $ $ 1,30 I ,605 $ 3,489,55 1 

Accounts receivable 

Due from federa l government 17,295 203,833 

Due from state government 44,814 111 ,65 1 361,241 

Due from county government 

Restricted investments 339,000 
Total assets $ 17,295 $ 248,647 $ 1,752,256 $ 3,850,792 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payro ll 

Accrued interest payable 

Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

$ 14,000 

3,295 

17,295 

$ 2,479 

13,372 

234,023 

249,874 

$ 16,434 

1,388 

17,992 

35,814 

$ 

Fund balances (deficits): 

Non-spendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Ass igned 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
( 1,227) 

(1 ,227) 

1,716,442 

1,71 6,442 

3,850,792 

3,850,792 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 17,295 $ 248,647 $ 1,752,256 $ 3,850,792 
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Munic ipal Road 
Fund 

Recreation 
Developme nt 

Fund 
HUD - CD BG 

Fu nd 
Crime Victims 

Assistance Fund Totals 

$ 

$ 

365 ,276 

46,586 

4 11 ,862 

$ 127,91 1 

$ 127,911 

$ 

$ 

163 ,558 

163 ,558 

$ 

$ 

13,591 

13,59 1 

$ 

$ 

7, 174,227 
27 ,752 

53 3,573 
597,316 
250,305 
491 , 121 

9,074,294 

$ 61 ,906 

61 ,906 

$ 5,993 

5,993 

$ 62,089 

101 ,469 

163 ,558 

$ 
1,8 19 

11 ,772 

13,59 1 

$ 366,935 
38,373 
27,977 

465 ,39 1 
35,458 

934, 134 

349,956 12 1,918 8,054 ,006 
87,38 1 

349,956 12 1,918 
( 1,227) 

8, 140, 160 

$ 41 1,862 $ 127,9 11 $ 163 ,558 $ 13,59 1 $ 9,074,294 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBI NING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 


JUNE 30, 20 12 


Gross Receipts 
General Tax Revenue Gross Rece ipts 

Ob ligati on Bonds Seri es Tax Refund 
Bonds Fund 2005 Fund Loa n Fund HP Loan Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 3,347,539 $ 185,441 $ 2,665 $ 61,338 
Propert y ta xes receivab le 346,37 1 
Due from state government 285,454 60,570 67,962 

Total assets $ 3,693,9 10 $ 470,895 $ 63 ,235 $ 129,300 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabil it ies: 

Accrued interest payable 

Deferred revenue 
Total liabilities 

$ 35 1,666 
296,725 
648,391 

$ 61,58 1 

61,581 

$ 1,225 

1,225 

$ 17,721 

17,721 

Fu nd balances: 

Non-spendable 
Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 
Total fund balances 

3,045 ,5 19 

3,045,5 19 

409,3 14 

409,314 

62,0 10 

62,010 

111 ,579 

111 ,579 

To tal liabilities an d fund balances $ 3,693,9 10 $ 470,895 $ 63 ,235 $ 129,3 00 
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HS Loan Fund 

$ 18,642 

75,702 
$ 94,344 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

3,615,625 
346,371 
489,688 

4,45 1,684 

s 16,602 

__----'1.:06,"'­60"'2:.... 

$ 448 ,795 
296,725 

745,520 

77,742 3,706, 164 

__----'7-'-'7,"­74.:.:2:.... 

$ 94,344 $ 

3,706, 164 

4,451 ,684 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


HP HS 
Capital Proj ects In frastructure Infrastructure Infrastructure 

Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and in vestments $ 19,573 $ 280,998 $ 118 ,9 18 $ 

Du e fr om federal government 4,3 18,976 
Due from state government 395,409 
Du e frolll other funds 51 ,008 

Total assets $ 19,573 $ 280,998 $ 118,9 18 $ 4,765 ,393 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Li ab ilit ies: 

Accou nts payable 

Due to other funds 
Deferred revenu e 

Total liabilities 

$ $ $ 38,548 

38,548 

Fund balances (defic its): 
Non-spendable 
Restri cted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Unass igned 
Total fund balances 

19,573 

19,573 

280,998 

280,998 

80,3 70 

80,370 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 19,573 $ 280,998 $ 11 8,918 

$ 842,656 
3,934,597 

358,964 
5, 136,2 17 

(370,824) 
(370,824) 

$ 4,765,393 
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ARRA Stimulus 
Roads Fund 

State 
Ap propriati on 

Capital Projects 
Fund 

Bond 
Constru cti on 
2004 Library 

Fund 

Bond 
Constru ct ion 

2006 Aquatics 
Fund 

Bond 
Construction 
2009 Roads 

Fund 
Road Impact 

Fees Fund 

$ 

5 1,008 

$ 5 1,008 

$ 

$ 

152, 184 

152, 184 

$ 

$ 

$ 6,569 

$ 6,569 

$ 1,5 10,332 

3,934 ,597 
$ 5,444 ,929 

$ 1,476,394 

$ 1,476,394 

$ 

51,008 
$ 

190,028 
$ $ $ 231 ,988 $ 

5 1,008 190,028 23 1,988 

6,569 5,212,941 1,476,394 

(37,844) 
(37,844) 6,569 5,212,94 1 1,476,394 

$ 5 1,008 $ 152 , 184 $ $ 6,569 $ 5,444,929 $ 1,476,394 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 


JUNE 30, 2012 

(Concluded) 


ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Due from federal government 
Due from state government 
Due from other fund s 

Total assets 

Public Safety Drainage 
Trai l Impact Park 1mpact 1m pact Fees lmpact Fees 

Fees Fund Fees Fund Fund Fund 

$ 163 ,574 $ 474,397 $ 2 13,904 $ 861 , 119 

$ 163 ,574 $ 474,397 $ 2 13,904 $ 861 , 119 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabi lit ies: 
Accou nts payabl e 
Due to oth er fund s 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabi lities 

$ $ 9,808 

9,808 

$ $ 4,465 

49, 11 5 

53,580 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Non-spendable 
Restri cted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Unassigned 
Totnl fund ba lances 

163 ,574 

163,574 

464,589 

464,589 

2 13,904 

213,904 

807,539 

807,5 39 

TOhliliabilities and fund ba lances $ 163 ,5 74 $ 474,3 97 $ 213,904 $ 86 1, 119 
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Totals 

$ 5, 125,778 
4,3 69,984 

547,593 
3,985,605 

$ 14,028,960 

$ 1, 127,465 
4,175,633 

408,079 
5,7 11 , 177 

8,726,45 1 

(408,668) 
8,3 17,783 

$ 14,028,960 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COI\'lBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITillrnS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­


NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Illtergovemmcntai federal 
lntergovenuncntal state 
Intergovenunental county 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Franchise fees 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Donations Fund 

$ 

30,403 
580 

14,358 
24 

45 ,3 65 

Recreation 
Activities Fund 

$ 

254,498 

97 

254,595 

Recreation Fund 

$ 

39 

39 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General govemmcnt 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 

Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fi scal charges 
Total expenditures 

35, 11 0 

4,533 

39,643 

193,946 

27,642 

221 ,588 

10,934 

10,934 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,722 33,007 (10,895) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(20,463) 
(20,463) 

Change in fund balances 5,722 12,544 (10,895) 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 31,864 170,347 58 ,947 

Fund balances (deficits), end of year $ 37,586 $ 182,89 1 =$===4=8~, 0=52~ 

Page 108 



Keep Rio 
Rancho Conununity Workers 


Beautiful Grant Response Compensation Senior Services Promotion and 

Fund Program Fund Fund Fund Library Fund Marketulg Fund 


$ $ $ $ $ $ 

18,272 


65,69 1 7,828 140,094 

250,305 


16,797 103,766 


822 
1,184 14 1,242 18 

2,750 552,59 1 
68,441 18,272 553,775 25,461 39 1,641 103,784 

589,824 

17,733 


63,502 18,001 489,322 
176,791 

63 ,502 17,733 589,824 18,00 1 489,322 176,791 

4,939 539 (36,049) 7,460 (97,681) (73,007) 

108,794 

108,794 

4,939 539 (36,049) 7,460 (97,681) 35 ,787 

(4,865) (539) 627,603 17,642 653,09 1 13,924 

$ 591 ,554 $ 25 ,102 $= 74 $======= 555,4 10 =$===4=9"",7=1=1$======~ =

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


(Continned) 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Intergovenul1cntal federal 
Intergovernmental state 
Intergovernmental county 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Franchise fees 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Rio Rancho 
Convention & 

Visitors Bureau 
Fund 

$ 33 1,775 

10,000 

27 
5,250 

347,052 

$ 

Rio Vision 
Cable Fund 

825 

115,349 

34 

11 6,208 

Local 
Government 

Corrections Fund 

$ 

233,774 

31 

233,805 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General government 
Public safety 
Public v,'orks 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 

Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interes t and fiscal charges 
Total expenditures 

37 1,084 

37 1,084 

143,992 

13,019 

157,011 

306,794 

306,794 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (24,032) (40,803) (72 ,989) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

31 ,219 

31,219 

90,200 

90,200 

Change in fund balances 7,187 (40,803) 17,2 11 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 26,078 90,598 8,720 

Fnnd balances (deficits), end of year $ 33,265 $ 49,795 ", """" 3,,,,$===,25,9",,1 
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Law 
Enforcement 

Fund 

$ 

99,600 

DPS 
Enforcement Aid 

Fund 

$ 
36,724 

Traffic 
Educa tion and 

Enforcement Aid 
Fund 

$ 

NM Gang Task 
Force Grant Fund 

$ 
239,245 

Fire Protection 
Fund 

$ 

57 1,128 

Emergency 
Medica l Services 

Fund 

$ 

19,923 

25 

99,625 

23 
784 

37,53 1 

80,292 

32 

80,324 

4 ,850 

38,460 
282,555 

188 
155,574 
726,890 

5 

19,928 

43 ,043 30,404 53 ,126 271,492 367,505 4 ,893 

53,341 
2,995 

99,379 30,404 

29,760 

82,886 271,492 

17,665 

131 ,377 
59,384 

575,93 1 

10,669 

15,562 

246 7,127 (2,562) 11 ,063 150,959 4,366 

10,000 
(10,000) 

246 

7,934 

7, 127 

5, 119 

(2,562) 

36,4 12 

11 ,063 

20,084 

150,959 

33,698 

4,366 

50 

$ 8,180 $ 12,246 $ 33,850 $ 31, 147 $ 184,657 =$===4,,=,4=1=6 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

NON·MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


(Continued) 

Revenues : 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Intergove11lmental federal 
Intergovernmental state 
Intergovernmental county 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Franchise fees 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

DWI Program 
Fund 

$ 228,250 

124 

228,374 

SUDU11er Lunch 
Program Fund 

$ 
11 4,797 

39 

114,836 

ARRA EECBG 
Fund 

$ 
54,380 

54,380 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General govemment 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 

Capita l outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total expcnditttres 

114,798 

114,798 

54,380 

54,380 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 228,374 38 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Change in fund balances 228,374 38 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 

Fund balances (deficits), end of year $ 228,374 =$=======3=8 =$====== 
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Public Safety 
Grants Fund 

Environmental 
Gross Receipts 

Tax Fund 

Higher 
Education Gross 

Receipts Tax 
Fund 

Municipal Road 
Fund 

Recreation 
Deve lopment 

Fund 
HUD- CDBG 

Fund 

$ 
622,250 
355,576 

$ 664,22 1 $ 2, 137,526 $ 524,122 

4,792 

$ 

11 ,969 

$ 
408,582 

977,826 

18,233 
777 

683 ,23 1 

2,259 

2, 139,785 

657 
13,202 

542 ,773 

24 
1,280 

13,273 408,582 

947,366 
1,172,887 

39,696 

1,513,000 

449,634 
10,639 

33 1,063 

29,565 (65,911) 145,255 83,7 10 77,519 

976,931 

227,92 1 
111 ,393 

1,485,986 1,5 13,000 594,889 94,349 408,582 

895 (802,755) 626,785 (52, 11 6) (8 1,076) 

17,364 74,057 

17,364 74,057 

895 (785,391) 626,785 (52, 11 6) (7,019) 

(2, 122) 2,50 1,833 3,224,007 402,072 128,937 

$ (1 ,227) $ 1,7 16,442 $ 3,850,792 $ 349,956 $ 121,918 =,$~==== 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE F UNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Intergovenunental federal 
Intergovenunental state 
Intergovernmental county 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Franchise fees 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General govenunent 
Public safety 

Public works 

Culture and recreation 

Economic development 


Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 

Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing som'ces (uses) 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 

Fund balances (deficits), end of year 
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(Conclnded) 

Crime Victims 
Assistance Fund Totals 

$ 
43 ,691 

43 ,691 

$ 3,885,894 
1,537,94 1 
1,269,840 

262,274 
644,855 

80,872 
11 5,349 
38,263 

6,863 
769,89 1 

8,6 12,042 

47,263 
2, 157,204 
2,124,729 
1,953,584 
1,089,363 

547,875 
368,893 

47,263 

412,639 
173,772 

8,828,059 

(3,572) (216,017) 

3,572 

3,572 

335,206 
(30,463) 
304,743 

88,726 

8,05 1,434 

$ $ 8,140, 160 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Gross Receipts 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

General 
Obligation 
Bonds Fund 

$ 3,480,946 

459 
3,481,405 

Tax Revenue 
Bonds Series 

2005 Fund 

$ 
1,492,167 

187 
1,492,354 

Gross Receipts 
Tax Refund 
Loan Fund 

$ 
74,477 

3 
74,480 

Expenditures: 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fisca l charges 
Total expenditures 

3,700,000 
92 1,870 

4,62 1,870 

585,000 
796,61 5 

1,38 1,615 
15,41 9 
15,4 19 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1 ,140,465 ) 11 0,739 59,061 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
5,513 
5,5 13 

Change in fund balances (1 ,134,952) 110,739 59,061 

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,180,47 1 298,575 2,949 

Fund balances, end of year $ 3,045 ,519 $ 409,314 ="$====6=2,,,,0~1=0 
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HI' Loan Fund HS Loan Fund Totals 

$ 
428,928 

164 

$ 
100,654 

48 

$ 3,480,946 
2,096,226 

86 1 
429,092 100,702 5,578 ,033 

185,000 205,000 4,675,000 
222,496 2 14,807 2,171,207 
407,496 4 19,807 6,846,207 

2 1,596 (319, 105) 

362,522 368,035 
362,522 368 ,035 

2 1,596 43 ,417 (900,139) 

89,983 34,325 4,606,303 

$ 111 ,579 $ 77, 742 ~$~==3',=70=6~,1=6=4 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEX1CO 
COMBIN ING STATEMENT OF I~ EVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Il.cvcnucs: 

Intergovernment al federal 

Inte rgovernmental state 

Impact fees 

Investment inco me 

Other revenues 

Total revenu es 

Capital Projects 
Fund 

$ 

6 

6 

HI' 

Infrastructure 

Fu nd 

$ 

46 

46 

HS 
In frastru cture 

Fund 

$ 

59 

59 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Public works 

Culture and recreation 

Capital outl ay 

Total expenditures 
10,433 
10,433 

5 1,094 
5 1,094 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ovcr' expenditures ( 10,427) 46 (5 1,035) 

Other finan cing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other tinancin g sources (uses) 
(33 ,978) 
(33,978) 

(362,522) 
(362,522) 

Changes in fund bahlllccs (44 ,405) 46 (41 3,557) 

Fund balances (de fi cits), beginning of yea ." 63,978 280,952 493 ,927 

Il.cstatcment 

Fund balances (defi cits), beginnin g or yea r as restated 63,978 280,952 493,927 

Fund balances (defici ts), end or year $ 19,5 73 $ 280,998 $ 80,370 

Page 118 



ln frastru cture 
Fund 

ARRA Stimulu s 
Road s Fu nd 

State 
Approp ri at ion 

Cap ital Projects 
Fund 

Bond 
Construction 
2004 Library 

Fund 

Bond 
Construction 

2006 Aquat ics 
Fund 

Bond 
Constructi on 
2009 Road s 

Fund 

$ 5,058,204 
36,445 

$ $ 

26 1,825 
$ $ $ 

14 
69,344 

5,164,007 26 1,825 

1,246 

1,246 

18,983 

4,520,440 
4,539,423 

1,588 
265 ,871 
267,459 

5,501 
5,50 I 

733 ,222 

1,293 ,481 
2,026,703 

624,584 (5,634) (5 ,50 I) (2,025 ,457) 

100 ,000 

100,000 
(5,5 13) 
(5,5 13) 

(34,591 ) 
(34,591 ) 

624,584 94,366 ( 11 ,0 14) (2 ,060,048) 

(2,469,524) (132,210) 11,0 14 6,569 7,272,989 

1,474 , 11 6 

(995 ,408) ( 132,2 10) 11 ,0 14 6,569 7,272,989 

$ (370,824) $ $ (37,844) $ $ 6,569 $ 5,2 12,941 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW M EXICO 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

(Concluded) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernm ental federal 

Intergovernm ental state 

Impact fees 

Investm ent income 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Road Impact 
Fees Fund 

$ 

142,339 
666 

143,005 

Trail Im pact 
Fees Fund 

$ 

10, 150 
27 

10, 177 

Park Impact 
Fees Fund 

$ 

52,798 
116 

52,9 14 

Expenditures: 

Current ­
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreat ion 

Capital outl ay 
Total expenditures 

1,569,184 
1,569,184 

189,585 
189,585 

Excess (deficiency) of .·evenues ove." expenditures ( 1,426,179) 10,177 ( 136,67 1 ) 

Other finan cing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other finan cing sources (uses) 
(2,734) 
(2,734) 

( 13 1) 
(13 I) 

( 1,132) 
(1 , 132) 

C hanges in fund ba lances ( 1,428,913) 10,046 ( \ 37,803) 

Fu nd balances (deficits), beginning of year 2,905,307 153 ,52 8 602,392 

Restatement 

Fund balances (deficits), beginnin g or year as restated 2,905 ,307 153 ,528 602,392 

Fund balances (deficits), e nd or year $ 1,476,3 94 $ 163,574 $ 464,589 
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Public Safety Drainage 

Impact Fees Impact Fees 
Fund Fund Tota ls 

$ $ $ 5,058,204 
298,270 

170,294 71 ,440 447,02 1 
93 164 2,437 

69,344 
170,387 71,604 5,875,276 

39,36 1 39,361 
22 ,159 774,364 

1,588 
50 I ,480 143,174 8,550,243 
540,84 1 165,333 9,365 ,556 

(370,454) (93 ,729) (3 ,490,280) 

34,59 1 134,59 1 
(5,053) (2,009) (447,663) 
(5,053) 32,582 (3 13,072) 

(375,507) (61 , 147) (3 ,803,352) 

589,41 1 868,686 10,647,019 

1,474, 116 

589,411 868,686 12 ,12 1,135 

S 213,904 $ 807,539 $ 8,317,783 
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DONATIONS FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Culture and recreation 

Total expenditures 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1,2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 35,000 
800 

5,600 

$ 35 ,000 
800 

7,300 

41 ,400 43,100 

64,262 
4,804 

69,066 

66,249 
6,504 

72,753 

(27,666) (29,653) 

29,945 33,91 8 

$ 2,279 $ 4,265 

Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 30,403 
580 

14,358 
24 

45,365 

$ (4,597) 
(220) 

7,058 
24 

2,265 

35 ,110 
4,533 

39,643 

31,139 
1,97 1 

33,110 

5,722 35,375 

31 ,864 (2,054) 

$ 37,586 $ 33,321 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES fN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - RECREATION ACTIVITIES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Bud eted Amounts Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Total revenues 

$ 

Original 

36 1,997 

361 ,997 

$ 

Final 

349,982 

349,982 

$ 

Actual 

254,498 
97 

254,595 

$ 

Positive 
(Negative) 

(95 ,484) 

Expenditures: 
Curren t ­

Culture and recreation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

380,505 

380,505 

407,8 14 
52,923 

460,737 

193,946 
27,642 

221 ,588 

213,868 
25 ,281 

239,149 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (110,755) 33 ,007 143,762 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 

Tot'al other financing sources (uses) 
(20,463) 
(20,463) 

(20,463) 
(20,463) 

Change in fund balances (38 ,97 I) (131,218) 12,544 143,762 

Fund balances, Jnly I, 2011 88,582 195,617 170,347 (25,270) 

Fund balances, Jnne 30, 2012 $ 49,61 I $ 64,399 $ 182,891 $ 11 8,492 

97 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - RECREA nON FUND 

YEAR EN DED JUN E 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current -

Cui hire and recreation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Change ill fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

$ 

Ori ginal 

$ 

Final 

2 

2 

(2) 

2 

10,944 

47,987 

58,93 1 

(58,93 1) 

58,931 

$ $ 

Actual 

$ 39 
39 

10,934 

10,934 

58,947 

$ 48,052 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

-"$ --: 9___ 3":'­
39 

47,987 

47,997 

48,036 

$ 48,052 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - KEEP RIO RANCHO BEAUTIFUL GRAi"T FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Intergovenunental state 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Cunent ­

Culture and recreation 
Total expenditures 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amouuts 

~---""- F-"iI" IO in la"-r,-,ig",,,,a,,-

$ 68,000 

68,000 

l ____ _~ 

$ 99,434 
2,750 

102,184 

---'-

66,580 
66,580 

70,750 
70,750 

1,420 31,434 

(1 ,420) (31 ,434) 

$ $ 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
~__'A=ct"'u... ~gative)a1'__~ 

$ 65,69 1 $ (33,743) 
2,750 

68,441 (33 ,743) 

63,502 7,248 
63 ,502 7,248 

4,939 (26,495) 

(4,865) 26,569 

$ 74 ~$===~74~ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET Al'lD ACTUAL - COMMUNITY RESPONSE PROGRAM FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 

Revenues: 
Intergovenm1entai federal 
Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 38,8 11 
38,8 11 

S 

Actual 

18,272 
18,272 

-"

Final Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

S'--_-"(2"'0"",5"'3e.29) 
(20,539) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 

Total expenditures 
34,129 
34, 129 

17,733 
17,733 

16,3 96 
16,3 96 

Change in fund balances 4,682 539 (4,143) 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 (4,682) (539) 4,143 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ S S $ 
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CITY OF RIO RAN C HO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - WORKERS COMPENSAnON FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 

Investment inco me 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amollnts 

Ori~j na l Final 

$ 

525,09 1 525,09 1 
525 ,09 1 525,091 

$ 

Actual 

1,184 
552,59 1 
553,775 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ne~ative) 

$ 1,184 
27,500 
28,684 

Expend itures : 

Current -
General government 

Total expenditures 

600,000 
600,000 

600,000 
600,000 

589,824 
589,824 

10, 176 
10, 176 

Changes in fund balances (74,909) (74,909) (36,049) 38,860 

Fu nd balances (deficits), beginning or year 627,603 627,603 627,603 

fund balances (deficits), end oryear $ 552,694 $ 552,694 $ 591 ,554 $ 38 ,860 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SENIOR SERVICES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmental state $ $ 12,426 $ 7,828 $ (4,598) 
Charges for services 29,289 29,289 16,797 (1 2,492) 
Contributions and donations 1,400 1,400 822 (578) 
Investment income 25 25 14 (1 1) 

Total revenues 30,714 43 ,140 25,46 1 (17,679) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Culture and recreation 38,939 46,194 18,00 I 28, 193 
Total expenditures 38,939 46,194 18,00 1 28,193 

Change in fund balances (8,225) (3 ,054) 7,460 10,514 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 25 ,241 20,070 17,642 (2 ,428) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 17,0 16 $ 17,0 16 $ 25 ,102 $ 8,086 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW IVlEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES Ai'lD 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - LIBRARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmental state 
Intergovemmental county 

Investment income 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

700,334 $ 79 1,328 
1,911 ,528 

700,334 2,702,856 

$ 

Actual 

140,094 
250,305 

1,242 
39 1,641 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (65 1,234) 
(1 ,661,223) 

1,242 
(2,311 ,215) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Culture and recreation 
Capita l outlay 

Total expenditures 

700,334 

700,334 

2,721 ,497 
400,000 

3,121 ,497 

489,322 

489,322 

2,232, 175 
400,000 

2,632,175 

Change in fund balances (41 8,641 ) (97,681) 320,960 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 195,828 676,369 653,091 (23,278) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 195,828 $ 257,728 $ 555,410 =$===29:=7"",6=8=2 
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CITY OF RJO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PROMOT ION AND MARKETING FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance \:vith 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

$ 

Original 

82,537 

82,537 

$ 

Final 

215,087 

215,087 

$ 

Actllal 

103,766 
18 

103,784 

$ 

Positive 
(Negative) 

( 11 1,32 1) 
18 

( III ,303) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Economic development 
Total expclldittucs 

155,245 
155,245 

363,564 
363 ,564 

176,79 1 
176,791 

186,773 
186,773 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (72,708) (148,477) (73,007) 75,470 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
60,290 
60,290 

108,794 
108,794 

108,794 
108,794 

Change in fund balances (12,4 18) (39,683) 35 ,787 75,470 


Fund balances, July 1,2011 12,41 8 39,768 13,924 (25,844) 


Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ 85 $ 49,7 11 $ 49,626 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHAL'\'GES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -iliO RANCHO CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 

Intergovemmcntal state 

Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

$ 

Bud geted Amounts 

Original Final 

35 1,709 $ 35 1,709 
2,500 12,500 

5 5 

354,2 14 364,2 14 

$ 

Actual 

33 1,775 
10,000 

27 
5,25 0 

347,052 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (1 9,934) 
(2,500) 

22 
5,250 

(1 7,162) 

Expcl1dihlres: 
Cun-ent ­

Economic development 

Total expenditures 
398, 194 
398, 194 

4 11 ,404 
411 ,404 

37 1,084 
37 1,084 

40,320 
40,320 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (43,980) (47, 190) (24,032) 23, 158 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 
31,2 19 
31,2 19 

31,219 
31,219 

31,2 19 
31,2 19 

Change in fund balances (1 2,76 1) (15 ,971) 7,187 23, 158 

Fuud balances, July 1, 2011 30,700 35,617 26,078 (9,539) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 17,939 $ 19,646 $ 33,265 $ 13,6 19 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANCES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDCET AND ACTUAL - IliO VISION CABLE FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Franchise fees 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 
129,729 121 ,349 

129,729 121 ,349 

$ 

Actual 

825 
115,349 

34 
116,208 

Variance with 

$ 

Final Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

825 
(6,000) 

34 
(5,141) 

Expenditures: 
Cun-ent ­

Culture and recreation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

155,001 

155,001 

159,8 15 
13 ,020 

172,835 

143,992 
13 ,019 

157,011 

15,823 
I 

15,824 

Change in fund balances (25,272) (5 1,486) (40,803) 10,683 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 50,047 60,941 90,598 29,657 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 24,775 $ 9,455 $ 49,795 $ 40,340 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALAl"lCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORRECTIONS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Total revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 186,000 $ 21 8,000 

186,000 21 8,000 

$ 

Actual 

233,774 
3 1 

233,805 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 15,774 
31 

15 ,805 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Total expenditures 

258,530 
258,530 

311 ,769 
311 ,769 

306,794 
306,794 

4,975 
4,975 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (93,769) (72,989) 20,780 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
90,200 
90,200 

90,200 
90,200 

90,200 
90,200 

Change in fund balances 17,670 (3 ,569) 17,211 20,780 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 ( 17,670) 29,959 8,720 (2 1,239) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ 26,390 $ 25,93 1 $ 459 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 


SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Bud~eted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posi tive 

Ori£inal Fina l Actual (Ne~ati ve) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental state $ 99,600 $ 99 ,600 $ 99,600 $ 

In vestment income 25 25 

Total "cvenucs 99,600 99,600 99,625 25 

Ex penditures: 

Current ­

Publi c safety 51,188 51 , 188 43 ,043 8, 145 

Debt service ­

Principal 53 ,34 1 53 ,341 53,34 1 

In terest and fi scal charges 3,500 3,500 2,995 505 

Totnl ex penditures 108,029 108,029 99,379 8,650 

Changes in fund balances (8,429) (8,429) 246 8,675 

Fund ba lances (deficits), beginning of year 8,439 8,439 7,934 (505) 

Fu nd balances (deficits), end oryear S 10 $ 10 $ 8, 180 $ 8, 170 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT URES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DPS ENFORCEMENT AID FUND 
YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental federal 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 15,000 $ 15,000 
1,000 1,000 

3,000 3,000 
19,000 19,000 

$ 

Actual 

36,724 

23 
784 

37,53 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 21,724 
(1 ,000) 

23 
(2,2 16) 
18,53 1 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Total expenditures 

39,862 
39,862 

40,050 
40,050 

30,404 
30,404 

9,646 
9,646 

Excess (deficiency) of revcllues over 
expenditures (20,862) (21,050) 7, 127 28, 177 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers Qut 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

10,000 
(10,000) 

10,000 
(10,000) 

Change in fund balances (20,862) (2 1,050) 7, 127 28, 177 

Fuud balances, July 1, 2011 30,299 31,278 5,119 (26,159) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 9,437 $ 10,228 $ 12,246 $ 2,01 8 
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CITY OF RlO RAl"CHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TRAFFIC EDUCATION AND ENFORCEMENT AID FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Fines and forfeits 
In vestment income 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ori gina l Final 

62,000 $ 62,000 

62,000 62,000 

Actua l 

$ 80,292 
32 

80,324 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

$ 18,292 
32 

18,324 

Expenditures: 
Current -

Public sa fety 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditUl'es 

95 ,339 

95339 

65 ,400 
30,000 
95,400 

53,126 
29,760 
82,886 

12,274 
240 

12,5 14 

Change in fund balances (33,400) (2,562) 30,838 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 33,562 37,222 36,412 (810) 

Fund bal:lllces, June 30, 2012 $ 3,822 $ 33,850 $ 30,028 
223 $======,=== ======='== ===~=== 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENU ES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NM GANG TASK FORCE GRANT FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmentai federa l 
Contributions and donations 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures : 
CU1Tent ­

Public safety 
Total expenditures 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 518,622 

52,000 
570,622 

18 ,522 
18,522 

(18,522) 

18,522 

415,976 
415,976 

154,646 

(145,872) 

$ $ 8,774 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual (Negative) 

$ 239,245 
4,850 

38 ,460 
282,555 

$ (279,377) 
4,850 

(13 ,540) 
(288,067) 

27 1,492 
27 1,492 

144,484 
144,484 

11,063 (143,583) 

20,084 165,956 

$ 31,147 $ 22,373 
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CITY OF IliO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FIRE PROTECTION FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance wi th 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
intergovenunentai state 

Investment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expendihlres: 
Current ­

Public safety 

Capital outlay 

Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fisca l charges 

Total expenditures 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

$ 57 1,122 $ 571 ,122 

57 1,122 
3,453 

574,575 

368,525 
25,000 

432 ,635 
22,000 

131,377 
60,573 

585,475 

131,377 
60,573 

646,585 

(14,353) (72,01 0) 

64,3 53 72,0 10 

$ 50,000 $ 

$ 57 1,128 
188 

155,574 
726,890 

$ 6 
188 

152, 121 
152,315 

367,505 
17,665 

65 ,130 
4,335 

131 ,377 
59,384 

575,93 1 
1,189 

70,654 

150,959 222,969 

33,698 (38 ,312) 

S 184,657 $ 184,657 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actua l 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmental state 
Investment il1 col11~ 

Total revenues 

$ 19,882 

19,882 

$ 19,882 

19,882 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public sa fety 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

19,932 

19,932 

9,5 10 
10,669 
20, 179 

Change in fund balances (50) (297) 

F uud balances, July 1,2011 50 297 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ 

$ 19,923 
5 

19,928 

$ 41 
5 

46 

4,893 
10,669 
15,562 

4,617 

4,617 

4,366 4 ,663 

50 (247) 

$ 4,416 $ 4,416 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXI'ENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET Ai'lD ACTUAL - OWl PROGRAM FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Municipa l and state shared taxes 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 


Total expenditnres 


Change in fund balances 

Fuud balances, July 1,2011 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

$ $ 228,250 

228,250 

$ 228,250 
124 

228,374 

$ 
124 
124 

228,250 
228,250 

228,250 
228,250 

228,374 228,374 

$ $ $ 228,374 =$===22:=8:;0,3=74= 
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CITY 01' RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REV ENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHAi'llGES IN FUND BALAl'lCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SUMMER LUNCH PROGRAM FUN D 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Posit ive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
lntergovemmentai federa l $ 116,500 $ 126,500 $ 11 4 ,797 $ ( 11 ,703) 
Investment income 39 39 

Total revenues 116,500 126,500 114,836 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Culture and recreation 171 ,836 220,425 114,798 105,627 


Total expenditures 17 1,836 220,425 11 4,798 105,627 


Change ill fund balances __----"== __----""'3"', 25 _ -=-8 93",,,,3(9 9-"0"') ___ 3"-. ___"-= ,96=­

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 55 ,336 93 ,925 (93,925) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ 38 ~ 8$====3",=
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT URES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACT UAL - ARRA EECBG FUND 

YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
_----'OrCJg~i~~'---___ Fu'"'a"'I__ _ _ A=ctu"",a,-I__ ~gative)~ i na I ----'-'

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental federal $ $ 83,416 $ 54,38 0 -.:'$'-----_-' ,0~3"l(2""9", 6) 

Total revenues 83 ,416 54,380 (29,036) 

Expenditures: 
C UiTent ­

General govemment 83 ,415 54,380 29,035 

Total expenditures 83 ,415 54,380 29,035 


Change in fund balances (I) 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 (I) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ $ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXlCO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovenunental federal 
lntergovemmental state 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

449,999 $ 1,693,350 
19,640 1,536,282 

469,639 3,229,632 

$ 

Actual 

622 ,250 
355,576 
977,826 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (1,071, I 00) 
(1 ,180,706) 
(2,25 1,806) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

469,639 

469,639 

2,297,040 
33,151 

2,330,191 

947,366 
29,565 

976,931 

1,349,674 
3,586 

1,353,260 

Change in fund balances 899,441 895 (898,546) 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1,2011 8 (899,433) (2,122) 897,311 

Fund balanccs (deficits), June 30, 2012 $ 8 $ 8 $ (1,227) $ (1,235) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ENVmONMENTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Contributions and donations 
Investment income 
Total revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ori ginal Final 

$ 650,000 $ 650,000 
18,232 18,232 

668,232 668,232 

$ 

Actual 

664,22 1 
18,233 

777 
683,23 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 14,22 1 
1 

777 
14,999 

Expenditures: 
Current -

Public works 
Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fi scal charges 

Total expenditures 

136,095 
39,574 

2 14,110 

227,92 1 
129,768 
747,468 

1,205,143 
39,58 1 

1,284,355 

227,921 
129,768 

2,886,768 

1,172,887 
39,696 

(65,9 11 ) 

227,92 1 
11 1,393 

1,485,986 

32,256 
(115) 

1,350,266 

18,375 
1,400,782 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (79,236) (2,2 18,536) (802,755) 1,41 5,78 1 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Tohll other financing sources (uses) 
17,364 
17,364 

17,364 
17,364 

Change in fund balances (2,20 I , 172) (785,39 1) 1,4 15,78 1 


Fuud balances, July 1,2011 123,449 2,250,378 2,501 ,833 25 1,455 


Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 44,213 $ 49,206 $ 1,7 16,442 $ 1,667,236 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HIGHER EDUCATION GROSS RECEIPTS TAX FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes $ 2,078,723 $ 2,078 ,723 $ 2,137,526 $ 58,803 
Investment income 2,259 2,259 
Total revenues 2,078,723 2,078,723 2,139,785 61 ,062 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

General government 4,078,723 4,078,723 1,513 ,000 2,565 ,723 
Capital outlay 250,000 250,000 

Total expenditures 4,078,723 4,328,723 I ,513 ,000 2,815,723 

Change in fund balances (2,000,000) (2,250,000) 626,785 2,876,785 

FUlld balauces, July 1, 2011 2,844,262 2,844,262 3,224,007 379,745 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 844,262 $ 594,262 $ 3,850,792 $ 3,256,530 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MUNICIPAL ROAD FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Municipal and state shared taxes 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

580,000 $ 530,000 
25 ,000 1,000 

50 50 
30,000 10,000 

635 ,050 541,050 

$ 

Actual 

524,122 
4,792 

657 
13 ,202 

542,773 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (5 ,878) 
3,792 

607 
3,202 
1,723 

Expendihues: 
Current -

Publ ic works 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

616,855 
70,000 

686,855 

699,28 1 
239,025 
938,306 

449,634 
145,255 
594,889 

249,647 
93 ,770 

343,4 17 

Change in fund balances (5 1,805) (397,256) (52,116) 345 ,140 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 121 ,805 436,256 402,072 (34,184) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 70,000 $ 39,000 $ 349,956 $ 310,956 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN D 


C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - RECREATION DEVELOPMENT FUND 
YEAR ENDED J U ' E 30, 201 2 

Revenues: 
Intergovel1l1nental county 
In vestment income 

Other revenues 
Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 12,000 

1,280 10,280 
1,280 22,280 

$ 

Actual 

11 ,969 
24 

1,280 
13,273 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (3 1) 
24 

(9,000) 
(9,007) 

Expenditures: 

Current ­
Culture and recreation 

Capita l outlay 
Total expenditures 

1,280 
55000 
56,280 

19,642 
206,533 
226,175 

10,639 
83,7 10 
94,349 

9,003 
122823 
131 ,826 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (203,895) (81 ,076) 122,8 19 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
55 ,000 
55 ,000 

74,057 
74,057 

74,057 
74,057 

Change in fund balances (129,838) 122,819 

Fund balances, Jnly 1, 2011 3,672 133 ,510 128 ,937 (4,573) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 3,672 $ 3,672 $ 12 1 9 18 $ 11 8,246 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HUD - CDBG FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Illtergovemmental federal 

Total revenues 
$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original 

301 ,475 $ 
301 ,475 

Final 

662,105 
662,105 

$ 

Actual 

408 , 5 82 
408,582 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

-,>$,-------,(",25~32::,5=-23eL) 
(253 ,523) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public works 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

301,475 

30 1,475 

489,665 
64,108 

553,773 

33 1,063 
77,519 

408,582 

158,602 
(13,4 11 ) 
145, 191 

Change in fund balances 108,332 (108,332) 

Fund balances (deficits), Jnly 1, 2011 (108,332) 108,332 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ $ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AL,\,D ACTUAL - CRIME VICTIMS ASSISTANCE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmental federa l 

Total revenues 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 34,400 $ 57,338 
34,400 57,338 

$ 

Actual 

43,691 
43 ,691 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ ( 13,647) 
(13 ,647) 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public safety 
Total expenditures 

42,0 11 
42,0 11 

57,322 
57,322 

47,263 
47,263 

10,059 
10,059 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (7,611) 16 (3,572) (3,588) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
7,6 11 
7,611 

7,61 1 
7,6 11 

3,572 
3,572 

(4,039) 
(4,039) 

Change ill fund balances 7,627 (7,627) 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 (7,627) 7,627 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ $ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 4,489,725 $ 3,383,164 $ 3,480,946 $ 97,782 
Investment income 459 459 
Other revenues 300 (3 00) 

Total revenues 4,489,725 3,383,464 3,481 ,405 97,941 

Expenditures: 
Debt service ~ 

Principal 3,700,000 3,700,000 3,700,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 1,315,205 1,315,205 92 1,870 393,335 

Total expenditures 5,015,205 5,015,205 4,62 1,870 393,335 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (525,480) (1,631,741 ) (1,140,465) 491,276 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
5,513 
5,513 

5,513 
5,513 

5,513 
5,513 

Change in fund balances (519,967) ( I ,626,228) (1,134,952) 491 ,276 

F und balances, July 1, 2011 4,519,094 4,519,094 4,180,471 (338,623) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 3,999, 127 $ 2,892,866 $ 3,045,519 $ 152,653 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANCES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDCET AND ACTUAL - CROSS RECEIPTS TAX REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2005 

Revenues: 

Mun icipal and state shared taxes 

Investment income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Debt service ­
Principal 

Interest and fi scal charges 

Total expenditures 


C hanges in fund balances 

Fund ba lances (deficits), beginning oryenr 

Fund balances (deficits), end of yca.­

FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Bud~eted Amounts 

$ 

Original 

1,448,056 

1,448,056 

$ 

Final 

1,448,056 

1,448,056 

585,000 

863,056 
1,448,056 

585,000 

863,056 
1,448,056 

120,672 120,672 

$ 120,672 $ 12U,672 

Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

(Neli,ative) 

$ 1,492 , 167 
187 

1,492,354 

$ 44, 111 

187 
44,298 

585,000 
796,615 

1,38 1,6 15 

66,441 
66,441 

110,739 110,739 

298,575 177,903 

$ 409,3 14 $ 288,642 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GROSS RECEIPTS TAX REFUND LOAN FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 

Muni cipal and state shared taxes 

In ves tment income 
Total revenues 

$ 

Bud~et ed Amounts 

Ori~inal Final 

16,687 $ 16,687 

16,687 16,68 7 

$ 

Actual 

74,477 

3 

74,480 

Variance with 

Fina l Budget 

Positive 
(Ne~ative) 

$ 57,790 

3 

57,793 

Expenditu r'cs: 

Debt serv ice ­

Interest and fi scal charges 

Total expenditures 
16,687 

16,687 

16,687 

16,687 

15 ,419 

15,419 

1,268 

1,268 

C hanges in fund b a lances 59,061 59,06 1 

Fund b~llallccs (deficits) , beginning oryear 1,393 1,393 2,949 1,556 

Fund balances (deficits), end oryear $ 1,393 $ 1,393 $ 62,010 $ 60,617 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

C HANG ES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL ­ HP LOAN FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Bud~eted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Ori~inal Final Actual (Ne€,ative) 

Revenues: 

Muni cipal and state shared taxes $ 43 3, 159 $ 433,159 $ 428,928 $ (4,23 1) 

Investment income 164 164 
Total revenues 433 , 159 433, 159 429,092 (4,067) 

Ex penditures : 

De bt service ­

Principal 185,000 185,000 185,000 
Interest and fi scal charges 248, 159 248, 159 222,496 25 ,663 
Total expenditures 43 3, 159 433,159 407,496 25,663 

C hanges in fund balances 21 ,596 2 1,596 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 36,099 36,099 89,983 53,884 

Fund ba lances (deficits), end o r year­ $ 36,099 $ 36,099 $ 111 ,579 $ 75,480 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HS LOAN FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Bud~eted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positi ve 
Original Final Actual (Ne~at i ve) 

Revenues: 

Mun ici pal and state shared taxes $ 24,952 $ 24 ,952 $ 100,654 $ 75,702 
In vestment income 48 48 

T ota l revenues 24,952 24,952 100,702 75,750 

Expcnditu,oes: 

Debt service ­
Principal 205,000 205,000 205,000 
Interest and fi scal charges 23 1,9 16 23 1,916 214 ,807 17,109 
Total expenditures 43 6,9 16 436,91 6 419,807 17, 109 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (4 11 ,964) (411 ,964) (3 19, 105) 92,859 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 362,522 362,522 362,522 
Tota l other financing sources (uses) 362,522 362,522 362,522 

C hanges in fund balances (49,442) (49,442) 43 ,41 7 92,859 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 5 1,432 5 1,432 34,325 ( 17, 107) 

Fund ba lances (deficits), end of year $ 1,990 $ 1,990 $ 77,742 $ 75,752 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Investment income 

Total revenues 
$ $ $ 6 

6 
$ 6 

6 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 
30,000 
30,000 

10,433 
10,433 

19,567 
19,567 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (30,000) (10,427) 19,573 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(33,978) 
(33 ,978) 

(33,978) 
(33,978) 

(33 ,978) 
(33 ,978) 

Change in fund balances (33 ,978) (63 ,978) (44,405) 19,573 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 33,978 63 ,978 63 ,978 

F und balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ 19,573 $ 19,573 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HP INFRASTRUCTURE F UND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Investment income 

Total revenues 
s 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ $ 

Actual 

46 
46 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

-"$_ _ _ -----'­4"­6 
46 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 
280,952 
280,952 

280,952 
280,952 

Change in fund balances (280,952) 46 280,998 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 280,952 280,952 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ $ $ 280,998 $ 280,998 

Page 159 



CITY OF RIO RAI'I'CHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HS IJ'IFRASTRUCTURE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Variance wi th 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual 

Revenues: 
Investment income $ $ $ 59 $ 59 
Total revenues 59 59 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 148, 170 5 1,094 97,076 

Total expenditures 148,170 51 ,094 97,076 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (148,170) (5 1 ,035) 97, 135 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (362,522) (362,522) 

Total ot her financing sources (uses) (362,522) (362,522) (362,522) 

Change in fund balances (362,522) (5 10,692) (41 3,557) 97,135 

Fund bulanccs, July 1, 2011 362,522 510,692 493,927 (16,765) 

Fund balances, Juue 30,2012 $ $ $ 80,370 $ 80,370 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXP ENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACT UAL -INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental federal 
Intergovemmental state 
Intergovernmental county 
Inves tment income 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 15,354,866 
1,397,220 

30,000 

68,920 
16,85 1,006 

$ 

Actual 

5,058,204 
36,445 

14 
69,344 

5, 164,007 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negati ve) 

$ (10,296,662) 
(1 ,360,775) 

(30,000) 
14 

424 
(1 1,686,999) 

Expenditures : 
Current ­

Public works 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

22,844 
10,876,195 
10,899,039 

18,983 
4,520,440 
4,539,423 

3,86 1 
6,355 ,755 
6,359,616 

Change in fund balances 5,95 1,967 624,584 (5,327,383) 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2011 29,890 (5,922,077) (995,408) 4,926,669 

Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2012 $ 29,890 $ 29,890 $ (370,824) $ (400,714) 

Page 161 



CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ARRA STIMULUS ROADS FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 
Change in fund balances 

Total revenues 

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 20ll 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) Original Final Actual 

$ 129,945 -=$'-----____ -=$,----------,C-,-,12""9-,,,,9--,­45,,-,) 
129,945 (129,945) 

(129,945) 129,945 

Fund balances, June 30,2012 $ $ $ $ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - STATE APPROPRIATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Revenues: 
Intergovenunental state 

Total revenues 
$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

(100,000) $ 635,245 
(100,000) 635,245 

$ 

Actual 

261,825 
261 ,825 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (373 ,420) 
(373,420) 

Expenditur"cs: 
Cunent ­

Culture and recreation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

(90,504) 
90,504 

1,588 
610,266 
611,854 

1,588 
265,871 
267,459 

344,395 
344,395 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (100,000) 23,391 (5,634) (29,025) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
100,000 
100,000 

100,000 
100,000 

100,000 
100,000 

Chnnge in fuud balances 123,39 1 94,3 66 (29,025) 

Fund balances (deficits), July I , 20]] (123,391) (132,210) (8,819) 

Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2012 $ $ $ (37,844) $ (37,844) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BOND CONSTRUCTION 2004 LIBRARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 

Total revenues 
$ 

Bud~eted Amounts 

Ori~ina l Final 

$ $ 

Actual 

Variance with 
Fina l Budget 

Posit ive 
(Negat ive) 

$ 

Expenditures: 

Capita l outl ay 
Total expenditures 

6,963 
6,963 

5,501 
5,501 

1,462 
1,462 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,963) (5,50 I) 1,462 

Other financin g sources (uses): 
Transfers out 
Total other" financing sources (uses) 

(5 ,5 13) 
(5,5 13) 

(5 ,5 13) 
(5,5 13) 

(5,513) 
(5,513) 

C hanges in fu nd ba lances (5,5 13) ( 12,476) ( 11,014) 1,462 

Fund ba lances (deficits), beginni ng of year 5,5 13 12,476 11 ,014 (1,462) 

Fu nd ba lances (deficits), end or year $ $ $ $ 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 


SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BOND CONSTRUCTION 2004 AQUATICS FUND 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Revenues: 

Total revenues 
$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ori~i na l Final 

$ $ 

Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posi tive 

(Nellat ive) 

$ 

Expenditures: 

Current-

Culture and recreation 

Capital ou tlay 

Total expenditures 

72,480 

72,480 

65 ,9 12 

6,568 

72,480 

65,912 

6,568 

72,480 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (72,480) (72,480) (72,480) 

Fund balances (deficits), beginning oryear 72,480 72,480 6,569 65,911 

Fund balances (deficits), end oryear $ $ $ 6,569 $ (6,569) 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BOND CONSTRUCTION 2009 ROADS FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Lnvestmellt income 
Total revenues 

$ 

Original 

$ 

Final 

$ 

Actual 

1,246 
1,246 

$ 

Positive 
(Negative) 

1,246 
1,246 

Expellditt.res: 
Current ­

Public works 
Capital outlay 

Total expendihlres 

733 ,222 
6,922 ,138 
7,655,360 

733,222 
1,293,481 
2,026,703 

5,628,657 
5,628,657 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (7,655,360) (2,025,457) 5,629,903 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(34,591 ) 
(34,591) 

(34,591 ) 
(34,591) 

Change in fund balances (7,689,951) (2,060,048) 5,629,903 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 2,439 7,692,390 7,272,989 (419,401) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 2,439 $ 2,439 $ 5,212,941 $ 5,210,502 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ROAD IMPACT FEES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Impact fees $ 386,525 $ 91 ,126 $ 142,339 $ 51 ,213 
Investment income 1,000 1,000 666 (334) 

Total revenues 387,525 92,126 143,005 50,879 

Expendittlres : 
Capital outlay 422,917 3,041 ,758 1,569,184 1,472,574 

Total expenditures 422,917 3,041 ,758 1,569,184 1,472,574 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (35,392) (2,949,632) (1 ,426,179) 1,523,453 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers out (11 ,596) (2,734) (2,734) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,596) (2,734) (2,734) 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 

(46,988) 

531 ,845 

(2,952,366) 

3,153 ,176 

(1 ,428,913) 

2,905,307 

1,523,453 

(247,869) 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 484,857 $ 200,810 $ 1,476,394 $ 1,275 ,584 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TRAIL IMPACT FEES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Impact fees $ 6,099 $ 4,356 $ 10,150 $ 5,794 
Investment income 10 30 27 (3) 

Total revenues 6,109 4,386 10,177 5,791 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 15,000 152 ,326 152,326 

Total expenditures 15,000 152,326 152,326 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditm"es (8,891) (147,940) 10,177 158,117 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (193) (13 1) ( 131) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (193) (131) (131) 

Change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 

(9,084) 

14,54 1 

(148,071) 

153 ,528 

10,046 

153,528 

158,117 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 5,457 $ 5,457 $ 163 ,574 $ 158,117 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PARK IMPACT FEES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
lmpact fees $ 81,770 $ 37,740 $ 52,798 $ 15,058 
Investment income 50 125 116 (9) 

Total revenues 81,820 37,865 52,9 14 15,049 

Expenditures: 
Capita l outlay 119,882 435,202 189,585 245,617 

Total expenditures 119,882 435,202 189,585 245,617 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (38,062) (397,337) (1 36,67 1) 260,666 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Transfers out (2,453) (1,132) (1,132) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,453) (1 ,132) (1 ,132) 

Change in fund balances (40,5 15) (398,469) (137,803) 260,666 

Fuud balances, July I , 2011 244,438 602,392 602,392 

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 203,923 $ 203,923 $ 464,589 $ 260,666 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PUBLIC SAFETY IMPACT FEES F UN D 
YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 

Budgeted Amoun ts 

Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

Revellues: 
Impact rees 
lnves tment income 

Total revenues 

$ 168,420 
50 

168,470 

$ 168,420 
100 

168,520 

$ 170,294 
93 

170,387 

$ 1,874 
7 

1,867 

Expenditures: 
Cun ent ­

Public safety 
Capita l ou tlay 

Total expenditures 
316,565 
316,565 

39,361 
650,752 
690, 11 3 

39,36 1 
50 1,480 
540,84 1 

149,272 
149,272 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (52 1,593) 151,139 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
(5,053) 
(5,053) 

(5,053 ) 
(5,053) 

Change in fund balances (526,646) (375,507) 151,139 

Fund balances, July I , 2011 220,080 593,628 589,411 (4,2 17) 

Fund balallces, JUlie 30, 2012 $ 66,932 $ 66,982 $ 213,904 $ 146,922 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 


CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DRAINAGE IMPACT FEES FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Revenlles: 
Impact rees 
Investment income 
Total revenues 

$ 

Origina l 

72,556 
200 

72,756 

$ 

Final 

66,975 
200 

67,175 

$ 

Actual 

71,440 
164 

71,604 

$ 

Posi tive 

4,465 
36 

4,429 

Expenditures: 
Current ­

Public works 
Cap ita l outlay 

Total expenditUl"es 

17,694 
775,019 
792,7 13 

22, 159 
143 ,174 
165 ,333 

(4,465) 
63 1,845 
627,380 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 72,756 (725,538) 63 1,809 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

34,591 
(2,009) 
32,582 

34,59 1 
(2,009) 
32 ,582 

Change in fund balances 70,579 (692,956) (61, 147) 63 1,809 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 135,822 899,357 868,686 (30,671) 

Fund balances, June 30,2012 $ 206,40 1 $ 206,401 $ 807,539 $ 601 ,138 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 


SCH EDU LE OF REVENUES, EX PENSES, AND C HANCES 


IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDCET AN D ACTUA L 


Revenues: 
Charges for serv ices - wate r 
Charges for serv ices - wastewater 
Interest on investments 
Intergovernmental federal 
Intergovernmental state 
Impact fees 
Loan Proceeds 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Operations 
Capital out lay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fisca l charges 

UTI LlTI ES FUN D 


YEA R EN DED J UN E 30, 2012 


Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 18,875 ,820 
13 ,574,700 

27,775 

345 ,665 

90,000 

$ 19,968,020 
13,574,700 

28, 100 
6,684,827 
5,202,248 

272, 108 
34,413,590 

497,500 

32,9 13,960 80,64 1,093 

19,954,681 
2,357,722 

2 1,230,497 
52,829,230 

6,4 12,356 
5,506,773 

6,557,356 
5,593,563 

Actual 

$ 2 1,748 ,781 
14, 122,874 

37,064 
(4,865,987) 
1,386,436 

39 1, 157 

10,469,564 
272,95 1 

43 ,562,840 

24,472,945 
20,698,244 

6,509,382 
5,832,272 

Variance with 

Final Budget 


Positive (Negative) 


$ 1,780,76 1 
548,174 

8,964 
( 11 ,550,8 14) 

(3,8 15,8 12) 
119,049 

(23,944,026) 
(224,549) 

(37,078,253) 

(3,242,448) 
32, 130,986 

47,974 
(238,709) 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures $ 

34,23 1,532 

(1,3 17,572) $ 

86,210,646 

(5,569,553) 

57,5 12,843 

(13 ,950,003) $ 

28,697,803 

(8,380,450) 

Revenues (expenses) not budgeted: 
Amort ization 
Depreciat ion 

Changes to conform to genera ll y'accepted accounting principles: 
Pri ncipal payment on bonds 
Loan proceeds 
Capita l contributions 
Cap ital outlay 

Changes in Net Assets as reported in the Sta tement of Revenues, Expenses 
a nd C han ges in Fund Net Assets 

63,554 
(5,4 12,426) 

6,509,382 
( 10,469,564) 

4,03 1,250 
20,698,244 

$ 1,470,437 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REYENUES, EXPENSES, AND CliANGES 


IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
MULTI-PURPOSE EVENT CENTER FUND 

YEAR ENDED JU 'E 30, 2012 

Budgeted A mounts 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
In terest on investments 
In tergovernmental 

Original 

$ 383,006 
7,500 

2,688,065 

Final 

$ 383,006 
7,500 

2,688,065 

$ 

Actual 

447,954 
100 

2,67 1, 184 

Variance wi th 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ 64,948 
(7,400) 

( 16,88 1) 

Total revenues 3,078,57 1 3,078,57 1 3, 11 9,238 40,667 

Expenditures : 
Operations 
Capital outlay 
Debt service ­

Principal 
Interest and fi scal charges 

84,493 

1,325,000 
1,669,078 

84,493 

1,3 25 ,000 
1,669,078 

105,557 

1,325,000 
1,545 ,877 

(2 1,064) 

123,20 1 

Total expenditures 3,078,57 1 3,078,57 1 2,976,434 102,137 

Excess of revenues ovcr (under) eX l)cnditures $ $ 142,804 $ 142,804 

Revenues (expenses) not budgeted: 
Amortization 
Depreciation 

(39,2 17) 
(884,3 0 I) 

Changes to conform to genera ll y accepted accounting principles: 
Pr incipal payment on bonds 

Capita l cont ri butions 
1,325,000 

45,580 

C han ges in Net Assets as reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Fund Net Assets $ 589,866 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


Health Self-Insurance - To account fo r revenues collected from employee/employer 
contributions fo r the purpose o f self funding health insurance administered by Presbyterian and 
Lovelace Health. 

Dental Self-Insurance - To account for revenues collected from employee/employer 
contributions for the purpose of self fund ing dental insurance administered by Delta Dental. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FU 'OS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


ASSETS 
Current assets : 

Cash and investments 
Total assets 

Health Self 
Insurance Fund 

$ 1,402,972 
1,402,972 

Dental Self 
Insurance Fund 

$ 102,729 
102,729 

$ 

Totals 

1,505,70 1 
1,505,70 1 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Claims payable 
Total liabilities 

$ 757,489 
757,489 

$ 74, 100 
74,100 

$ 83 1,589 
83 1,589 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 
645,483 

$ 645,483 
28,629 

$ 28,629 
674,112 

$ 674,112 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
COMB ININ G STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUN() NET ASSETS 

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUN()S 
FOR THE YEAR ENDE() J UNE 30, 2012 

Operating revenues: 

Charges for serv ices - other services 

Investment income 

Other revenue 

Total opel'ating reve nues 

Health Se lf 
Insurance Fund 

$ 5,194,049 
3,598 

60,373 
5,258,020 

Dental Self 
In surance Fund 

$ 454,063 
$ 69 

454, 132 

$ 

Totals 

5,648, 11 2 
3,667 

60,373 
5,7 12,152 

Operating expenses: 

Other services 
Total opel'ating expenses 

4,609, 166 
4,609,166 

455,870 
455,870 

5,065,036 
5,065,036 

Operating income (loss) 648,854 (1,738) 647, 11 6 

Income before capital contributions and 
transfers 648,854 (1 ,73 8) 647, 116 

C hange in net assets 648,854 (1,738) 647, 116 

Total net assets , beginning of yea r (3,37 1 ) 30,3 67 26,996 

Total net assets , cnd of year $ 645,483 $ 28,629 $ 674, 11 2 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, A '0 CHANGES 


IN FUN D NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

HEALTH SELF INSU RANCE FUND 


YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 


Budgeted Amounts 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
In vestment income 

Other revenue 

$ 

Original 

5,647,162 $ 

Final 

5,647, 162 

Actual 

$ 5, 194,049 
3,598 

60,373 

Total revenues 5,647, 162 5,647,162 5,258,020 

Expenditures : 
Operations 5,477,748 5,477,748 4,609, 166 

Total expend itures 5,477,748 5,477,748 4,609, 166 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures $ 169,4 14 $ 169,4 14 648,854 

Chllnges in Net Assets as reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Cha nges in Fund Net Assets $ 648,854 

Variance w ith 

Final Budget 

Pos iti ve (Negat ive) 

$ (453 , 11 3) 
3,598 

60,3 73 

(3 89, 142) 

868,582 

868,582 

$ 479,440 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SOIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 


IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

DENTAL SELF INSURANCE FUND 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


Budgeted Amounts 

ReVCIIUCS: 

Charges for services 
In vestment income 

Ori ~inal 

$ 494,280 

Fi nal 

$ 494,280 

Actual 

$ 454,063 
69 

Total revenues 494,280 494,280 454, 132 

Expenditures: 
Operations 494,280 494,280 455 ,870 

Total expenditures 494,280 494,280 455 ,870 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures $ $ (1,738) 

Changes in Net Assets as reported in the Statement of Revenues , Expenses 

and Changes in Fund Net Assets $ (1,738) 


Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ (40,2 17) 
69 

(40, 148) 

38,4 10 

38,4 10 

$ ( 1,738) 
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AGENCY FUND DESCRIPTIONS 


Rio Metro Fund - To account for Para-transit fees collected on behalf of Rio Metro and the 
reimbursement of bus maintenance costs associated with Rio Metro. 

Special Assessment District Operations Fund - To account for Special Assessment District 
administrative fees which may be used for collection or other expenditures related to the 
administration of Special Assessment Districts. 

Special Assessment District Vi[[ Bonds Fund - To account for funds held by the City as a paying 
agent of the special assessment district eight projects debt service. 

Special Assessment District Vi Bonds Fund - To accOlmt for funds held by the City as a paying 
agent of the special assessment district six projects debt service. 

Special Assessment District V[[ Bonds Fund - To account for funds held by the City as a paying 
agent of the special assessment di strict seven projects debt service. 

Special Assessment District V Bonds Fund - To account for funds held by the City as a paying 
agent of the special assessment di strict five projects debt service. 

Rio Rancho Economic Development Fund - To account for contributions from builders for the 
Rio Rancho Economic Development Corporation. The fund is a pass-through fund ; all revenues 
collected are remitted to RREDC. 

Municipal Court Fund - To account [or collections and payments of coun fines , criminal bonds 
and other fees from and on behalf of the public. 

Motor Vehicle Division Fund - To account for license fees and revenue collected by the City as 
agent for the Motor Vehicle Division, State of New Mexico as allowed by New Mexico State 
Statute, Section 66. 

Gross Receipts incentive Program (GRiP) Fund - To account for funds held by the City for 
reimbursement to retail businesses which generate significant gross receipts tax revenue to the 
City. 

Page lSI 



CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

ASSETS 
Cash and investment s 

Total assets 

Rio Metro Fund 

$ (3 ,220) 
$ (3 ,220) 

Special 
Assessment 

District 
Operations 

Fund 

$ 38,633 
$ 38,633 

Spec ial 
Assessment 
District VI II 

Bonds 

$ 270,475 
$ 270,475 

Spec ial 
Assessment 
District VI 

Bonds Fund 

$ 1, 187,436 
$ 1,187,436 

Special 
Assessment 
District VII 
Bonds Fund 

$ 1,522,792 
$ 1,522,792 

LIABILITI ES 
Depos its held for ot hers (3,220) 38,633 270,475 1, 187,436 1,522,792 

Total liabilities $ (3,220) $ 38,633 $ 270,475 $ 1, 187,436 $ 1,522,792 
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Spec ial 
Assessment RR Economic Incenti ve 


District V Development Municipal Motor Vehicle Program 

Bonds Fund Fund Court Fu nd Division Fund (G RJP) Fund Totals 


$ 5,002 $ 946 $ 25,773 $ 3,708 $ $ 3,05 1,545 
$ 5,002 $ 946 $ 25 ,773 $ 3,708 $ $ 3,05 1,545 

5,002 946 25 ,773 3,708 3,051 ,545 
$ 5,002 $ 946 $ 25,773 $ 3,708 $ $ 3,051 ,545 
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C ITY OF RIO RA NCHO, NEW MEXICO 


Cm'lll INING STATEMENT OF C HA NGES IN FI UCIARY ASSETS AND LIAIl ILITI ES - A LL AGENCY FUNDS 


YEA R ENDED J UNE 30, 2012 

B~II:II1CC 

Ju ly 1,2011 Additions Deductions 
Balance 

.June 30. 2012 

RIO METRO F UN D 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 948 $ 11 7,762 $ 12 1,930 $ (3 ,220) 

Total assets $ 948 $ 11 7,762 $ 12 1,930 $ (3 ,220) 

Liabilities 


Deposits held for olhers $ 948 $ 117,762 $ 12 1,930 $ (3 ,220) 


Total liab ili ties S 948 $ 117,762 $ 12 1,930 $ (3 ,220) 

S I' ECIAL ASSESSMENT DIST RI C T OI'ERATIONS FUND 

Assets 

Cash and investment s $ 42,658 $ 55, 130 $ 59, 155 $ 38,633 

Total assets $ 42,658 $ 55, 130 $ 59, 155 $ 38,633 

Liabilities 
Deposits held for others $ 42,658 $ 55, 130 $ 59, 155 $ 38,633 

Total liabil ities $ 42,658 $ 55, 130 $ 59, 155 $ 38,633 

S I'EC IAL ASSESSMENT DISTRI CT YIII RONDS 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 127, 19 1 $ 276, 154 $ 132,870 $ 270,475 

Tota l assets $ 127, 19 1 $ 276, 154 $ 132,870 $ 270,475 

Liabil it ies 

Deposits held for others $ 127,19 1 $ 276, 154 $ 132,870 $ 270,475 

Total liabi lit ies $ 127, 19 1 $ 276, 154 $ 132,870 $ 270,475 

SI'EC IAL ASSESSM ENT DISTRIC T VI RONDS 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 7 12,795 $ 750,890 $ 276,249 $ 1, 187,436 

Total assets $ 7 12,795 $ 750,890 $ 276,249 $ 1, 187,436 

Liabilities 
Deposi t's held for others 

Totalliabitities 

$ 

$ 

7 12,795 

7 12,795 

$ 

$ 

750,890 

750,890 

$ 

$ 

276,249 

276,249 

$ 

$ 

1, 187,436 

1, 187,436 
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B:ll .. nce Balance 
.Iul" 1.2011 Additions Deductions .Iunc30.20 12 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT VII BONDS 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ I , I 59,970 $ 987,77 1 $ 624,949 $ 1,522,792 

Total assets $ 1, 159,970 $ 987,771 $ 624,949 S 1,522,792 

Liabilities 
Deposit s held for others $ 1, 159,970 $ 987,771 $ 624,949 $ 1,522,792 

Total liabil ities $ I , I 59,970 $ 987,77 1 $ 624,949 $ 1,5 22,792 

SI'ECI AL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT V 1I0NDS 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 2,345 $ 3,107 $ 450 $ 5,002 

Total asset s $ 2,345 $ 3, 107 $ 450 $ 5,002 

Liabil ities 
Deposits held for others $ 2,345 $ 3, 107 $ 450 $ 5,002 

Tota l liabilities $ 2,345 $ 3, 107 $ 450 $ 5,002 

RIO RANCHO ECONOMIC J)EVELOI'M~:NT FUNIJ 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 728 $ 8,850 $ 8,632 $ 946 

Total assets $ 728 $ 8,850 $ 8,632 $ 946 

Liabilities 
Deposits held for others $ 728 $ 8,850 $ 8,632 $ 946 

Total liabilities $ 728 $ 8,850 $ 8,632 $ 946 

MUNICIPAL COURT FUND 

Assets 
Cash and in vestments $ 15,4 15 $ 166,322 $ 155,964 $ 25 ,773 

Total assets $ 15,4 15 $ 166,322 $ 155,964 $ 25 ,773 

Liabilities 
Deposits held for others $ 15,4 15 $ 166,322 $ 155 ,964 $ 25 ,773 

Total liabilities $ 15,4 15 $ 166,3 22 $ 155,964 $ 25,773 
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Balance 

.Iulv 1.2011 Additions Deductions 

B:llance 

.Iuno30.2012 

MOTOR VEHICLE DIVISION FUND 

Assets 

Cash and investments $ 2,533 $ 1,7 17,3 40 $ 1,7 16, 165 $ 3,708 

Tota l assets $ 2,533 $ 1,7 17, 340 $ 1,7 16, 165 $ 3,708 

Li abi lit ies 

Deposits held fo r others $ 2,533 $ 1,7 17,3 40 $ 1,7 16, 165 $ 3,708 

Total liab ili ti es $ 2,533 $ 1,71 7,340 $ 1,71 6, 165 $ 3,708 

GROSS REO: IPTS INCENTIVE PROGRAM (GRIP) FUND 

Assets 

Cash and in vestment s $ $ 23 1,037 $ 23 1,037 $ 

Total assets $ $ 23 1,037 $ 23 1,037 $ 

Liabilit ies 

Deposit s held for others $ $ 23 1,037 $ 23 1,037 $ 

Total liabi lities $ $ 23 1,037 $ 23 1,037 $ 

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS 

Assets 

Cash and investm ents $ 2,064,583 $ 4,3 14,3 62 $ 3,327,400 $ 3,05 1,545 

Total assets $ 2,064,583 $ 4,3 14,3 62 $ 3,327,400 $ 3,05 1,545 

Liabil ities 

Deposits held for o thers $ 2,064,583 $ 4,3 14,363 $ 3,327,400 $ 3,05 1, 545 

Total liabilit ies 

Total liab ilities $ 2,064 ,583 $ 4,3 14,3 63 $ 3,3 27 ,400 $ 3,05 1,545 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED 

BY THE NEW MEXICO STATE AUDITOR 
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C ITY OF RIO UANC nO, NEW MEXI CO 


SCi-IEDULE OF DEPOSIT AND INVE TMENT ACCOUNTS 

AND PLEDGED CO LLI\ TEUAL 


Ju ne 30, 2012 

DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS: 

FiU ~lnci ~ll l u s titut io n : Balances 

Accounl Na me ,\ cco unt T"pe Reconciled O n Deposil 

Wells F:II'I;O 

Operating Checking S 33,321,338 S 34,365,480 

Operating Savings 3,006,899 3,006,899 
Malar Vehicle Checkin g 3,708 7,269 

Municipal Court · BOlld Checkin g 25,773 28,238 

Tolal Wells Fn rgu Deposil t\ ccounts 36,357,7 18 37,407,886 

U:lIIk of New York 1\'11'11011 
Reserve (Loan# rioranch07) Trust S 152,12 1 s 152,796 
Reserve (Loan#" rioranchol9) Trust 339,000 340,504 
Reserve (Loan#" rioranch02 1) Trust 511,486 513,756 

Reserve (Loanl# rioranch022) Trust 653,528 654,202 

1,656,135 1,661,258 

Total Dellosit Acco unts S 38,013,853 s 39,069, 144 

INVESTMENT ACCO UNT S 

Finan cial Ins titution : 
Acco unt Nnmc Account TYlle Cost Ma rket 

Slale of Ne w I\l c~ ico 


Local GovCnlmcnt Investment Pool 


T uta l Sta le of New Mexi co In\'estmenl Accounts 

NM Bank L\i; Trust 


Certificates of Deposit 


Tota' Slale o f New I\ 'h:.~ko III vo.::st mcnt An:ounts 

Wells Fargo Blink 
Federal Home Loan Mongage Coupon (FHLMC) 

University of New Mexico Valencia County Branch 
University of New Mexico Valencia County Branc h 

Tolal Wells Fa rgo Bank (nl'eSlnlent Accouufs 

Tolal Investment Accounts 

PLEDGED COLL/\n: ll.A L 

Custodian Securi ", CUS II' Number 

Wells Fargo FNMA· PT 

Wells Fargo FNMA·PT 

Wells Fargo FNMA· PT 

We ll s Fargo FNMA·PT 

Wells Fargo FNMA·PT 

Total l'letl getl Collateral 

3138A77E2 

31418AD96 

3138A2CF4 

3138A 1AH4 

3138AVTE5 

Investment 

Investment 

In vestment 
Investment 

Investment 

Location 

San Francisco, CA 

San Francisco, CA 

San Francisco, CA 

San Francisco, CA 

San Francisco, CA 

s 11,066 

11,066 

s 3,500,000 

3,500,000 

6,220,000 
700,000 

945,000 

7,865,000 

s 11,376,066 

S 11,066 

11,066 

S 3,500,000 

3,500,000 

6,230,331 
700,826 

956,472 

7,887,629 

S 11,398,695 

~ Iaturity Date Fair Mu rket Value 

04/01141 

04/01/42 

12/0 1125 

12/0 1/40 

11/01126 

47,138 

89, 153 

1,259,656 

1,519,804 

4,438 

S 2,920, 189 

• All fun ds in a "nonintcrest·bearillg trnnsaction account" nre insured in full by FDIC Insurance Corporation fr0111 December 31,20 10, through 
December 31 , 20 12. Pledged Coll ateral in only for the Savings Account. (Refer to Note 2 or the Financial Stntements) 

Desl'osito o '. C;lsh Account Naule Accounl T~'pe Hank Ba lance .. 
Bank of New York· Mellon RioRancho7 Money Market 152,796 
Bank ofNe\\' York - Mellon RioRnnchol9 Money Market 340,504 
I3nnk of New York · Mell on RioRnnch021 Money Market 513,756 

Bnnk or Ne\\' York· Mellon RioRanch022 Money Mnrket 654,202 

"Bank of New York Mellon pledges intenlal cash resen'es of 100% of deposit am ounts, 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF JOINT rOWERS ACREE]\'1ENTS (JPA) 


FISCAL YEAR END ED 
J UNEJO.2012 

n 'PE PA R TIC/PANTS 
Rt"SPONSIBLE 

PARn' DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNING/E 
NDING 

DA TES OF 
AGREEMENT 

TOTAL 
AMOUNT 

C/TY S IIA RE 
FYIl 

AMOUNT 
AUDIT 

RESPONSIBILITY 
FISCA L 
AGENT 

GOVERNMENT 
AGENCI'FOR 

REPORTED REVENUI:."S 
AND EXPENDITURES 

A RE REPORTED 

IPA 

CITY OF RIO RANCHO! 
NEW MEXICO TAXATION & REVENUE 
DEPARTMENT BOTH 

APPOINTMENT AS AGENT FOR 
ISSUANCE OF TAX ID 

0810 111988 ­
IN DEFIN ITE 0.00% $ N/A N/A N/A 

IrA 

CITY OF RIO RANCHOI 
NEW MEXICO ENERGY, MINERALS, 
AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
DEPARTMENT, STATE FORESTRY 
DIVISION (EMNRD) BOTH 

USE OF INMATE CREWS FOR 
NATURAL RESOURCE 
IMPROVEMENTS TO CITY PROPERTY 

I2I I{2003 ­
UNTIL 
TERMINATED 
BY EITHER 
PARTY 0.00% S N/A N/A N/A 

IPA 

CITY OF RIO RANGIOI COUNTY OF 
SANDOVAL, VILLAGE OF CORRALES, 
TOWN OF BERNALILLO, AND PUEBLO 
OF SANTA ANA 

SANDOVAL COUNTY 
REGIONAL 

EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATIONS 

CENTER BOARD 

OPERATING, ADMINISTERING, AND 
MAINTAINING A JOINT ENHANCED 
9 11 REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
CENTER 

08/25/2008­
INDEFINITE 50.89% SI,044,854 

SANDOVAL COUNTY 
REGIONAL 

EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATIONS 

CENTER BOARD CITY CITY 

IPA 
CITY OF RIO RANCHOI NEW MEX ICO 
SELF-INSURER'S FUND (NMSIF) 

NMSIF BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 

PROTECTIONS FOR MEMBERS AND 
THEIR EMPLOYEES RELATING TO 
IN SURANCE OR SELF-INSURANCE 

07/0111996· 
INDEFINITE 100.00% Sl,376,400 NMSlF NMSlF NMSIF 

IPA 

CITY OF RIO RANCHOI NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS, ANO NATURAL 
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, STATE 
FORESTRY DIVISION (EMNRD) BOTH 

SUPPRESSION OF WILDFIRES ON 
STATE AND NON·MUNICIPAL 
PRIVATE LANDS AND PROVIDE 
ASSISTANCE TO EQUIP LOCAL 
FIREFIGHTING FORCES TO SUPPRESS 
FIRES IN RURAL AREAS 

0312511998­
UNTIL 
TERMINATED 
BY EITHER 
PARTY 0.00% $ N/A N/A N/A 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEX ICO 

SCI'IEDULE OF ME1\'10RANOUMS OF UNDERSTANDINGS (MOU) 


FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2012 

7TPE PARTICIPANTS 
RESI'ONSIBLE 

PARTY DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNINGIE 
NDiNG 

DATES OF 
AGREEMEN T 

TOTA L 
AMOUNT 

ClTJ' S IIA RE 
FYIl 

AMOUNT 
AUDIT 

Rt.:'\PONSIBIUTJ' 
FISCA L 
A GEN T 

GOVERNMENT 
AGENC )'rOR 

RI:.""J'ORTED REVENUES 
AND EXPENDITURES 

ARE REPORTED 

MOU 

CITY OF RIO RANCHO/ REGENTS OF THE 
UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO 
(UNM)/SANDIA FOUNDATION/LOBO 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION CITY 

PROVIDE REVENUES COLLECTED 
FROM THE MUNICIPAL HI GHER 
EDUCATION FACILITIES GROSS 
RECElPTS TAX 

0611 7{l009­
06/17{l0 14 S 7,565 ,000 51 ,513,000 CITY CITY CITY 

MOU 
CITY OF RIO RANCHOI UNIVERSITY or 
NEW MEXICO (UNM) BOTH 

DESIGN, MAINTAIN, CONSTRUCT AND 
OWN A MARQU EE SIGN 

03/ 12120 12· 
03/12fl0 13 S 150,000 S CITY BOTH CIT Y 

MOU 
CITY OF RIO RANCHOI CENTRAL NEW 
MEXICO COMMUN ITY COLLEGE (CNM) BOTH 

DESIGN, MMNTAIN, CONSTRUCT AND 
OWN A MARQUEE SIGN 

0311212012­
03/ 12fl013 , 125,000 S CITY BOTH CIT Y 

MOU 
CITY OF RI O RANCHOI MID·REGION 
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS BOTH 

PARTICIPATION IN THE MID-REG ION 
COUNCIL OF GOV ERNMENTS 20 14 
DIGITAL ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY 
PROJECT 

12/2 112011 ­
12121 /2013 S 15,000 S 7,500 CITY BOTH BOlli 

MOU 

CITY OF RIO RANCHO/ NEW MEX ICO 
INTE RSTATE STREAM COMMISSION 
(NMISC) NMISC 

INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT PLAN OF 
THE BOSQUE OPEN SPACE AND 
PLANNING AND DESIGN FOR 
PROPOSED HABITAT RESTORATION 

09112120 11­
06/30{l0 14 $ 456,872 S NMlSC NMISC NMISC 

MOU 
CITY OF RIO RANCHO/TOWN OF 
BERNALILLO BOTH 

EMERGENCY INTE RCONNECTION 
AND EMERGENCY WATER SER VI CE 
BETWEEN TOWN'S WATER SYSTEM 
AND CITY'S WATER SYSTE M 

0612712011· 
06127/20 16 

CURRENT 
RATE PER 

1,000 GAL OF 
WATER S TOWN TOWN TOWN 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED 

FOR CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FILING/SUBMISSION 
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Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Sandoval County 

General Obligation Bonds 


Net Debt 

2012 Assessed Valuation 


2012 Estimated Actual Valuation 


Bonded Debt 


NET DEBT 


Ratio of Estimated Net Debt to 2011 Assessed Valuation 


Ratio of Estimated Net Debt to 201 1 Estimated Actual Valuation 


Per Capita Net Bonded Debt: 


Est. Population: 


$2,056,634,824 

$6,675,666,498 

$25,875,000 

$25,875,000 

1.26% 

0.39% 

$295.64 

87,521 
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Series 

2002 

2004 

2006 

2009 

Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Sandoval County 

General Obligation Bonds 


Outstanding Debt 

Original Amount Final 

Issued Maturity 

$5,000,000 8/1/2012 

5,500,000 8/1/2016 

7,000,000 8/1/2018 

25,000,000 8/1/2021 

$42,500,000 

Principal 

Outstanding 

$450,000 

2,550,000 

4,550,000 

18,325,000 

$25,875,000 
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Year 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 
2022 

Total 

Annual Disclosure Report 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Sandoval County 
General Obligation Bonds 

Debt Service Requirements 

Present Requirements 
Pri ncigal Interest Total 

$2,650,000 $861 ,463 $3,511 ,463 

2,550,000 780,488 3,330,488 

2,925,000 693,081 3,618,081 

3,100,000 591,713 3,691,713 

3,275,000 481 ,000 3,756,000 

2,800,000 374,750 3,174,750 

2,750,000 279,875 3,029,875 

2,000,000 193,000 2,193,000 

2,000,000 11 3,000 2,113,000 
1,825,000 36,500 1,861 ,500 

$25,875,000 $4,404,870 $30,279,870 
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Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Sandoval County 

General Obligation Bonds 


Direct & Overlapping Debt 

2012 Assessed 
Valuation 

GIO Debt 
Outstanding 

Percent 
Applicable Amount 

State of New Mexico 

Sandoval County 

Central New Mexico Community College 

Southern Sandoval County 

Arroyo Flood Control Authority 

Rio Rancho Public Schools 

City of Rio Rancho 

$52,846,098,498 

3,222,126,760 

16,446,237,946 

2,511,738,593 

2,151,232,455 

2,064,152,408 

$296,890,000 

19,160,000 

66,935,000 

25,875,000 

129,580,000 

25,875,000 

3.91% 

6406% 

12.55% 

82.18% 

95.95% 

100.00% 

$11,596,432 

12,274 ,24 1 

8,400,951 

21 ,264,133 

124,334,713 

25,875,000 

Total $203,745,470 

Ratio of Estimated Direct &Overlapping Debt to 2011 Assessed Valuation: 9.87% 

Ratio of Estimated Direct & Overlapping Debt to 20 11 Estimated Actual Valuation: 3.04% 

Per Capita Direct & Overlaping Debt: $2,327.96 
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Annual Disclosure Report 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Sandoval County 
General Obligation Bonds 

Analysis of Assessed Valuation 

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 

Assessments 

Value of Land $630,359,028 $662,680,712 $756,404,245 $770,739,675 $754,457,807 $714,207,921 

Improvements 1,504,360,329 1,500,443,478 1,554,832, 138 1,529,748,532 1,408,122,406 1,223,244,526 

Personal Property 24,671,737 23,121 ,215 27,122,150 28,429,905 25,091 ,693 26,790,880 

Mobile Homes 703,712 737,737 736,505 676,706 619,595 650,377 

Livestock 25,125 21 ,1 19 12,533 12,988 18,188 36,577 

Assessors Taxable Value $2,160, 119,93 1 $2,187,004,26 1 $2,339,107, 571 $2, 329,607,806 $2,188,309,689 $1,964,930,281 

Less Exemptions 

Head of Family $27,229,679 $26,443,615 $25,661,321 $24,054,756 $23,129,106 $21 ,875,392 

Veterans 45,161 ,477 42,745,989 40,930,2 14 36,998,964 33,230,535 30,763,829 

Other 127,860,621 99,397,738 89,379,803 71, 416,493 70, 191,832 63,145,629 

Total $200,251 ,777 $168,587,342 $155,97 1,338 $132,470,213 $126,551,473 $115,784,850 

Assessors Net 

Taxable Value $1 ,959,868,154 $2,018,416,919 $2, 183,136,233 $2,197,137,593 $2,06 1,758,216 $1,849,145,431 

Centrally Assessed 49,689,872 45,705,489 43,231,184 32,931,716 41,374,810 36,345,349 

Total Assessed Valuation $2,009,558,026 $2,064, 122,408 $2,226,367,417 $2,230,069,309 $2,103, 133,026 $1,885,490,780 

Residential 

Non-Residential 

$1 ,548,183,201 

46 1,349,700 
$2,009,532,901 

$1,580,178,432 

483,973,976 
$2,064,152,408 

$1,640,657,521 

585,709,896 
$2,226,367,417 

$1 ,637,485,527 

592,583,782 
$2,230,069,309 

$1 ,502,047,415 

601,085,611 
$2,103,133,026 

$1 ,313,532,372 

571,958,408 
$1,885,490,780 

Source: Sandoval Counly Assessor's Office. 
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Tax 
Year 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

Ann ual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Sandoval County 

General Obligation Bonds 


History of Assessed Valuation 

City of Sandoval 
Rio Rancho County 

856,756,132 1,506,824,794 

920,932,352 1,589,098,941 

1,045,767 ,950 1,798,051 ,781 

1,254,458,716 2,094,517,714 

1,885,490,780 2,935,400,557 

2,103,133,026 3,259,727,705 

2,230,069,309 3,432,805,105 

2,226,367,417 3,433,909,053 

2,049,032,995 3,196,038,224 

2,064,152,408 3,222,126,760 

Source: Sandoval Counly Assessors Office 
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Taxpayer 

Public Service Company of NM 

Presbyterian Health Care Services 

Gas Company of New Mexico 

Wal-Mart Stores 

Sandia View LLC 

Pulte Homes of New Mexico 

Broadstone High Resort LLC 

Lowe's Home Centers 

Tri-State Generation & Transmission Assoc Inc 

Owest Corporation 

Rio Rancho Community Inc 

Tolal 

Source: Sandoval County Assessor's Office. 

Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Sandoval County 

General Obligation Bonds 


Major Taxpayers 

Business 


Electric Utility 


Medical 


Gas Utility 


Retail 


Assisted Living 


Home Builders 


Real Estate 


Home Improvement 


Communication Services 


Telephone 


Community Affairs 


2012 Assessed 
Valuation 

$29,731,803 

14,277,209 

7,622,859 

5,121 ,699 

4,682,814 

4,603,359 

4,623,141 

4,283,867 

3,702,139 

3,672,092 

3,738,535 

$86,059,517 

% of 
Total 

1.44% 

0.69% 

0.37% 

0.25% 

0.23% 

0.22% 

0.22% 

0.21 % 

0.18% 

0.18% 

0.18% 

4.17% 
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Annual Disclosure Report 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Sandoval County 
General Obligation Bonds 

Tax Rates 

Within 20 Mill Limit for General Purposes 
\Per S1 00: Assessed \Ialuat e'" 

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 1997 

State of New Mexico $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 

Sandoval County 5.621 5.621 5.253 5.136 5.056 5.308 

City of Rio Rancho 6.518 6.518 6.113 5.944 5.847 6.094 

Rio Rancho Schools 0.230 0.230 0.216 0.210 0.207 0.216 

Total $12.369 $12.369 $1 1.582 $11 .290 $11.110 $11.618 

Over 20 Mill Limit ­ Interest, Principal, Judgement, etc. 

State of New Mexico $1.362 $1.362 $1.530 $1.150 $1.250 $1.347 

Sandoval County 1.038 1.038 0.699 0.673 0.312 0.241 

City of Rio Rancho 1.645 1.645 2.060 2.067 2.060 1.000 

Rio Rancho Schools 10.542 10.542 10.478 10.425 10.692 10.913 

SSCAFCA Debt Service 0.873 0.844 0.870 0.870 0.870 0.870 

SSCAFCA Operating 1.023 1.023 0.784 0.753 0.612 0.839 

Contracting Hospitals 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 0.000 0.000 

Central NM Community College 3.237 3.237 3.158 3.046 2.990 2.799 

Total $23.970 $23.941 $23.829 $23.234 $18.786 $18.009 

TOTAL LEVY 

State of New Mexico $1.362 $1 .362 $1.530 $1.150 $1.250 $1.347 

Sandoval County 6.659 6.659 5.952 5.809 5.368 5.549 

City of Rio Rancho 8.163 8.163 8.173 8.011 7.907 7.094 

Rio Rancho Schools 10.772 10.772 10.694 10.635 10.899 11.129 

SSCAFCA 1.896 1.867 1.654 1.623 1.482 1.709 

Contracting Hospitals 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 

Central NM Community College 3.237 3.237 3.158 3.046 2.990 2.799 

Total Residential $36.339 $36.310 $35.411 $34.524 $29.896 $29.627 

Total Non-Residential $37.840 $35.633 $32.840 $31.176 $26.888 $33.139 

Source: New Mexico Department of Finance &Administration. 
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Ann ual Disclosure Report 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Sandoval County 
General Obl igation Bonds 

Tax Collections 

Tax 

Year 
2011 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

Fiscal 

Year 
11/12 

10/11 

09/10 

08/09 

07108 

06/07 

05/06 

04/05 

03/04 

02103 

01 /02 

Net Taxes 
Charged to 

Treasurer 
$112,891 ,085 

114,454,472 

111 ,961,675 

87,869,415 

74,506,949 

58,892,705 

50,688,630 

45,043,069 

41 ,166,636 

37,677,873 

35,606,931 

Current 
Tax 

Collec!ions (I) 

$107,182,149 

107,439,020 

104,094,225 

82,603,762 

70,795,219 

56,076,117 

48,414,225 

43,062,828 

39,142,022 

36,988,760 

35,310,165 

Current 
Collections as a 

%of Ne! Levied 
94.94% 

93.87% 

92.97% 

94.01% 

95.02% 

95.22% 

95.51% 

95.60% 

95.08% 

98.17% 

99.17% 

CurrenVDelinquenl 
Tax 

Collections (2) 

$107,182,149 

111 ,694,029 

109,994,850 

87,340,056 

74,299,001 

58,792,289 

50,589,963 

44,986,343 

41 ,120,635 

37,642,848 

35,602,038 

CurrenVDelinquent 
Collec!ions as a 

%of Ne! Levied 
94.94% 

97.59% 

98.24% 

99.40% 

99.72% 

99.83% 

99.81% 

99.87% 

99.89% 

99.91% 

99.99% 

(1) Current collecti ons through June 30 of each year 
(2) As of June 30. 2012 

Source: Sandoval County Treasurer's Office 
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Fiscal Year 


Ended 6/30 


2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

20 11 

2012 

Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds 


State Gross Receipts Tax Report 

State Gross Receipts % Distributed 

Tax Rate to City 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.000% 1.2250% 

5.125% 1.2250% 

5.125% 1.2250% 

State Shared % Increase or 
GRT Revenues I'l Decrease 

$9,410,102 

11 ,393,057 

14,366)33 

11 ,61 4,873 

9,309,051 

12,404,196 
13,997,138 

13,635,853 

(1) Includes all State-Shared Gross Receipts Tax Revenues received by the City. Does not 
include other gross receipts taxes imposed by the City which are not part of Pledged Revenues. 
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22.98% 
21.07% 

26.10% 
-19.15% 

-19.85% 

33.25% 
12.84% 

-2.58% 



Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Water & Wastewater System Revenue Bonds 

Historical Operating Statistics - Water System 


CALENDAR YEAR 

Customer Connections : 2007 (2) 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Residential 29,328 29,569 30,609 30,804 30,145 

Commercial 868 938 904 1,122 1,114 

Industrial 11 11 11 11 11 
City (1) 87 98 85 29 29 

Total 30,294 30,616 31,609 31,966 31,299 

Meter Water Sales (OOOs of Gallons) 

Residential 2,430,534 2,468,412 2,432,743 2,383,026 2,374,113 

Commercial 925,022 857,744 774,565 966,920 1,014,150 

Industrial 130,091 200,569 247,648 467,607 490,342 
City 144,327 172,740 140,991 12,450 18,506 

Total 3,629,974 3,699,465 3,595,947 3,830,003 3,897,111 

(1) The number of connections reported for the City does not include City irrigation accounts as these are included in commercial connections. 

(2) Calendar Year 2007 restated. 

Source: City of Rio Rancho 
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Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Water & Wastewater System Revenue Bonds 

Historical Operating Statistics - Wastewater System 


CALENDAR YEAR 

Customer Connections: 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Residential 25,249 25,429 26,0 25 24,643 24 ,116 

Commercial 727 797 527 520 677 

Industrial 
City 28 34 25 23 23 

Total 26,004 26,260 26,577 25,186 24,816 

Total Wastewater Treated (ODDs of Gallons) 1,610,531 956,174,000 1,599,998 1,6 19,382 1,938,319 

Source: City of Rio Rancho 
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Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Water & Wastewater System Revenue Bonds 

System Financiaiinformation 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Operating Revenue: 
Water Operations Revenues 13,003,211 15,723,722 13,493, 479 17,780,191 17,878,063 
Other Water Revenues 532,698 1,004,152 773,669 976,350 1,048 ,637 

Wastewater Operations Revenues 10,971,517 11 ,795,309 12,481 ,078 13,034,461 13,633,495 
Other Wastewater Revenues 95,096 148,625 147,754 107,376 126,964 

Tota l Operating Revenues 24,602,522 28,671,808 26,895,980 31 ,898,378 32 ,687,159 

Operating Expenses: 
Water: Production Costs 2,128,318 1,516,695 1,030,071 2,424,259 3,810,296 
Transmission &Distribution 651 ,936 791,065 947,931 1,688,511 2,407,768 
Wastewater: Treatmen! costs 1,768,874 1,710,875 1,968,609 1,890,370 3,012,072 
Collection Costs 
Customer Service 929,742 900,961 1,210,309 1,287,700 1,209,076 
Contractor Generat & Administrative 4,549,176 4,322,363 5,325,514 5,230,905 5,384,608 
Utilities DepartmenVGeneral &Administrative 2,367,443 2,023,417 2,064,738 2,532,171 2,227,443 
Uncollectible Accounts 
Hookup Fees Due (Refund) 
Total Operating Expenses 12,395,489 11 ,265,376 12,547,172 15,053,916 18,051,263 

Net Operating Revenue 12,207,033 17,406,432 14,348,808 16,844,462 14,635,896 

Non-operating Revenue(Expenses) 
Investment Income 2,753,301 2,551,532 1,155,263 70,687 34,672 
Other Revenue 572,544 9,722,854 54,640 840,208 323,934 
Interest Expense 5,087,604 7,283,143 6,097,757 6,012,630 5,548,035 
Other Expense 174,310 56,709 199,746 208,076 
Paymenl-in-lieu of taxes 557,183 524,960 564,125 546,926 616,229 
Net tncome (loss) before Depreciation & 
Amortization 9,713,781 21 ,816,006 8,697,083 10,987,725 8,830,238 

Depreciation &Amortization 3,598,204 4,105,272 4,662,829 4,476,731 5,131 ,838 
Net tncome (Loss) 6,115,577 17,710,734 4,034,254 6,510,994 3,698,400 
Add Back: Depreciation and 
Amortization 3,598,204 4,105,272 4,662,829 4,476,731 5,131,838 
Interest Expense 5,087,604 7,283,143 6,097,757 6,012,630 5,548,035 
Payment-In-Ueu-Of Taxes 557,183 524,960 564,125 546,926 616,229 
Net Revenue Available for Debt Service 15,358,568 29,624,109 15,358,965 17,547,281 14,994,502 

Annuat Debt Service 8,415,576 10,493,253 10,892,377 10,610,881 10,587,027 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Parity Bonds) 183% 282% 141% 165% 142% 

Source: City of Rio Rancho 
Note: Data is prepared on a calendar year basis. 2012 data not available. 
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Annual Disclosure Report 

City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 


Water &Wastewater System Reven ue Bonds 

Annual Debt Service Summary 

FYE Combined Parity Subordinate Lien Debt Combined Total Total Debt 
30-Jun Debt Service NMED Loan NMFA Loans Debt Service Service Coverage 
2011 $10,587,026 $704,866 $20,008 $1 1,311,900 1.33 
2012 10,587,338 704,866 78,852 11,371 ,056 1.32 
2013 10,584,558 704,866 78,854 11,368,278 1.32 
2014 10,588,908 704,866 78,857 11,372,631 1.32 
2015 10,624,158 704,866 78,858 11,407,882 1.31 
2016 10,607,603 704,866 78,860 11,391 ,329 1.32 
2017 10,595,847 704,866 78,862 11,379,575 1.32 
2018 10,610,659 704,866 78,864 11 ,394,389 1.32 
2019 10,588,441 704,866 78,866 11,372,173 1.32 
2020 10,59 1,728 704,866 78,868 11,375,462 1.32 
2021 10,612,508 704,866 78,871 11 ,396,245 1.32 
2022 10,602,940 704,866 78,873 11 ,386,679 1.32 
2023 6,229,287 78,874 6,308,161 2.38 
2024 6,219,782 78,877 6,298,659 2.38 
2025 4,248,732 78,878 4,327,610 3.46 
2026 4,247,351 78,880 4,326,231 3.47 
2027 4,247,613 78,881 4,326,494 3.47 
2028 4,248,612 78,884 4,327,496 3.46 
2029 4,246,512 78,886 4,325,398 3.47 
2030 4,242,587 75,297 4,317,884 3.47 
2031 4,246,612 75,298 4,321,910 3.47 
2032 4,247 ,900 4,247,900 3.53 
2033 868,125 868,125 17.27 
2034 867,350 867,350 17.29 

Source: City of Rio Rancho 

Page 210 



STATISTICAL SECTION 


Page 2 11 




(This page intentionally left blank) 

Page 212 




STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Ri o Rancho's comprehensive mlliual financial rep011 presents detailed 
infonnation as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
di sclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says about the City's overall financial health. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FINANCIAL TRENDS 215 

These schedules contain trend infonnation to help the reader understand how the 
City's financial perfonnance and well-being have changed over time. 

REVENUE CAPACITY 222 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting 
the City's abi lity to generate its propel1y and sales taxes. 

DEBT CAPACITY 227 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of 
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional 
debt in the future. 

DEMOGRAPIDC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 232 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within with the City's financial activities take place 
and to help make comparisons over time and with other govenU11ents. 

OPERATING INFORMATION 236 

These schedules contain infonnation about the City'S operations and resources to 
help the reader understand how the City's financial infonnation relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it perfonns. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 
in fi scal year 2003; schedules presenting govel11ment-wide infonna tion include infol111ation 
beginning in that year. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule I 

Net Assets By Co mponent 
Last Ten Years 
{ilccrual bilsis of accounting} 

"-bclI' Y I'll r 

ill.! 2004 ~ 2006 20{)7 l.!llm 2009 2010 2011 lli1 
Govellllncntal activities 

[nvestcd in capital assets, lIet of relmed debt 20,680,510 S 27.306,972 S 98,222,797 S 159,084,358 S 184,408,573 , 197.267.35 1 206,205,225 S 233,285,141 233.918.334 S 245.203.138 
Restricted 4,839,243 5,203,879 30,233,533 36.157.574 19.344.282 8,797,17 1 8,006.27 1 9.465.808 10.158.631 7.128.889 
Unrestricted 12.483.992 15z762.666 (1.967,967) 653.855 18.443.967 22.168.709 17,829.165 15,843,998 20.205.632 18.389.0 10 

Total govenzmental activities net assets 38.003.745 48.273,5 17 126.488.363 195,895.787 222. 1%.822 228.233.23 1 232.040.66 1 258.594.947 264.282.597 S 270,721.037 

Business-type activities 
Invcsted in capital asscts, net of rclmed debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

(3 .234,236) 
2,675,000 

17.738.726 

S 3 17,688 
2,985,858 

19,425.37 1 

18,092,6 19 
3.615,705 

22.040.446 

45.520.647 
8,378,213 

20.805.858 

57.733,951 
11 ,581,655 
19.686,293 

, 72,484,053 
11 ,284.077 
26,649,899 

108,895,574 
8.813,942 

2 1.069.336 

S 122.367.287 
9.111 ,523 

21,579.698 

137,363.850 
9,623,009 

25, 11 0.463 

123.725,543 
10,276,537 
43,127.249 

Total busincss-type activities net assets 17. 1 79.49{) S 22.728.917 43.748.770 74,704.7 18 89.001.899 110.418.029 138.778,852 153.058508 172.097.322 S 177.129.329 

Primary govcmmcZll 
Invcsted in capital assets, Het o f related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

17.446,274 
7,51 4,243 

30.222.718 

27,624,660 
8,189,737 

35,188,037 

S 116,315.416 
33,849,238 
20.072.479 

204.605.005 
44,535,787 
2 1,4 59.713 

242, 142.524 
30,925,937 
38. 130.260 

, 269,75 1,404 
20,081,248 
48.818.608 

315,100,799 
16.820,2 13 
38,898,501 

, 355.652.428 
18,577.331 
37,423,696 

371,282.184 
19,78 1,640 
45.316.095 

S 368,928,681 
17.405.426 
61.5 16.259 

TOlal primary governmcnt net assets ,l 55. 183.235 S 7 1,002.434 S 170.237.133 270,600.505 S 31 1.198.721 S 338.65 1.260 S 370.8 19.513 S 4 11,653.455 436,379.919 S 447.850.366 

Source: The City's Financial Records, Financial Services Department 

Notl'S; The significant increase in net assets in fiscal year 2005 is due to the addition of infrastructure assets. 
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City of Rio Rallcho, New Mexico 
C hanges in Net Assets 
Last Ten Years 
(accrua l basis of uccounting) 

Schl.'duh.' 2 

Fiscal Year 

lQ!!1 2004 2005 211116 2007 200K 2009 2010 llil 2012 
Ex pcnsl'.S 
Governmental activities: 

Gcncral govcrnmcnt , 6.115.635 S 4.195.285 , 4.274.259 S 4.749.168 S 9.446.698 S 10.106.998 S 8.726.702 S 8.667.435 S 13.287.694 S 10.366.776 
Public safety 12,485.446 14.207,384 15.528.740 18.308.57 1 22.755.627 30.453.273 28,644.454 36.265.064 35.822,606 29.556.691 
Public works 8.159.140 4.309.312 9.488.494 12.893.315 15.388. 104 18.078.174 16. 119.562 14.926.671 25.118.971 17.987.939 
Culture and recreation 5.525.730 5.8 10.516 6.2 16.143 7,383.200 8.877.320 9.478.686 10.277.960 9.497.987 9.882.400 9,600,76] 
Economic development 1,227.959 1.440,044 2,029.354 2.626.428 2.944.345 3.507.872 3.477,853 2.672.473 2.296.117 2.631,288 
Interest on lon!;,tcnll debt 744.561 660.836 659.268 1.323.496 1.943,996 1.583,622 1.918.399 2.5 88.532 2.484.088 2.265.490 

To[al government activitics expenscs 34.258 .471 30.623,377 38. 196.258 47,284.178 6U56,090 73.208,625 69.164.930 74.618.162 88.891.876 72.408.947 

Business·type lIctivitics: 
Water 
Wastewater 
Event Center 

8,925.793 
6.852.884 

8.690,738 
6.828.437 

9,752.369 
7.062.060 

292 

11,898.363 
7.562.599 
1.663.068 

10,763.072 
8,739.795 
2.682.495 

12,326,747 
11.406,457 
2.116.636 

11.894.252 
12,831,006 

1.430.731 

11.261.251 
16.041.994 

130.200 

11.384.029 
17,624.272 
2.639.138 

17.761.031 
17.867.174 
2.574.952 

Total business-type Ilctivities expenses 15.778.677 15,5 19.175 16.814.721 21.124.030 22.185.362 25,849.840 26.155,989 27.433.445 31.647.439 38 .203.157 

Total primary govenllllcnt expenses S 50.037.148 S 46,142.552 S 55.010.979 S 68,408.208 S 83.541.452 S 99.058.465 S 95.320.919 102.051.607 S 120.5]9.]15 S 110.612.104 

Program rC\'Cllucs 
Governmental netivities: 

Charge for services 
General govenuuent S 553.585 S 891.490 S 1.127.678 S 1.321.470 S 1.234.2 18 S 1.304.678 S 1.]24.081 S 1.464.466 S 2.29U35 S 2,418.576 
Public safety 1.925,482 2.9]3.717 3.965.278 4.934.508 4.408.]92 4.]88.583 4.6]0.047 5.024.002 5.440. 125 5.737.263 
Public works 544,453 746,455 1.163.229 1.426.493 1.16].828 [.097.003 1.0 14.410 1.282527 1.421.236 1.346.006 
Culture and recreat ion 875,709 1.272. 197 1.632.86] 1.998.717 1.66 1.845 1.610.322 1.756.449 1.689.52] 1.801.170 1.801.5]4 
Economic development 143.258 2 19,479 4.36.865 622,809 490.463 495.912 5 15.]04 466.756 372.553 530.137 

Operating gmnts and contributions 1.205.804 2.369.464 1.620.825 1.424. 185 2564 .015 3.660.574 ].308.384 10,780.000 10.059.893 2,699.763 
Capital grants (Illd contributions 2.837.7 16 1,009.062 1.789.291 28.864.918 25 .160.023 15.336.888 12.616.188 32,356.726 22.786.582 9.614.534 

Tolal governmental activities program revenues 8.086.007 9,441.864 11.736,029 40.593.100 36,682.784 27.893.960 25. 164.863 53,064.000 44.172,894 24.147,813 
Busincss-type activities: 

Charge for services: 
Water 9.448.79] 10.2 13,127 12,148.637 15.458.413 1].5]5,909 17.048.]90 14.267.148 18.756.541 18.926.700 21.748.781 
Wastewatcr 7.108.219 7.9]2.644 8.737.224 9.825.]67 11.066.6 13 11.62].418 12.628.8]2 13.141.837 13.760,459 14.122.874 
Event Centcr 14.600 159,074 U61.574 864,634 1.249.508 581.776 463,616 447.954 

Operating grants and contributions 150.000 1.650.000 
Capital grants and contributions 146.378 352.127 4.617.957 18.] 13.509 7.130,740 13.320.728 9,952.147 8.316.845 12.546.387 988,436 

Total business.type activities program revcnues 16.703.390 18,497.898 25.518.418 43.756.363 33.044.836 44.507.170 38.097.6]5 40.796.999 45.697.162 37.308.045 
Total primary govemment program revenues S 24.789.397 $ 27.939,762 S 37.254.447 $ 84.349.463 S 69.727.620 S 72.401. 130 S 63.262.498 S 93.860.999 S 89.870.056 $ 61,455.858 

Sourcc: The City's Financial Rccords. Fin~ncial Services Department 
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City of Rio R:m cho, New Mexico 
Changes in Net Assets 
Last Ten Years 
(accrual bas is of accounting) 

Schedule 2 

(Co nd'd) 

Fisca l Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Net (Exllensc)fRcvcllu c 
Govern mental activ ities $(26,172,464) $(21 , 18 1,5 13) $(26,460,229) $ (6,69 1,078) $(24,673 ,306) $(45,3 14,665) $(44,000,067) $(2 1,55 4, 162) $(44,7 18,982) $ (48,261 , 134) 
Bus iness-type activi ti es 924,7 13 2,978 ,723 8,703 ,697 22 ,632 ,333 10,859,474 18,657,330 11 ,941 ,646 13,363,554 14,049,723 (895, 112) 

Total primary governmenl net assets 

Gcncr-a l Revcnues and Othe r Changes in Net Assets 
Governmental acti viti es: 

Taxes: 

Properly taxes 

Gross recei pts taxes 

Franchi se taxes 


Unrestricted grants, aid and state shared revenues 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 
Impnci fecs (A) 

Total govemmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Unrestricted grants, aid and state shared revenues 
Investment income 
Misce ll aneous 
Impact fees (A ) 

$ (25,247.75 1) 

$ 6,689,973 
9,786,994 
2,108,304 
8,876,352 

26 1,638 
105,043 

1,3 77 .679 

$ (18 ,202,790) 

$ 6,804 ,458 
9,920,58 1 
2,232,546 
9,848,58 1 

241 , 122 
73 ,290 

2,330,707 

$ (17,756,532) 

$ 7,447,467 
13,120,239 
2,30 1, 133 

11 ,2 18,874 
485 ,905 

70,498 
3,527,405 

~205 , 983 31 ,45 1,285 38, 171 ,52 1 

293 , 196 30 1,144 418,277 

1, 165 ,174 2,269,560 3,629,855 

$ 15,941,255 

$ 8,394,598 
19,526,233 
2,692,885 

13,034,242 
2,004,373 

15,590 

45,667,92 1 

2,6 11 ,880 

$ (13,813,832) 

$ 9,759,949 
18,858,973 
2,800,615 

15,969,5 22 
2,881 ,18 1 

704,10 1 

50,974,34 1 

3,437,707 

$ (26,657 ,335) 

$ 12,857,673 
18, 148,103 
2,898,700 

14,268,9 18 
1,167,530 
2,0 10,150 

51,35 1,074 

2,711 ,197 
47,603 

$ (32.058,42 1) $ 

$ 14,484, 127 $ 
15,720,986 
2,988,269 

13,425,817 
284 ,896 
903,402 

47 ,807.497 

1, 19 1,57 1 
53 1,454 

(8. 190,608) 

15,969,391 
15,434 ,222 
2,995 ,70 1 

12,772, 147 
53,8 17 

764 ,358 

47 ,989,636 

75 ,894 
840,208 

$ (30,669,259) $ (49, 156,246) 

$ 16,349, 117 $ 15,650,672 
17,20 1,8 11 19,132,26 1 
3,2 19,655 3,552,461 

13,534,932 12,69 1,07 1 
23,408 (2,9 13) 
77,709 306,977 

50.406,632 51 ,330,529 

4,972,974 2,67 1,184 
42 ,183 37,164 

323,934 272,95 1 

Total business-type activities 1.458,370 2,570,704 4.048 ,132 2,6 11 .880 3,437,707 2,758.800 1,723,025 9 16.102 5,339.09 1 2,98 1,299 

Total primary govern ment $ 30,664,353 $ 34.02 1.989 $ 42,2 19,653 $ 48,279.801 $ 54 ,412,048 $ 54, I 09,874 $ 49,530,522 $ 48 ,905 ,738 $ 55 ,745,723 $ 54 ,3 11 ,828 

Change in Net Assets 
Governmenta l activi ti es $ 3,033,519 $ 10,269,772 $ 11,711 ,292 $ 38,976,843 $ 26,30 1,03 5 $ 6,036,409 $ 3,807,430 $ 26,435,474 $ 5,687,650 $ 3,069,395 
Business-type activities 2,3 83 ,083 5,549,427 12,751 ,829 25,244,2 13 14.297,18 1 2 1,41 6,1 30 13,664,671 14,279,656 19,388,8 14 2,086,187 

Total primary government $ 5,416,602 $ 15.8 19,199 $ 24.463, 12 1 $ 64,22 1,056 $ 40.598 ,2 16 $ 27 ,452,539 $ 17,472 ,101 $ 40.7 15, 130 $ 25 ,076,464 $ 5,155,582 

Source: The City'S Financ ial Records, Financial Serv ices Department 

(A) - Beginning in fiscal year2006, impact fees arc reclass ified as Capital Grants and Contributions_ 
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Schedule 3 City of Rio Rallcho, New Mexico 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, 
Last Ten Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 200S 2009 2010 1!!!.l..ill 2012 
General fund 

Nonspendable 
Restricted 282,630 58,279 
Committed 
Assigned 18,424 2 
Unassigned 13,013,702 14,611,124 
Unreserved 9.499,506 11,670,614 15,456,118 20,969,824 19, 180,448 13,787,854 9,600,869 10,925,800 

Total general fu nd $ 9,499,506 $ 11 ,670,61 4 $ 15,456, 118 $ 20,969,824 $ 19,180,448 $ 13,787,854 $ 9,600,869 $ 10,925,800 S 13,314,756 $ 14,669,405 

All other Governmental Funds 
Geneml fund 

Nonspendablc 
Restricted 25,79 1,55 4 20,486,621 
Committed 122,462 87,38 1 
Assigned 
Unass igned (409,895) 
Unreserved, reported in: (2 ,609,260) 

Special revenue fund s 2, 11 6,294 3,705,958 4,167,797 5,649,848 6,602,598 5,754 ,1 54 7,222,2 12 9,592,523 
Capital projcct funds 3,984,257 5,718,637 32,834,006 39,254,295 24,834,8 16 11,3 81,0 19 39,219,423 20, 129,681 
Debt service funds 2,268, 155 1,399,764 1,441,050 1,885,213 1,609,098 3,848,464 4,276,390 4, 191,966 

Total all other governmental funds $ 8,368,706 $ 10,824,359 $ 38,442,853 $ 46,789,356 $ 33,046,5 12 $ 20,983,637 $ 50,7 18,025 $ 33,9 14, 170 $ 23,304,756 $ 20, 164,107 

Source: The City's Fi nancial Records, Financial Services Department 

(A) . Starting in FY 20 11 the City is reporting Fund Balance as per GASS 54 req uirements. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schcdule 4 


Changes in Fund Balanccs, Governmental Funds, 

Last TCll Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounling) 


2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Revenues: 
Taxes $ 24,742,640 $ 26,582,465 $ 31,794,472 $ 40,938,066 $ 44,497,571 S 44,647,539 S 43,369,647 $ 44,037,406 $ 46,975,454 $ 47,720,554 
Licenses and pennits 31 1,528 365,929 388,605 379,136 375,559 362,924 309,3 10 335,490 595,520 470,789 
Intergovernmenta l 4,013 ,780 3,336,576 3,102,857 6,843,550 14,967, 100 7, 160,889 8,302,542 23,58 1,048 22,738,572 8,524,385 
Impact fees 1,377,679 2,330,707 3,527,405 3,656,952 3,346,000 1,969,502 1,3 12,729 2,251,932 1,262,12 1 447,021 
Charges for services 2,552,937 3,855,894 5,902,794 7,650,8 16 6,266,634 5,798,568 5,383,534 5,487,067 5,555,463 6,116,083 
Fines and forfeits 767,544 965,5 13 1,05 1,048 1,076,497 1, 158, 149 1, 176,750 1,222,371 1,269,327 1, 168,292 1,417,946 
Franchise fees 2,108,304 2,232,546 2,30 1, 133 2,692,885 2,800,615 2,898,700 2,988,269 2,995,701 3,219,655 3,552,461 
Contributi ons and donations 192,282 50,559 168,8 16 2,1 29,098 1,707,453 35,554 81,493 65,298 71,202 182,263 
Investment income 261 ,638 241 ,246 485,905 2,004,3 73 2,88 1, 18 1 1,574,356 284,896 53,817 23,408 (2,9 13) 
Other revenues 573,205 1,029,552 1,272,0 14 2,458, 128 1,859,006 3,089,261 3,228,478 3,397,058 5,576,243 4,115,342 
Total revcnues $ 36,901,537 $ 40,990,987 $ 49,995,049 $ 69,829,501 $ 79,859,268 S 68,7 14,043 $ 66,483,269 S 83,474, 144 S 87, 185,930 $ 72,543,931 

Ex penditures: 
Current -

General government S 3,234,328 $ 4,132,923 $ 4,118,240 $ 4,620,073 $ 9, 11 6,075 $ 8,741,072 $ 8, 176,267 $ 8,364,557 $ 12, 184,946 S 11 ,016,390 
Public safelY 11,514,788 13,322,440 14,309,389 17,415,423 21 ,579, 173 26,644,563 26,989,9 15 34,893,280 34,260,842 28,048,592 
Public works 3,769,896 3,908,42 1 4,787,679 5,9 17,153 8,836,988 10,584,274 8,885,685 7,378,256 17,248,448 9, 166,030 
Cultural and recreation 4,846,580 5,410,416 5,776,812 7,00 1,339 8,286,106 8,716,377 9,290,738 8,377,039 8,377,638 8,630,207 
Econom ic development 1,234,514 1,404,9 16 1,96 1,868 2,557,163 2,864,539 3,467,383 3,428,467 2,652,601 2,26 1,268 2,397,408 
Olher cxpenses 11,500 3,000 43,874 

Cap ital olL tl ay 11 ,75 1,245 5,833,961 8,734,020 20,793,304 42,447,948 23,399,838 12,878,264 30,832,46 1 18,438,538 9, 112,802 
Debt service ­

Payment to bond escrow agent 660,060 
Principal 3,338,249 2,270,869 2,452,119 2,827,984 3,128,174 2,097,825 4,790,762 4,464 ,5 10 5,285,055 5,087,639 
Interest and liscal cha rges 744,561 648,944 640,372 1,338,273 1,958,773 1,60 1,563 1,839,743 2,595,876 2,485,545 2,344,979 
Bond issuance costs 113,37 1 386,061 135,027 85,097 50,249 
Total cxpenditures 40,434,161 37,706,321 43 , 166,5 60 62,605,739 98,217,776 85,252,895 76,376,438 99,6 11 ,829 100,586, 154 75,804,047 

Exccss or rcvCllucs ovcr 
(under) eXI}cnditurcs S (3,532,624) S 3,284,666 $ 6,828,489 $ 7,223,762 $ (18,358,508) $ (16,538,852) $ (9,893,169) $(16, 137,685) $ (13,400,224) $ (3,260, 116) 

Source: The City's Financia l Records, Financial Services Department 
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Schedule 4 

(Cond'd) 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, 

Last Ten Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Issuance o f general obligation bonds 
Issuance of revenue bonds 
Loan proceeds 
Premium on sale o f bonds 
Sale of ilmd proceeds 
Transfer in 
Payment to bond esc ro w agent 
Transfer out 

Total other lillancing 
sources (uses) 

$ 

2003 

1,37 1,18 8 

1,468 ,764 

( 1,468 ,764) 

1,37 1.188 

$ 

2004 

4,465,000 

105,708 

1,500,8 14 
(3,347,215) 
(1 ,500,814) 

1,223,493 

2005 

$ 5,500,000 
18,130,000 

215,556 
1,0 14,543 

4,151 ,710 

(4, 151 ,710) 

24,860,099 

S 

2006 

7,000,000 

3 10, 182 

7,058,925 

p,058,925) 

7,3 10,182 

2007 

$ 

2,696,286 

12,410,603 

(12,41 0,603) 

2,696,286 

$ 

2008 

231,639 

7,204,18 1 

(7,204,18 1) 

231,639 

2009 

$ 25,554,472 

9,886,100 

2,987,569 

(2,987,569) 

35,440,572 

$ 

2010 

337,259 

202,690 
4, 740,124 

(4, 740, 124) 

539,949 

$ 

2011 

5,179,765 

1,485 ,408 

(\ ,485,408) 

5, 179,765 

$ 

2012 

922,0 12 

(922,0 12) 

Net Change in fund balances S (2, 161,436) $ 4,508 , 159 $ 3 1,688,588 $ 14,533,944 $( 15 ,662.222) $( 16,307.213) $ 25,547,403 $(\5,597,736) S (8 ,220,459) S (3,260,1 16) 

Debt service as a percentage of 14.23% 9.16% 8.98% 9.96% 9.12% 5.98% 10.44% 10.27% 9.46% 11. 14% 
Iloncap ital expenditures 

Source: The City'S Financial Records, Financial Services Depanment 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 5 

Taxable and Full Value of Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Sa ndoval County 
Rio Rancho 

Residential property Commercial Property Total Share in 
Less: Tax­ Total Sandoval County 

Fiscal exempt Net T,uable Direct Net Value Rio Net Taxable 
Year Taxable V111uc 1'11 11 Value Taxable Value Full Vallie Proper t)' V~lIuc Fu ll Vallie Tax I~ate Rancho Value 

2003 1,181,396,970 3,544, 190,910 386,437,8 11 1,159,3 13,433 139,285,763 1,428,549,018 4,564,2 18,580 8.30 378,875,784 27% 
2004 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 8.36 N/A N/A 
2005 1,441,2 14,926 1,92 1,6 19,853 435,359,989 580,479,971 164,240,183 1,7 12,334,732 2,283,112,919 8.35 190,708,422 11 % 

2006 1,702,012,677 2,269,350,179 467,597,877 623,463,820 175,879,345 1,993,73 1,209 2,658,308,212 7.96 211,601,334 11 % 
2007 2,076,419,611 2,768,559,4 12 972,070,958 1,296,094,578 221 ,336,819 2,827, 153,750 3,769,538,239 7.97 300,582,979 11% 

2008 2,352,908,682 3,137,21 1,498 1,015 ,360,974 1,353,814,598 241,137,494 3,127,132,1 62 4,169,509,445 7.9 1 329,683, 112 11 % 

2009 2,554,628,852 3,406,17 1,718 86 1,08 1,854 1,148, 109,110 249,476,650 3,166,234,056 4,221,645,302 8.0 1 338,153,789 11 % 

2010 2,579,985,543 3,439,980,638 1,0 10,359,661 1,347,146,181 277,937,023 3,3 12,408,181 4,4 16,544,131 8. 17 360,964,152 11% 
2011 2,488,635,092 3,3 18, 180,040 899,975, 11 5 1,199,966,790 293,490,264 3,095, 11 9,943 4,126,826,487 8.16 336,872,846 11 % 

2012 2,479,553,645 3,306,071 ,444 896,586,605 1,195 ,448,777 327,461 ,8 19 3,048,678,431 4,064,904,473 8.6 1 349,866,328 11% 

Source: Sandoval County Assessor's Omce Valuation Summary 2003, Sandoval County Assessor's Office Abstract 2005 th rough 2012. 
Notes: No information is avai lable for 2004. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 6 
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

City of Rio Rancho Overlapping Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

General 
Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund Total State County 

School 
District 

Central 
NM 

Comlll. 
College 

Pres. 
Hospital 

(A) Total 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
20 10 
20 11 
20 12 

6.227 
6.300 
6.286 
6.138 
5.9 14 
5. 847 
5.944 
6. 11 3 
6.5 18 
6.990 

2.074 
2067 
2.067 
1. 826 
2.060 
2.060 
2.067 
2.060 
1.645 
1.6 17 

8.30 1 
8.367 
8.353 
7.964 
7.974 
7.907 
8.0 11 
8. 173 
8. 163 
8.607 

1.520 
1.028 
1. 23 4 
1.29 1 
1.22 1 
1.250 
1.150 
1.530 
1.362 
1.3 60 

5.759 
6.940 
6.384 
6.27 1 
5.800 
5.368 
5.809 
5.952 
6.659 
6.995 

10.758 
10.760 
10.756 
10.704 
10.624 
10. 899 
10.635 
10.694 
10.773 
10.785 

3.0 I I 
3.0 19 
3038 
3.027 
2.992 
2.989 
3.046 
3. 158 
3.237 
3.344 

4.250 
4.250 
4.250 
4.250 

29.349 
30. 114 
29.765 
29.257 
28.6 11 
28 .413 
32.90 1 
33.757 
34 .444 
35.34 1 

Source: State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration 

(A) - 2009 and 20 I 0 are res tated to separate out Presbyterian Hospital Rates 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 7 

Principal Property Tax Payers 
Current Year and Five Years Ago 

2011 2005 (A) 

Percent of Percent of 
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 

Tax Payer Assessed Value Valuation Assessed Value Valuation 

PNM $ 29,73 1,803 1.49% $ 19,672,866 1.57% 
Presbyterian Healthca re 14,277,309 0.72% 6,123,432 0.49% 
New Mexico Gas Company 7,622,859 0.38% 0.00% 
Wal-Mart 5,121 ,699 0.26% 0.00% 
Sandia View LLC 4,682,8 14 0.24% 0.00% 
Pul te Homes of New Mexico 4,603,359 0.23% 0.00% 
Broadstone High Resort LLC 4,623,14 1 0.23% 0.00% 
Lowe's Home Centers 4,283,867 0.22% 0.00% 
Tri-State Generation & Transmiss ion 3,702, 139 0.19% 0.00% 
Qwest Corp. 3,672,092 0.18% 5,040,773 0.40% 
G & 1 III Pinnacle High ResOIt 0.00% 5,950,897 0.48% 
Leisure Care, Inc. 0.00% 3,098,353 0.25% 
U.S. Cotton 0.00% 2,826,114 0.23% 
Meadowlark Apa l1.ments 0.00% 2,536,400 0.20% 
Fulcrum Building, Inc. 0.00% 2,259,561 0. 18% 
Target 0.00% 2,043,463 0.16% 

Total 	 $ 82,321,082 4 .1 3% $ 49,55 1,859 3.97% 

So urce: 	 Sandoval County Assessor's Office 
Note: 	 The fisca l year for collection is November th rough October. This schedule uses the 2012 

collection yea r va luation. 

(A) - Information is not available for nine (9) yea rs prior. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 8 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected within Ratio 01 Total Outstanding Ratio 01 
Fiscal Taxes Levied for the Fiscal Y car of the Levy Delinquent Tax Total T ax Tax Collections Delinquent Outstanding 
Year the Fiscal Year (A) Amount (A) Percentage Collection (A) Collection to Total Tax Taxes Delinquent 
2002 6,274,889 6,253,030 100% 12,696 6,265,726 100% 9,163 0% 
2003 6,935,320 6,868,363 99% 46,857 6,915,220 100% 20,101 0% 
2004 7,558,650 7,299,238 97% 191 ,08 1 7,490,3 19 99% 68,330 1% 
2005 8,454,578 8,135,231 96% 23 1,028 8,366,259 99% 3 19,348 4% 
2006 9,679,603 9,297,367 96% 289,712 9,587,079 99% 382,236 4% 
2007 12,896,884 12,23 1,289 95% 422,973 12,654,262 98% 665,595 5% 
2008 14,649,411 13,833,470 94% 519,749 14,353,2 19 98% 858,820 6% 
2009 16,28 1,975 15,231,543 94% 462,192 15,693,735 96% 908,534 6% 
2010 16,3 16, 144 15,498,538 95% 540,128 16,038,666 98% 8 17,606 5% 
2011 15 ,825,033 15,206,260 96% 15,206,260 96% 6 18,773 4% 

Source: Sandoval County Treasurer's Office 

(A) - Subject to change each day due to additions and deletions o f levied and collected amounts. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Sched ule 9 

Taxable Gross Receipts by Type of Trade 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Construction $132,253 ,800 $ 165 ,091 ,463 $256, 139, 117 $393,3 13,384 $ 490,940,456 $ 375,5 70,976 $ 266,089,467 $ 160,792,616 $ 249,844, 125 $ 176,706,959 
Manufacturing 11,248,498 9,832,558 8,02 1,933 8,226,7 14 14, 124 , 152 10,5 18,506 12,671 ,847 5, 160,066 7,6 16,958 8,932,464 
Transportation , Communicati on 75,56 1,870 85 ,778 ,516 97,765 ,401 109,6 19,203 110,037,820 98,640,37 1 107,587,644 97 ,909,454 102 ,45 1,897 122,637,955 

and Utility 
Wholesale 9,86 1,828 12,2 15,397 11 ,836,622 13,745 ,588 11 ,293,040 11 ,3 0 I ,564 9, 11 0,123 9,3 26, 176 8,763 ,818 10,740,203 
Retail 196,833 ,445 2 16,675 ,986 226,347,806 280,255 ,799 402,411 ,448 455 ,834,662 380,784,663 396,763,790 399,295,852 4 18,644,640 
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 10,546,012 10,239,936 14,928,802 32,469,846 32,486,743 29, 108,506 20,584,655 25 ,0 15,494 24 ,603,362 25 ,000,526 
Serv ices 121 ,770,994 158,635,704 174 ,467,008 16 1,736,299 172,096,364 199, 175,032 193,070,878 226,829,005 255,388,68 1 278,055 ,736 
Other (A) 32,594,983 25 ,648,098 21 ,834,798 (9,632,397) (22 ,743,369) ( 102,5 18,633) (20,924,025 ) 1,2 13,942 2,650,44 7 

Total Taxable Gross Receipts $590,67 1,430 $684,117,658 $8 11 ,34 1,487 $989,734,436 $ 1,2 10,646,654 $ 1,077,630,984 $ 968,975,252 $921 ,796,601 $ 1,049,178,635 $ 1,043,368,930 

City di rect sales tax rate 6.187 5% 6.1875% 6.6875% 6 .68 75% 6.6875% 6.6875% 6.9375% 7.0625% 7.43 75% 7.4375% 

Sandoval County direct sales tax rate 5.7500% 5.7500% 6.0000% 6.0000% 6.0000% 6.0000% 6.0000% 6. 1250% 6.2500% 6.2500% 


So urce: State of New Mexico, Department of Taxation and Revenue 

Notes : Unab le to provide schedu le of Principal Sal es Tax Remitters, per New Mex ico Tax ation and Reve nue Laws and Regu latio ns 2004 Edition, section 7- I -8, Co ntidentiality of returns and other infonnalion. 


(A) - Thi s category is made up o f "undelennined establishments" due to adjustments of monthl y reportings by the state, therefore, negative amounts may be reported . 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 10 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
General CRT Total Percentage 

Fiscal Obligation Revenue Notes Revenue Loan Primary of Personal Per 
Year Bonds Bonds Pa~able Bonds Pa~able Government Income (Al Ca~ita (B) 
2003 8,740,000 4,285,000 1,645,773 78,110,000 10,486,627 103,267,400 2.38% 1,842 
2004 7,350,000 4,225,000 1,447,904 80,095,000 10,096,360 103 ,2 14,264 2.58% 1,754 
2005 11 ,270,000 2 1,840,000 1,306,341 134,340,000 9,694,384 178,450,725 1.64% 2,858 
2006 16,765,000 20,980,000 843,357 130,555,000 9,280,350 178,423,707 1.82% 2,687 
2007 15,075,000 20,225,000 2,856,469 159,655,000 8,853,895 206,665,364 1.68% 2,886 
2008 14,325,000 19,445,000 2,520,283 154,200,000 8,4 14,645 198,904,928 1.93% 2,6 18 
2009 36,075,000 18,645,000 11,665,621 158,460,000 8,032,21 9 232,877,840 1.74% 2,924 
2010 32,875,000 17,820,000 11 ,563,370 151,825,000 8,888,51 4 222,97 1,884 1.90% 2,700 
20 11 30,124,384 17,340,884 15,9 18,080 149,25 2,148 16,513,872 229,1 49,368 N/A 2,6 18 
20 12 26,3 74,440 16,707,249 15, 115,441 142,080,510 27,558,858 227,836,498 N /A 2,551 

Source: Th e City's Fi nancial Records, Financial Services Depart ment 

(A) - This info rmat ion uses Sandoval Coun ty Personal In come through 2010, thi s information is not ava ilabl e for 201 1 and 201 2. 
(8) - No population information is availabl e for Rio Rancho for 20 11, therefore, the 20 I 0 Censli s information is used for the 20 11 per capi ta calcul ation. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedu le 11 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable 
Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per 
Year Bonds Service Fund Total Pro~ert~ Ca~ita (A) 
2003 8,740,000 1,406,030 7,333,970 0.85% 130.79 
2004 7,350,000 1,383,965 5,966,035 0.64% 10 1.39 
2005 11 ,270,000 1,296,944 9,973,056 0.95% 159 .72 
2006 16,765,000 1,469,470 15,295,530 1.22% 230.33 
2007 15,075,000 1,506,930 13 ,568,070 0.74% 189 .48 
2008 14,325,000 3,584,693 10,740,307 0.5 1% 141.36 
2009 36,075,000 3,893,758 32, 181,242 1.48% 404.0 1 
20 10 32,875,000 4,039,68 1 28,835,3 19 1.33% 349 .2 1 
20 11 30, 124,384 4,180,47 1 25,943,913 1.27% 296 .43 
2012 26,374,440 3,045,519 23,328,92 1 l.l 7% 26 l.l 8 

Source: The City's Financial Records, Financial Services Department 

(A) - TillS infonuation uses the Bureau of Business and Economic Research (BBER) City of Rio Rancho 
population estimation. No infon11ation is available for 20 11 , therefore, the 20 10 Census population is used. 
for the per capital calculation. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 12 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 
As of June 30, 2011 

Governmental Unit 
Debt 

Outstanding 

Estimated 
Applicable 

Percentage (A) 

Estimated 
Share 

Applicable to City 

Debt repaid with property taxes 

State of New Mexico 
Sandoval County 
Central NM Conullunity College 
SSCAFCA 
Rio Rancho School District 

$ 296,890,000 
19, I 60,000 
66,935,000 
29,630,000 

129,580,000 

3.9 1% 
64.06% 
12.52% 
82. 18% 
95.95% 

$ 11 ,608,399 
12,273,895 
8,380,262 

24 ,349,934 
124 ,332,0 10 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 180,944,500 

City direct debt 58 , 197, 130 

Tota l direct & overlapping debt $ 239, 141 ,630 

Source: Sandoval County Assessor's Office 
Note: Overlapping govenUllents are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city. 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping govemments that is borne 
by the residents and businesses of the City of Rio Rancho. This process recognizes that, when considering the 
govenlll1ent's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and 
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and 

therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping goven1lllent. 

(A) -	 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable 
percentages were estimated by detennining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value that is within the 
govemment1s boundaties and dividing it by the county's total taxable assessed value. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 13 

ComlJUtation of Legal Debt Margin 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Ycar 20 II 

Assessed value 

Debt limit (4% orasscsscd value) 

Debt applicable to limit: 


Genera l obligation bonds 

Less: Amount sct aside for 


repayment of general obligation debt 


SI,992,140,934 
79,685,637 

26,374,440 

3,045,519 

Total net debt appl icable to limit 23,328,921 
Legal debt margin $56,356,7 16 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Debt limit $ 34,478,08$ $ 37,001,873 $ 41 ,8 10,$47 $ 49,987,941 $ 73 ,61 1,213 S 83,765,1 12 S 86,731,396 $ 86,824,311 S 81,96 1,320 S 79,685,637 

Total net debt applicable to limit 7,333,970 5,966,035 9,973,056 15,295,530 13,568,070 10,740,307 32, 18 1,242 28,835,319 25,943,913 23,328,921 

Total net debt applicable to the limi t 
as a pcrcentage of dcbt limit 21.27% 16. 12% 23 .85% 30.60% 18.43% 12.82% 37.[0% 33.21% 3 1.65% 29.28% 

So urces: The City's Financial Records, Financ ial Services Department and thc Sandoval County Assessor's Omce 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 14 

Pledged Revenue Bond Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Y cars 

Gross Receipts TllX Bonds Busincss-Type Bonds 

Net Revellue 
Fiscal Gross Receipts Debt Service Requirements Gross Available for Debt Service RC(llIircmcnts 

Year Tax Increment Principal Interest Total Coverage Revenues Expend itures (A) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage 
2003 3,664,165 *2,450,000 264,056 2,7 14 ,056 1.35 16,557,012 21,758,570 (5,20 I ,558) 2,050,000 4,195,938 6,245,938 -0.83 
2004 1,608,954 683,000 179,113 862, 113 1.87 18, 145,771 11 ,286,038 6,859,733 2,410,000 4,042,563 6,452,563 1.06 
2005 762,300 515,000 137,58 1 652,58 1 1.17 20,900,46 1 19,5 13,838 1,386,623 2,730,000 4,047,077 6,777,077 0. 20 
2006 1,892,470 860,000 83 7,724 1,697,724 1.11 32, 11 7,6 10 21,875,800 10,24 1,8 10 3,785,000 6,550,574 10,335,574 0.99 
2007 1,704,8 15 755,000 938,480 1,693,480 1. 0 I 31,9 11 ,403 24,744,962 7, 166,441 3,830,000 6,342,361 10,172,361 0.70 
2008 1,605,009 780,000 917,193 1,697,193 0.95 44,854,329 25,849,840 19,004,489 5,455,000 7,915,038 13,370,038 1.42 
2009 1,753,444 800,000 904,774 1,704,774 1.03 38,515,780 27,985,218 10,530,562 5,950,000 7,817,123 13,767,123 0.76 
2010 1,479,2 17 825,000 868,496 1,693,496 0.87 39,397,283 30,617,272 8,780,0 II 6,635,000 6,850,531 13 ,485,531 0.65 
2011 1,266,581 1,160,000 823,860 1,983,860 0.64 40,179,767 33,338,420 6,841,347 6,620,000 6,843,524 13 ,463,524 0.51 
2012 1,566,834 585,000 812,034 1,397,034 1.12 41,281,733 43,298,260 (2,0 16,527) 6,835,000 6,627,954 13 ,462,954 -0.15 

Source: The Cit y's Financia l Record s, Financial Services Depart ment 

(*) - The 2003 rerunding bonds did not requ ire a reserve, therefore, the Cit y used the 1995 reserve requirement to make additional payments on the 1995 bonds. 

(A) - Expenditures are calculated by adding the Operati ng and Nonoperat ing Expenses from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
for the Proprietary Funds. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 15 

Demographics and Economk Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

City County Personal Pcr Capita Personal Income Unemployment Rate 
Year Population Population Income U.S. New Mexico Sandoval COUllty U.S. New Mexico Sandoval Countr 
2003 56,074 95,632 2,454,258 3 1,530 24,975 24,958 6.00% 5.90% 5.90% 
2004 58,845 98,335 2,66 1,046 33,157 26,366 26,293 5.50% 5.80% 5.50% 
2005 62,440 10 I ,206 2,991, 129 35,424 28,876 28,293 5.10% 5.20% 5.10% 
2006 66,407 105,625 3,319,055 37,698 30,5 13 29 ,620 4.60% 4.20% 4.40% 
2007 71,607 111 ,855 3,632,911 39,392 32,0 18 30,833 4.60% 3.50% 4.00% 
2008 75,978 11 7,583 3,907,45 8 40,166 33,609 3 1,907 5.80% 4.20% 4.90% 
2009 79,655 122,298 4,053,341 39,635 33 ,267 32,172 9.30% 7.20% 8.20% 
20 10 87,52 1 131 ,56 1 4,239,111 39,945 33,368 32,021 9.60% 8.40% 9.30% 
20 11 89,320 134,259 N/A N/A 34,575 N/A 8.90% 7.1 0% 7.80% 
20 12 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Source: Bureau of Business and Economic Research (BBER). 
Notes: Personal income, per capita income and unemployment rates are only available for the county, not for the city. 

No infonnatioll except city and county population, NM per capita personal income and unemployment rales is ava ilable for 20 II. 
No infonnatioll is available for 20 12. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 16 

Principal Employers 
Cnrrent Year and Ten Years Ago 

2012 (A) 2001 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Total County Total County 

Employer (B) Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

Intel Corporation 3, 171 1 6% 5,800 21% 
Rio Rancho Public Schools 2,382 2 5% 1,042 4 4% 
Intel Subcontractors 3 0% 2,000 2 7% 
Hewlett-Packard 998 4 2% 0% 
Sprint PCS 820 5 2% 1,200 3 4% 
Bank of America Bank ing Services 6 0% 400 8 1% 

City of Rio Rancho 685 7 1% 470 6 2% 
E Telecare Global Solution 8 0% 0% 
Brycon Construction 500 9 1% 0% 
Sandoval County 451 10 1% 0% 
Victor ia's Secret Catalogue 0% 68 1 5 3% 
JC Penney Company 0% 
Don Chalmers Ford 170 10 1% 

Spartan Technology 0% 
Gateway Computers 455 7 2% 

U.S. National Guard Hawk Facility 300 9 1% 

Total Major Employers-Sandova l County * 9,007 12 ,518 

Total Sandoval County Employment ** 5 1,685 27, 116 

Sources: (*) Rio Rancho Chamber of Commerce Apri l 2009 
(**) New Mexico Department of Labor, Economic Research and Analysis, 2009 

(A) ~Most current data ava ilable is from the 2009 Rio Rancho Economic Development Corporation Annual Survey. 
(B)-Companies, within the top ten ranking, that do not have an employee count li sted were not available. 

Page 233 



(This page intentionally left blank) 

Page 23 4 




City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 17 

Full-time-Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Ge neral Goverrunent 
City Administration II 11 12 3 4 5 6 5 5 5 
Human Resources 11 13 13 II 10 10 9 8 6 6 
City Clerk 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 
City Attorney 5 5 5 5 6 7 7 6 6 6 
Municipal Court 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 12 12 11 
FinancellT 18 18 19 30 30 35 29 34 34 34 

Public Safety 
Police 101 10 1 106 11 8 123 124 127 127 127 129 
Firefighters 49 46 50 56 99 100 101 100 99 100 
Civilians 58 70 66 72 90 88 86 87 88 90 

Public Works 
Engineering 8 8 9 I3 21 25 27 25 21 17 
Otbers 50 50 53 65 77 75 74 71 68 68 

Parks and Recreation 69 75 75 78 11 0 132 139 11 5 92 91 
Senior Services 15 15 15 18 17 17 8 15 8 8 
Library and Infonnation Services 19 22 25 30 36 36 38 35 36 36 
City Development 22 20 20 32 40 42 36 32 29 30 
Special Funds 10 8 8 11 14 14 20 5 15 18 
Water and Wastewater 25 29 32 36 41 42 38 35 35 33 

Total 487 507 524 594 735 769 762 716 685 685 

Source: City of Ria Rancho Annual Budget 
Note: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vaca tion and sick leave). Full-lime-equi valent employment is calculated 

by dividing total labor hours by 2,080. 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 18 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Yea r 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Function/Program 
Police 

Total V iolent Crimes (A) 776 927 886 920 946 935 615 
Total PropcI1y Crimes (B) 1,399 1,775 1,96 1 1,709 1,686 1,426 1,485 
Total Warn ings & Citations (e) 24,305 23,840 27,250 21 ,082 19,898 15,777 8,805 
Total Arrests (D) 3,008 3,337 3,620 3,613 3,477 3,269 2,904 
Total Traftie Crashes 1,791 2,008 1,856 1,576 1,593 1,844 1,59 1 
Total Incident Reports (E) 3,586 8,88 1 9,045 9,485 8,7 16 8,099 7,605 
Total Calls for Service 39, 165 36,27 1 49,842 44,651 43,6 18 45,928 45,598 

Fire 
Total St ructural Fires 25 29 46 54 59 62 5 1 
Tota1 Fi re Inspections 999 901 1,049 736 1,087 1, 148 1,650 
Total Call s for Service 1,582 1,372 1,693 1,508 9,505 10,261 8, 116 

EMS 
Total EMS Patien ts 4,345 5, 141 
T otal Patien t Tml1sports 3,056 3,407 4,129 4,122 4,089 
Total Calls for Service 4,764 5,243 6,330 7,48 1 5,896 5,956 5,971 

Ani mal Control (F) 
Total Impounds 2,330 2,417 2,543 2,584 2,308 2,201 1,612 
Total Claims 617 754 830 914 856 736 569 
Total Adoption s 851 724 988 854 830 78 1 604 
Total Euthanasia 674 732 663 758 574 684 433 
Total Complaints 4,755 4,740 5, 193 5,821 5,666 5,658 4,580 

Code Enforcement (G) 
Total lnspccriol1s 8,043 10,0 10 7,055 6,989 9,430 8,884 8,259 
Total Citations 280 260 479 369 489 511 524 

Public Work s 
Tolal Utility Cuts 390 
Total Potholes Repa ired 971 423 1,385 592 590 1,041 1,926 

Parks & Recreation (H) 

Total Program Partici pation-Youth 20,961 19,632 22,620 9, 149 8,3 11 13,221 
Total Program Partici pation-Adult 18,638 6,556 6,621 3,969 8,581 1,672 
Total Program Part icipation-Aquatics 7,050 2,897 2,935 4,321 3,966 3,865 
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City orRio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule J8 


Operating Indicators by Function/Program (Contld) 


Last Seven Fiscal Years 
Fiscal Year 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Fu nct ion/ Program 
Parks & Recreation (cont) 

Total Su mmer Cam p Participants 2,370 
Total KidsZollc Part icipants 93 
Total Youth Sport s League Participants 748 
Total Adu lt Sports League Pat1icipants 280 
Total Indoor/Outdoor Aquatics Particpants 3,397 
Total Free Summer Meals Served 42,90 1 
Total Studen t Attendance of 

Keep Rio Rancho Beautiful Program 4,227 
Meadowlark Senior Center 

Avemge # of Daily Partici pants per Employee 126 
T otal Volu nteer H ours 23,439 

Library 
Total Collection 146,626 154,258 166,857 174,388 183,554 188,065 195,688 
New Items Added 23,233 17,288 23,501 23,800 24,351 23,490 26,453 
Items Withdrawn 7,252 9,656 10,902 16,269 15,185 18,979 18,830 
Collection Growth 15,981 7,632 12,599 7,53 1 9,166 4,5 11 7,623 

Circul ation Slats: 
V isitors 224,977 2 16,106 256,734 354,985 354,4 11 340,070 336,647 
Circulation 171 , 156 296,1 42 426,653 543,528 605,737 654,03 1 674,227 
Computer Usage 31,7 11 32,93 1 61 ,358 85,938 95,998 84,480 81,089 
Program Attendance 5,578 15,597 24,074 26,0 16 25,489 25,297 30,403 

Transit ( I) 

Tota l Cli ents Registered 3, 172 3,356 3,665 3,955 4,229 
New Cli en ts Registered 184 309 290 274 88 
Total Fare Cards Sold (J) 1,905 1,809 1,999 2,052 929 1,764 1,760 
Tota l Trips in Ri o Rancho 26,804 25,262 13 ,633 16,037 7,609 
Total Trips to Albuquerque 6,212 6,1 15 2,983 2,3 10 692 

Pu rpose of Trips: 
Medical 9,906 7,220 4,538 4,442 2,060 
Personal Errands 3,307 5,645 2,830 4,936 2,118 
Work 13,153 9,624 6,067 6,359 3, 199 
City Facili ties 2,846 4,252 1,725 1,769 843 
Education 4,004 4,636 1,456 944 76 
Total Mi les Traveled 133,672 142,273 127,576 132,971 N/A 
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City or Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 18 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program (Concl'd) 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 

Note: The City chose 10 usc the prospective method of reporting for this schedule as the data was nOllrackcd prior 10 GASU 44 implementation. 

(A) Data was restated to include March through June infonnation for 20 11. Data not avuilable for May through June 2012. 

(B) Data was restated to include March through June in fonnation far201l. Data nOI ilvailable for May through June 20 12. 

(C) Datil was restated to include March through June infonnation for 2011. Dilla nOI available for February through June 2012. 

(D) Data was restated 10 include March through June infomlation for 2011. Data 1101 available for Aprillhrough lune 20 12. 

(E) Data was restated to indude March through June infornw tion for 20 1 L Data not available for May through June 20 12. 

(F) Data not available lor April through June 2012 on animal control categories. 

(G) Data not available for November 20 lion both code enforcement categories. 

(I I) Parks & Recreation changed all op:r.lling indicators beginning fiscal ye:lr 2012. 

(I) Beginning in January 2010, the tmnsit system is no longer run by the City of Rio Rancho. 

(J) Selling HIre cards for the Rio Metro Transit system is the only function that the Ci ty currently continues 10 do with rcg<Hds to transit. 

Sources: Various City Dcpal1mcIlts 
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C ity of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 19 

C apital Asset Statistics by F unctioniProgram 

Last Four Fiscal Years 
Fisca l Year 

2006 2007 2008 2009 201 0 I 2011 2012 
Fun ct ion/Program 
Poli ce 

Main Stat ions I I 
Substat ions (E) 4 4 
Law Enforcement Units (1-1) 152 178 181 180 126 139 160 

Fire 
Main Stations 2 5 6 5 5 5 6 
Substations 4 I I 
Firctrucks II 15 15 15 17 19 17 

EM S 
Ambul ances 7 8 9 9 II II II 

Animal Control 
Patrol Units 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 

Pub lic Works 
Streets (centerline miles) (I) 83 1 83 1 837 846 428 449 454 
Streetlights 1, 156 2,544 2,604 2,7 10 2,770 2,859 2,930 
Traffi c Signals (Signali zed Intersections) 35 42 45 45 49 49 53 
Sidewalks & Path s (J) 12 1 12 1 123 134 

Parks & Recreation 
New/Renovated Park Faci li ties 2 3 2 10 I 5 
Developed Parkland (acres) ( R) 242 285 304 311 298 300 300 
Constructed Trailways (linear reel) (A) 53,873 57,5 16 64,380 64 ,380 64,380 65, 150 65 , 150 

Transit 
Mini bu ses (K) 7 7 8 8 0 0 0 

Water 
Water mains (miles) 385 388 395 403 552 563 565 
Fire hydrants 24,950 25,822 25,866 25,939 3,768 3,870 3,87 1 
New Connections (F) 1,381 1,040 668 472 348 375 
Water main breaks (G) 32 39 37 43 49 32 
Storage capacity (thousands of gallon s) (B) 3 1.0 3 1.0 34,500 34,500 34,500 
Average daily consumption (thousands of gallons) (C) 10,409 11 ,74; 11 ,8 14 10,6 16 11 ,62 1 12,6 10 
Booster Stations (L) 8 8 9 

Wells (in production) (M) 19 17 17 
Storage Tanks (N) 18 18 18 
Arsenic Treatment Faci lities (0) 8 10 10 

Wastewater 
San itary sewers (miles) 335 337 343 35 1 355 368 37 1 
Average da il y treatme nt (thousands of gallons) (D) 4, 176 4,565 4,954 4,863 4,875 4,324 4,626 
Wastewater Treatment Plants (P) 6 5 5 
Lift Stations (Q) 28 28 28 

Sources: Variolls City Departments 
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City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico Schedule 19 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program (Concl'd) 

Last Four Fiscal Years 

Note: The City chose to use the prospective mctJlOd of reporting for this schedule as the data was not tracked prior to GASB 44 implementation. 
I. The City established a baseline for restatement of cap ital asset statistics for fi scal year ending June 30, 2010. Base line fi gures were primarily obtained from the City's Geographic in fonnalion 
System (GJ S). Amended the number of developed parkland, water line, sewer line, rmd street for fi scal year years 20 IOta present in fi scal year 20 12 CA FR for previous incorrect figures. 
(A) Amended the linear fecI of constructed lrailways for fi sca l year 2006 to correctly state the stal1ing point. 
(B) The City ehose to no longer track the water storage capacity beginning in fi scal year 2008, however began traCking again in fiscal year 2010. 
(C) The City chose to begin tracking the average daily water consumption beginn ing in fiscal year 2007. 
(D) Amended the wastewater treatment capacity beginning with fiscal year 2006 to be an average daily treatment capacity in thousands of gallons. 
(E) Police and Fire no longer under the same department. Substation numbers for police reported to Finance in error. Restatement of substations for police fo r fiscal ycar 2008. 
(F) Utility department began tracking new connections. Addition of data for fi scal year 2007 and 2008. 
(C) Utility department began tracking water main breaks. Addition of data for fi scal year 2007 and 2008. 

(1I) Amended the number of patrol units to correctly state the basel ine point beginning FY20 10. Law Enforcement Units include Marked, Unmarked, Administrative, Pool , and Special Use vehicles. 


(I) Amended the centerline mi les of paved roadway for fiscal year 2010 to correctl y state the baseline point. Prev ious year's reporting was presumably based on a lane mile unit ofmeasurc. 

(J) I)ublic Works department discontinucd tracking sidewalks beginning in fiscal year 201 O. Sidewalks are considered part of the roadway/street infrastructurc. 

(K) On Dcc. 16, 2009, the Rio Rancho City Council adopted a Reso lution No. 134, ENACT 09-134 to transfer the city's Ri o Transit Program to the Mid-Region Council of Governments 

and their Rio Metro Regionul Transit District, effective Jan . 1,20 10. 

(L) Public Works department began tracking number of booste r stations beginning in fi scal year 2010. 

(M) Public Works department began tracking number of we lls beginning in fiscal year 20 I O. 

(N) Public Works department began tracking number of waler storage tanks beginning in fiscal year 20 I O. 

(0) Public Works department began tracking number of arsenic treatment facilities beginning in fi scal year 2010. 

(Il) Public Works department began tracking number of wast water treatment plants beginning in fi scal year 2010. 

(Q) Public Works department began tracking number of lift stations beginning in fiscal year 20 I O. 

(R) Amended the number of developed parkland for fiscal year 20 I 0 to correctly state the basel ine point. Amended the number ofdeveloped parkland for fisca l year years 20 I 0 to present in fiscal year 2012 

CA FR for previous incorrect figures. 
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• 
CliftonLarsonAlien LLP 
500 Marquelte NW, Suite 800 
Albuquerque, NM 87102 

505-842-8290 Ifax 505-842-1568 

www.cl iftonlarsonallen.comCliftonLarsonAlIen 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 


Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 


Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
and Citizens of the City of Rio Rancho 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, the budgetary 
comparisons of the general fund, the combining and individual funds, fiduciary funds and related 
budgetary comparisons presented as supplementary information of the City of Rio Rancho (the 
City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 28, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
conta ined in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting . Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial 
reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct , misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected , on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and responses as findings 2012-01 
and 2012-02 to be material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting . 
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs and responses as findings 2012-03 and 2012-04 to be significant 
deficiencies. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts , and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

We noted no other matters that are required to be reported pursuant to Government Auditing 
Standards paragraphs 5.14 and 5.16, and pursuant to Section 12-6-5. 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them . 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the City, 
the City Council , the Office of the State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature and other federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~LL? 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
November 28, 2012 
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CliftonLarsonAlien LLP 
500 Marquette NW, Suile 800 
Albuquerque, NM 87102~ 505-842-8290 Ifax 505-842-1568 

www.cliftonlarsonallen.comCliftonLarsonAlien 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a 

Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over 


Compliance in Accordance with OMS Circular A-133 


Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
and Citizens of the City of Rio Rancho 
City of Rio Rancho, New Mexico 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Rio Rancho (the City) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMS Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2012. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMS Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMS Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining , on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures 
disclosed instances of noncompliance with those reqUirements, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with OMS Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-02, 2012-03, and 2012-04. 

Internal Control over Compliance 

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's 
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
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expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly , we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the City's internal 
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. 
However, as discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be a material weakness and other deficiencies that we consider 
to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions , to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-02 to 
be a material weakness. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-03 and 2012-04 to be significant 
deficiencies. 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and , 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them . 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the City, 
the City Council , the Office of the State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~LL? 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
November 28, 2012 
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C ITY OF RIO RAN C HO, NEW MEX ICO 

SC H E OUL E OF EXI'ENDIT UR ES OF FEDERAL AWARIlS 


YEAR ENIl ED J UNE 30, 20 12 

Fcdcnll C .'unlor/ ll:tss-Through G nllltor/ C FDA Grantor or Pass-T hrough 
Program Title Numbcr Numbcr Ex pcnditures 

U.S. De nartment of Labor Emplovmcllt Training Adlllills tnilion 

Passed through New Mexico Department of Workforce So lutions: 

WIA Adult Program 


Total U.S, Depal't menl of Lllbor 


U.S. Dcn:lrtmcnt of Homeland Sccuritv 

Di rect Program : 

Immigration Enforcement 


Passed through New Mexico Department of Homeland Security: 

Emergency Management Performance Gran ts 

Emergency Management Perfonnancc Grants 

Homeland Securi ty Grant Program 

Homeland Securi ty Grant Program 

Homeland Securi ty Grant Program 

Homeland Security Grant Program 

Homeland Security Granl Program 


Total U.S. OcpllI'lmcnt of Homeland Security 

U,S. I)cn:utlllcnt of .Iu sticc 

Direct Program: 

Crime Victims Assistancc 

Federal Surplus Property Transfer Program 

Edward Byrne Memorinl Ju sti ce Ass istnnce Gran t Program 

Edwnrd Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Gran t Program 

Edward Byrne Mcmorial Justice Assistancc Grant Program 

Edward Byrne Memoria l Justice Assistance Grant Program 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistan ce Gran t Program 

Bulletproor Vest Partne rship Program 


Passed through New Mexico Department of Pub lic Safc ty Grant Management Bureau: 
Project Safc Nc ighborhoods 
Project Safe Ne ighborhoods 
Project Safe Ne ighborhoods 
Edward Byrne Memorial Just ice Assistan ce Grant Program 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
Edward Byrne Memori al Justice Assistance Grant Program 
Recovcry Act - Edward Byrne Me morial Just ice Assistance Grant (JAG) 

Program I Grants To Units Of Local Government 
Total U.S. Dcpartment of Justice 

U.S. Dcmu'hnent of Agric ulture Food and Nutriti on Se rvice 

Passed through New Mex ico Department of Children Youth and Family: 
Natio nal School Lunch Program 

Total U.S. DC]llu 'tmcnt of Agr iculturc Food and Nutrition SC I-vicc 

U.S. DClllu'tmcnf of Encrgv 
Direct Program: 

Energy Effi ciency and Conservat ion Block Grant Program (EECBG) 
Total U.S. Depllrtmcnt of Energy 

U.S. Depa rtment,,!, l'lousi ng :111<1 Urba n Developmcnt 

Direct Program: 

Community Development Block Grant/Ent itl ement Grants 

Community Deve lopment Block Grant/Ent itlement Gran ts 

Community Deve lopment Block GrantlEnt itl emcnt Gran ts 


To lal U.S, DC IHlrt mcnt of l'lousing lind Urbnn Dc\'clopment 

17.258 

97.XXX 

97.042 
97.042 
97 .067 
97.067 
97.067 
97.067 
97.067 

16.575 
16.578 
16.738 
16.738 
16.738 
16.738 
16.738 
16.607 

16.609 
16.609 
16.609 
16.738 
16.738 
16.738 

16.804 

10.555 

81.128 

14.218 
14.218 
14.218 

CT-II-070 

MOU 05/19/1 1 

20 I 0-E P-EO-0022 
EMW-2011-EP-00051 
EMW-201 1-SS-00094-S01 
EMW-2011-00094-S01 
20 10-SS-TO-00I IRR 
2009-SS-T9-000030 
EMW-20 11-00094-S01 

20 I2-VA-709 
N/A 
2009-DJ-BX-0948 
MOU DTD 03/04120 I 0 
20 11 -DJ-BX-23 14 
MOU 011 11112 
LTR DTD 12/14/ 11 
BA-2000S-f'CO I 

10-JAG-NMGTF-SFYI I 
I O-PSN-NMGTF-SFY I I 
II-PSN-NMGTF-SFYI2 
3900003800 
II-JAG-NMGTF-SFY I2 
09-JAG-NMGTF-SFY I 0 

09-RA-JAG-RR-NMGTF -SFY I 0 

3 185 

09SC004700 

B-09-MC-35-0004 
S-10-MC-35-0004 
B-1 I-MC-35-0004 

38,000 

38,000 

1,440 

30,280 
20,66 1 
18,968 
7,334 

13,881 
927 

4,392 

97,883 

43,690 
36,730 

6 
19,263 
37,130 

1,2 12 
8,856 
3,225 

35,226 
14,459 
18,980 

822 
144,482 
24,286 

1,8 11 
390, 178 

11 4,798 
114,798 

54,380 
54,380 

95 ,901 
II 0,63 1 
202 ,049 
408,581 
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237.536 

C ITY OF RIO RAN C IIO, NEW MEX ICO 
SC II E DULE or EX P ENDIT URES OF FEDERAL AWA RDS 

YEA R ENDED J UNE )0, 2012 

Federa l Gnmto r/ l'ass-Through Gnmtor! CFDA G ra ntor or Pass-Through 
I)rog rlllll T itle Nu mber Numbe r Ex penditures 

U. S. EIiVi rOIlI11Cnt all' rotcctio l1 Age ncy Ofli cc of the C hicf Financial Office r' 

Direci Program: 
Congressionally Mandated Projects 

Total U.S. Environme nta l Protec ti on Agency 
66.202 

U.S. Dc plrrlm ent of Inte d or Burea u of Recla mation 

Direct Program: 
Water ConscrvlItion Field Services Program (WeFSP) 

Tollrl U, S. Dcp:II 'tm cllt of Intcd Ol' Burell u of Rcco mation 
15.530 

U.S. Dcn:llt mcnt of Ed UC<l ti on 

Passed th rough New Mex ico Department of Finance and Administration: 
State Fiscal Stabi lization Fund (S FSF) Govenunclll Services, Recovery Act 84.397A 

U.S. Dc p:lrlme nl o f Tnlll spol'ta t io n Fede ra l H ighwlW Administ ratio n (F HWA) 

Passed through New Mexico Department o f Transportation: 
Hi ghway Plann ing an d Construction 
Hi ghway Plan nin g and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 

T otal U,S, DepOIrt ment of T ra nsportatio n I' IHVA 

20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 

U.S. Demll'tmellt of Tra nsuo rt a ti oll N:l tion:l l 1-lig hwlH' Tl'a ffi c Safe,",' Admini stra ti on (NHTSAl 

Passed through New Mexico Departm ent of Transportation: 
State an d Communi ty H ighway Safety 20.600 
Minim um Penalties for Repeat OlTenders for Dr iving Whi le Intoxicated 20.608 
Minimum Penalties fo r Repeat Offe nders lor Driving Whi le Intoxicated 20.608 
Minimum Penalties for Repeat O ffenders for Driving Whi le Intoxicated 20.608 
Minimum Penalties for Repeat O ITenders for Driving Wh ile Intox icated 20.608 
Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving Wh ile Intox icated 20.608 

Tota l U,S, Depart ment ofTr a nspo rt llt ion N I-I T SA 

Exec utiv e O ffi ce of th e President 

Passed through City o f Albuquerque, New Mexico: 
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program 95.00 1 

Tot:d Excc ut ivc O ffi ce of th e P"csid c nt 

Tota l ex penditures o ffedenll aWllrds 

00F)0601 

R IOAP40016 

GSF· DFA·03·RRFS 

CN # L3111 
CN#A30047 1 
CN#L3020 
HPP-4007( I )03 
CN#2954 

J 2-PT-02-PO I 
II-AL·64-08 J 
ll -PT-02-P01 
I I-AL·64-P23 
I 2-AL-64·08 I 
12-AL-64-P25 

MO U dated 07115111 

237,536 

16,747 
16,747 

6,825 
6,825 

2, 120,8 12 
25,86 1 

2 19,803 
447,58 1 

2,244, 146 
5,058,203 

67,500 
17,960 
22,727 
92,500 

113,052 
202,500 
5 16,239 

7,9 14 
7,91 4 

6,947,284 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 


The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of City 
of Rio Rancho, New Mexico and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting for 
governmental funds and on the accrual basis of accounting for proprietary funds . The 
information is thi s schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133 , Audits a/States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

NOTE 2 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS 

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the federal or pass-through 
grantor or the 2011 Catalog 0/Federal Domestic Assistance . 

NOTE 3 - NON-CASH ASSISTANCE, LOANS, AND LOAN GUARANTEES 

In accordance with OMB Circular A- 133, the City had no non-cash assistance, loans, and 
loan agreements outstanding at year-end. 

NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS OF GRANT AWARDS 

Federal 
Grant N um bcr­ CFDA Pass-through Grant 

Grantor Agency / Grant Title and Subrecipien ls Federal or State Number A mount 

u.s. Department of HOll sing and Urban Development 

Com munity Development Bl ock Grant/Entit lement Grants 

2009 calendar year grant 

Rebu ilding Together Sandoval Co. 8-09-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 $ 79,022 

Total 79,022 

20 I 0 ca lendar year grant 

Big Brothers Big Sisters 8-IO-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 1,667 

Community Outreach Program 8-IO-MC-35-0004 14.218 10,000 

Total 11 ,667 

20 11 ca lendar year grant 

Bi g Brothers Big Sisters B- I I-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 11 , 111 

J-Iaven HOllse Inc. 8 -II-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 11 ,44 1 

La Buena V id a In c. 8- I I-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 6,868 

People Helping Peop le 8- II-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 15,000 

SI Fcl ix Pantry In c. 8- I I-M C-35-0004 14 .2 18 18,785 

Yo uth Development In c. 8- II-MC-35-0004 14.2 18 4,303 

Total 67,507 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


NOTE 5 - PRIOR YEAR EXPENDITURES 

During the current year, the City identified $1,474, 11 6 of expenditures incurred in prior years 
that we re available in the current year to be funded by federal resources. These expendi tures 
were previously ullreimbursed and allowed to be submitted for federal reimbursement in the 
current year under the Highway Planning and Construction grant (CFDA number 20.205). The 
U.S . Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration is the grantor of these fWlds 
and the resources passed through the State of New Mexico Department of Transportation to the 
City. Since these expenditures occurred in prior years they have not been included in the current 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A wards. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXJCO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Fillallcial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 	 Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• 	 Material weakness(es) identified? X yes ___no 

• 	 Sign ificant defi ciencies identified that are not 
considered to be a material weakness(es)? ___yes X no 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ___yes X no 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
• 	 Material weakness(es) identified? X yes ___no 

• 	 Significant deficiency identified that are not 
considered to be a material weakness(es)? X yes ___no 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major 
program s: Unqualified 

Any audit findings di sclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 51 O(a) of OMB Circular A-1 33? X yes no 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Numbers 	 Name of Federal Program 
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction 
20.608 Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated 
14.218 Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distingu ish between Type A and Type 
B programs: $300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-ri sk aud itee? 	 ___yes X no 

Page 255 



CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

2012-01 	 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS (MATERIAL WEAK-GOVERNMENTAL 
AUDITING STANDARDS) 

STATEMENT OF CONDITION 

During testwork over capital assets, there were a number of instances where insufficient information 
was provided by the responsible internal department to the City'S Finance department in order for an 
accurate value to be reported for developer contri butions in the year under audit. Also, in two 
instances, project close-out info rmation was not provided by the responsible internal department to 
the City's Fi nance department in a timely manner, leading to a necessary restatement of the City's 
fi scal year 20 II Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

CRITERIA 

Internal controls for capital assets should require developer contributions recorded in the City ' s 
system to be properly valued and supported in the correct reporting period. 

CAUSE 

The City does not have a clear and comprehensive set of written policies and procedures in place that 
would aid in the identi fi cation and accurate recognition and valuation of developer contributions, nor 
does it have specific written policies in place that require the timely gathering and reporting of thi s 
financial info rmation. 

EFFECT 

In fi scal year 20 II , the City ' s revenue and capital assets were understated by approx imately $5 
million and in fi scal year 201 2, revenue and capital assets were understated by approximately 
$620,000, requiring an audi t adjustment to properly refl ect this amount. 

RECOMM EN DATION 

We recommend the City develop and implement internal written polic ies & procedures relating to 
developer contributions to ensure timely and accurate financial reporting. 

AGENCY RESPONSE 

The City does have a Fixed Asset Policy setting out the requirements for developers contributing 
assets to the City. However, in order to more clearl y set out the inter-departmental requi rements, the 
City has developed a standard fo rm fo r reporting the quantities and values ofdeveloper contributions 
and is in the process of writing accompanying instructions for internal departments responsible fo r 
gathering and reporting of thi s financial information. The instructions will include the requi rement of 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXJCO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION U - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Cont'd) 

AGENCY RESPONSE (Concl'd) 

timely reporting within a reasonable time after acceptance ofcontributions. Also, the Capital Asset 
Policy wi ll be amended to include the above referenced requirements. The employees responsible for 
implementing the sa id changes are Donald Martinez, Senior Financial Analyst, Marta Ortiz, 
Accounting Division Manager, Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Director ofFinancial Services, Debbie Cook, 
Engi neering Supervisor, and John Castillo, Director of Development Services. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


2012-02 	 FEDERAL REVENUE RESTATEMENT - (MATERIAL WEAKNESS ­
GOVERNMENT AU DITING STANDARDS AND OMS FINDING) 

NO QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO ANY FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

CFDA 20.205 

STATEMENT OF CONDITION 

During our review of federal revenues and expenditures, we noted the City had identified errors in 
the amount of federal expenditures reported in prior years. In prior years, the City had been lacking 
an adequate process to reconcile federal revenue received and federal expenditures, impacting 4 out 
of the last 5 years of the federal program. 

Due to the fact that the City put a review process into place, the City identified errors in the amounts 
that had previously been reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, resulting in 
the need to restate beginning fund balance in the fund-level financi al statements and beginning net 
assets in the government-wide financial statements. The amount of the restatement was 
approximately $1.5 million . 

CRITERIA 

In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the matching principle should be 
applied to properly match revenues with expenses each fi scal year. Also, Section 2.2.2.8 J of the 
New Mexico State Audit Rules requires sound accounting practices be fo llowed, which includes 
maintaining adequate financial records to support the financial statements. 

CAUSE 

The lack of a review process over the federal revenue schedule in prior years was the root cause of 
thi s condition. Also, a previous lack ofadequate internal communication between those depru1ments 
responsible for compiling the supporting documentation for Federal revenues and expenditures and 
those in the finance department contributed to thi s condition. 

EFFECT 

Federal revenues and expenditures were misstated in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008; June 30, 
2009; June 30, 20 10; and June 30, 20 11. These misstatements resulted in the need to restate the 
beginning fund balance in the fund-level financial statements and beginning net assets in the 
government-wide financial statements at June 30, 20 12. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Cont'd) 

RECOMMENDA TlONS 

We recommend the City continue to carry out the process it implemented whereby the Federal 
revenue schedule is reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis to ensure revenues and 
expenditures are being matched in the proper period. Further, we recommend that sufficient, 
appropriate communication continues to take place among all parties responsible for the gathering 
and reporting of information as it relates to federal revenues and expenditures. 

AGENCY RESPONSE 

As noted above, the City put into place a process last year to address previous year findings related to 
the Federal revenue schedule being reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis to ensure 
revenues and expenditures are being matched in the proper period. As such, the new process helped 
the City self-identify prior year discrepancies in the beginning fund balance. 

The City will continue following these written processes developed to ensure federal revenues and 
expenditures are being reported in the proper period on a monthly basis. Additionally, the City 
requests that the auditor review and comment on the adequacy of these procedures. 

The employees responsible for implementing the said processes are Kathy Fox, Grants 
Administrator, Marta Oliiz, Accounting Division Manager, ShoI1na Ybarra, Purchasing Specialist, 
Jon Daniels, Purchasing Manager and all Public Works Depruiment project managers that are 
assigned to monitor Public Works grant related projects. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Cont'd) 

2012-03 	 NON-COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL GRANT REQUIREMENTS 
SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY - OMB 
FINDING) 

CFDA 14.2 18 

STATEMENT OF CONDITION 

During Single Audit testing over sub recipient monitoring of the City's Communi ty Development 
Block Grants, it was di scovered that the City's internal controls over compliance with the grant 
provisions were not operating effectively during the year. The City has a checkli st of required 
documents that all subrecipients are required to provide before the City processes the sUbrecipient' s 
first pay request. Specifically, seven of these required documents were not provided before the City 
made its first payment to the subrecipient. 

CRlTERlA 

It is essential fo r a pass-through entity to maintain strong internal controls over compliance with all 
Federal grant provisions to mitigate the ri sk afnon-compliance. Specifica lly, OMB Circular A-133 
§ _.300(b) requires auditees to maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on 
each of its Federal programs. 

CAUSE 

A lack of secondary review of required documentation prior to awarding grants to subrecipients is 
the underlying cause of the sa id condition. 

EFFECT 

This condi tion could potentially lead to non-compliance with Federal grant requirements. 

RECOMMEN DATIONS 

We recommend the City develop and implement a review process whereby, prior to awarding 
subrecipient grants, a separate individual reviews the required documentation that is submitted by the 
potential subrec ipient and determine whether all the required documentation has been received and 
whether the potential subrec ipient is eligible fo r Federal funds. 
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CITY OF IUO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Cont'd) 

AGENCY RESPONSE 

The City has a checklist of required documents that all subrecipients are required to provide before 
the City processes the subrec ipient' s first pay request. Diale Fomukong, CDBG Grant Specialist and 
Marta Ortiz, Accounting Division Manager will ensure that the checklist of required documents is 
met prior to processing subrecipient's first pay request. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION lll- FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Cont'd) 

2012-04 	 NON-COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL GRANT REQUIREMENTS - LEVEL OF 
EFFORT (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY- OMB FINDING) 

CFDA: 20.608 

STATEMENT OF CONDITION 

During single audit compliance testwork, we noted that the City was out ofcompliance with the level 
of effort requirements of thi s grant. This pass-through grant, grant number 12-AL-64-081 , which 
related to Operation DWI initiatives, required the rec ipient to meet specific level of effort 
requirements. The grant stipulated that the recipient must carry out a certain number of OWl 
checkpoints and saturation patrols during the grant year. We noted that only 41 saturation patrols 
were carried out during FYI 2, whereas the grant agreement required that 43 be carried out. 

CIUTEIUA 

In order for the rece ipient to be in compliance with the requirements of these grant agreements, it 
must comply wi th level of effort specifications delineated by the grantor. Specifically, OMB Circular 
A-1 33 §_.300(c) requires auditees to comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 

CAUSE 

A lack ofadequate monitoring of the required compliance measures pertaining to level ofeffort was 
the underlying cause of the said condition. 

EFFECT 

This condition led to non-compliance with level of effort Federal grant requirements. 

RECOMMENDA nONS 

We reconID1end the City carefully review all the compliance requirements of the grants which it 
recei ves and ensure that those who are responsible for administering the programs funded by the 
grant are aware of any and all of the grants' compliance requirements. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 


SECTION 1II - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (ConcI'd) 

AGENCY RESPONSE 

The City was unable to schedule one hundred percent of the required events within the "Super- Blitz, 
Mini-Blitz" time periods because the City did not receive the grant agreement from the State until 
January 2012 even though the period of the grant was to be October 1,20 II through September 30, 
20 12. All funding was utili zed on 9 check points and 41 saturation patrol activities. The City will 
continue to make every effort to fulfill grant agreement requirements and amend the requirements 
when they cannot be achieved for reasons wi thin and out of the City ' s control. 

Employees responsible for ensuring that all requirements of the grant are met wi ll include Rich 
Misbach, Captain of the Poli ce Department, Kathy Fox, Grants Administrator, Marta Ortiz, 
Accounting Division Manager and other Department staff, depending on the grant. 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 


JUNE 30, 2012 


STATUS OF FINANICAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Finding No. 20 I 1-01 COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Status: Resolved 

Finding No. 2009-05 RECONCILA TlON OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND EXPENDITURES ­
REPEATED AND MODIFIED 

Status: Resolved 
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CITY OF RIO RANCHO, NEW MEXICO 

EXIT CONFERENCE 


JUNE 30, 2012 


An exit conference was held at a closed meeting on November 16, 20 12, to discuss the 
preceding findings. Attending were the following persons. 

For the City of Rio Rancho: 

Mark Scott, Counci lor, District 4 
James C. Babin, Acting City Manager 
Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Finance Director 
Marta Ortiz, Accounting Division Manager 
Kathy Fox, Grants Administrator 

For the Independent Audi tor: 

Georgie Ortiz, CPA, CGFM, Assurance Principal 
Raul Anaya, CPA 
Robert Korman, CPA 

Page 266 


